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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS FOR FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Unless otherwise indicated, references to “Johnson Conirols,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “us” in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K refer to Johnson Controls, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Certain statements in this report, other than purely historical information, including estimates, projections,
statements relating to our business plans, objectives and expected operating results, and the assumptions upon which
those statements are based, are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1993, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, These forward-looking statements generally are identified by the words “believe,” “project,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “estimate,” “forecast,” “outlool,” “intend,” “strategy,” “plan,” “may,” “should,” “will,” “would,” “will
be,” “will continue,” *will likely resull,” or the negative thereof or variations thereon or similar terminology
generally intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are based on current
expectalions and assumptions that are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond our
control, which may cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. A detailed discussion of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results and events to
differ materially from such forward-looking statements is included in the section entitled “Risk Factors” (refer to
Part 1, Item 1A, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K). We undertake no obligation, and we disclaim any obligation,
to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or

otherwise,
PARTI

ITEM 1 BUSINESS

General

Johnson Confrols is a global diversified techrology and industrial leader serving customers in more than 150
countrics. The Company creates quality products, services and solutions to optimize energy and operational
efficiencies of buildings; lead-acid automotive batteries and advanced batteries for hybrid and electric vehicles; and
interior systems for automobiles.

Johnson Conltrols was originally incorporated in the state of Wisconsin in 1885 as Johnson Electric Service
Company to manufaciure, install and service automatic temperature regulation systems for buildings. The Company
was renamed to Johnson Controls, Inc. in 1974, In 1978, we acquired Globe-Union, Inec., a Wisconsin-based
manufacturer of automotive batteries for both the replacement and original equipment markets. 'The Company
entered the automotive seating industry in 1985 with the acquisition of Michigan-based Hoover Universal, Inc. In
2005, the Company acquired York Infernational, a global supplier of heating, ventilating, air-conditioning and
refrigeration equipment and services.

The Building Efficiency business is a global market leader in designing, producing, marketing and installing
integrated heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) systems, building management systems, conirols,
security and mechanical equipment. In addition, the Building Efficiency business provides technical services, energy
management consulting and operations of entire real estate portfolios for the non-residential buildings market, The
Company also provides residential air conditioning and heating systems and industrial refrigeration products.

The Aufomotive Experience business is one of the world’s largest automolive suppliers, providing innovative
interior systems through our design and engincering expertise. The Company’s technologies extend into virtually
every area of the interior including scating and overhead systems, door systems, floor consoles, instrument panels,
cockpits and integrated elecironics. Customers include most of the world’s major automakers.

The Power Solutions business is a leading global supplier of lead-acid automotive batteries for virtually every type
of passenger car, light truck and utility vehicle. The Company serves both automotive original equipment
manufacturers {OEMs) and the general vehicle battery aftermarket. The Company also supplies advanced battery
technologies to power Start-Stop vehicles, hybrid and electric vehicles.

Financial Information About Business Segments

Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 280, “Segment Reporting,” establishes the standards for reporting
information about segments in financial statements. In applying the criteria set forth in ASC 280, the Company has
determined that it has nine reportable segments for financial reporting purposes. The Company’s nine reportable
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segments are presented in the context of its thige primary businesses - Building Efficiency, Autometive Expericnce
and Power Solutions,

Refer 10 Note 18, "Segment Information,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for financial information
about business segments.

For the purpose of the following discussion of the Company's businesses, the five Building Efficiency reportable
segments and the three Automotive Experience reportable segments are presented together due to their similar
customers and the similar nature of their products, production processes and distribution channels.

Products/Systems and Services
Building Efficiency

Building Ffficiency is a global leader in delivering integrated control systems, mechanical equipment, services and
solutions designed to improve the comfort, safety and energy efficiency of non-residential buildings and residential
properties with operations in 59 countries. Revenues come from facilities management, technical services and the
replacement and upgrade of HVAC controls and mechanical equipment in the existing buildings market, where the
Company’s large base of current customers leads to repeat business, as well as with installing controls and
equipment during the construction of new buildings. Customer relationships oflen span entire building lifecycles.

Building Efficiency sells its control systems, mechanical equipment and services primarily through the Company’s
extensive global network of sales and service offices, Some building controls and mechanical systems are sold to
distributors of air-conditioning, refrigeration and commercial heating systems throughout the world. Approximately
43% of Building Efficiency’s sales are derived from HVAC products and installed control systems for construction
and retrofit markets, including 13% of total sales related to new commercial construction. Approximately 57% of'its
sales originate from its service offerings. In fiscal 2012, Building Efficiency accounted for 35% of the Company’s
consolidated net sales.

The Company’s systems include York® chillers, industrial refrigeration products, air handlers and other HVAC
mechanical equipment that provide heating and cooling in non-residential buildings. The Metasys® control system
monitors and integrates HVAC equipment with other critical building systems to maximize comfort while reducing
energy and operating costs. As the largest global supplier of HVAC technical services, Building Efficiency stafls,
optimizes and repairs building systems made by the Company and its competitors. The Company offers a wide
range of solutions such as performance contracting under which guaranteed energy savings are used by the customer
to fund project costs over a number of years. In addition, the Global Workplace Solutions segment provides full-
time on-site operations staff and real estate and energy consulting services to help customers, especially multi-
national companies, reduce costs and improve the performance of their facility portfolios. The Company’s on-site
staff typically performs tasks related to the comfort and reliability of the facility, and manages subcontractors for
functions such as foodservice, cleaning, maintenance and landscaping. The Company also produces air conditioning
and heating cquipment for the residential market.

Automotive Experience

Automotive Experience designs and manufactures interior products and systems for passenger cars and light trucks,
including vans, pick-up trucks and sport/crossover utility vehicles, The business produces automotive interior
systems for original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) and operales approximately 240 wholly- and majority-owned
manufacturing or assembly plants, with operations in 33 countries worldwide. Additionally, the business has
partially-owned affiliates in Asia, Furope, North America and South America.

Automotive Experience products and systems include complete seating systems and components; cockpit systems,
including instrument panels and clusters, information displays and body controllers; overhead systems, including
headliners and elecironic convenience features; floor consoles; and door systems, In fiscal 2012, Automotive
Experience accounted for 51% of the Company’s consolidated net sales.

The business operates assembly plants that supply automotive OEMs with complete scats on a "just-in-time/in-
sequence” basis. Seats are assembled to specific order and delivered on a predetermincd schedule directly to an
automotive assembly line, Certain of the business’s other automotive interior systems arc also supplied on a “just-in-
time/in-sequence” basis, Foam, metal and plastic seating components, seal covers, seat mechanisms and other
components are shipped to these plants from the business’s production facilities or outside suppliers.
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Power Solutions

Power Solutions services both automolive OEMs and the battery aftermarket by providing energy storage
technology, coupled with systems engineering, marketing and service oxpertise, The Company is the largest
producer of lead-acid automotive batteries in the world, producing and distributing approximately 135 million lead-
acid batteries annually in approximately 60 wholly- and majority-owned manufacturing or assembly plants and sales
offices in 15 countries worldwide. Investments in new product and process technology have expanded product
offerings to absorbent glass mat (AGM) technology that powers Start-Stop vehicles, as well as lithium-ion battery
technology for certain hybrid and electric vehicles. Approximately 77% of unit sales worldwide in fiscal 2012 were
to the aulomotive replacement market, with the remaining sales to the OEM market,

Power Solutions accounted for 14% of the Company’s fiscal 2012 consolidated net sales, Batteries and key
components arc manufactured at wholly- and majority-owned plants in North America, South America, Asia and
Europe.

Cempetition
Bullding Efficiency

The Building Efficiency business conducts certain of its operations through thousands of individual contracts that
are either negotiated or awarded on a competitive basis. Key factors in the award of contracts include system and
service performance, quality, price, design, reputation, technology, application engineering capability and
construction or project management expertise, Competitors for contracts in the residential and non-residential
marketplace include many regional, national and international providers; larger competitors include Honeywell
International, Inc.; Siemens Building Technologies, an operating group of Siemens AG; Schneider Eleciric SA;
Carrier Corporation, a subsidiary of United Technologies Corporation; Trane Incorporated, a subsidiary of Ingersoll-
Rand Company Limited; Daikin Industries, I.1d.; Lennox International, Inc.; Goodman Global, Inc; CBRE, Inc.; and
Jones Lang LaSalle, Inc, The services market, including Global Workplace Solutions, is highly fragmented. Sales of
services are largely dependent upon numerous individual contracts with commercial businesses worldwide. The loss
of any individual contract would not have a material adverse effect on the Company.

Automotive Experience

The Automotive Experience business faces competition from other automotive suppliers and, with respect to certain
products, from the automobile OEMs who produce or have the capability to produce certain products the business
supplics. The automotive supply industry competes on the basis of technology, quality, reliability of supply and
price. Design, engineering and product planning are increasingly important factors. Independent suppliers that
represent the principal automotive experience competitors include Lear Corporation, Faurecia SA and Magna
International Inc.

Power Solutions

Power Solwions is the principal supplier of batleries to many of the largest merchants in the battery aftermarket,
including Advance Auto Parls, AutoZone, Robert Bosch GmbH, Costeo, NAPA, O°Reilly/CSK, Interstate Battery
System of America, Pep Boys, Sears, Roebuck & Co. and Wal-Mart stores. Automotive batteries are sold
throughout the world under private labels and under the Company’s brand names (Optima®, Varta®, LTH® and
Heliar®) to automotive replacement battery retailers and distributors and to automobile manufacturers as original
equipment. The Power Solutions business competes with a number of major domestic and international
manufacturers and distributors of lead-acid batieries, as well as a large number of smaller, regional competitors. The
Power Solutions business primarily competes in the battery market with Exide Technologies, GS Yuasa
Corporation, Fast Penn Manufaciuring Company and Fiamm Group. The North American, European and Asian
lead-acid battery markets are highly competitive. The manufacturers in these markels compete on price, quality,
technical innovation, service and warranty.

Backlog

The Company's backlog relating to the Building Efficiency business is applicable to its sales of systems and
services. At September 30, 2012, the backlog was $5.2 billion, the majority of which relates to fiscal 2013, The
backlog as of September 30, 2011 was $5.1 billion. The increase in backlog was primarily due to market share gains
and conditions in Asia, partially offset by a decline in the North America Service segment. The backlog does not
include amounts associated with contracts in the Global Workplace Solutions business because such contracts are
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typically multi-year service awards, nor does it include unitary products within the Other segment. The backlog
amount outstanding at any given lime is not necessarily indicative of the amount of revenue to be earned in the
upcoming fiscal year.

Raw Materials

Raw materials used by the businesses in connection with their operations, including lead, sieel, tin, aluminum,
urethane chemicals, copper, sulfuric acid and polypropylene, were readily available during the year, and the
Company expects such availabilily to continue. In fiscal 2013, commodity prices could fluctuate throughout the year
and could significantly affect the results of operations.

Intellectual Property

Generally, the Company seeks statutory protection for strategic or financially important intellectual property
developed in connection with its business. Certain intellectual property, where appropriate, is protected by contracts,
licenses, confidentiality or other agreements,

The Company owns numerous U.S. and non-U.S. patents {(and their respective counterparts), the more important of
which cover those technologies and inventions embodied in current products or which are used in the manufacturc
of those products. While the Company believes patents are important to its business operations and in the aggregate
constitute a valuable asset, no single patent, or group of patents, is critical to the success of the business. The
Company, from time to time, grants licenses under its patents and technology and receives licenses under patents
and technology of others.

The Company's trademarks, certain of which are material to its business, are registered or otherwise legally
protected in the U.S. and many non-U.S. countries where products and services of the Company are sold. The
Company, from time to time, becomes involved in trademark licensing transactions.

Most works of authorship produced for the Company, such as computer programs, catalogs and sales literature,
catry appropriate notices indicating the Company's claim to copyright protection under U.S. law and appropriate
international treaties.

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Laws addressing the protection of the environment (environmental laws) and workers’ safety and health (worker
safety laws) govern the Company’s ongoing global operations. They gencrally provide for civil and criminal
penalties, as well as injunctive and remedial relief, for noncompliance or require remediation of sites where
Company-related materials have been released into the environment.

The Company has expended substantial resources globally, both financial and managerial, to comply with
environmental laws and worker safety laws and maintains procedures designed to foster and ensure compliance.
Certain of the Company's businesses are, or have been, engaged in the handling or use of substances that may
impact workplace health and safety or the environment. The Company is committed to protecting its workers and
the environment against the risks associated with these substances.

The Company’s operations and facilities have been, and in the future may become, the subject of formal ot informal
enforcement actions or proceedings for noncompliance with environmental laws and worker safety laws or for the
remediation of Company-related substances released into the environment. Such matters typically are resolved by
negotiation with regulatory authorities that result in commitments to compliance, abatemeni or remediation
programs and, in some cases, payment of penalties, Historically, neither such commitments nor such penaltics have
been material. (See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings,” of this report for a discussion of the Company's potential
environmental liabilities.)

Environmental Capital Expenditures

The Company's ongoing environmental compliance program often results in capital expenditures. Environmental
considerations arc a part of all significant capital expenditure decisions; however, expenditures in fiscal 2012 related
solely to environmental compliance were nol material. It is management's opinion that the amount of any future
capital expenditures related solely to environmental compliance will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial results or competitive position in any one year.
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Employees

As of September 30, 2012, the Company employed approximately 170,000 employecs, of whom approximately
107,000 were hourly and 63,000 were salaried.

Seasenal Factors

Certain of Building Lfficiency’s sales are seasonal as the demand for residential air conditioning eguipment
generally increases in the summer months. This seasonality is mitigated by the other products and services provided
by the Building Efficiency business that have no material seasonal effect.

Sales of aulomotive seating and interior systems and of batteries to automobile OIMs for use as original equipment
are dependent upon the demand for new automobiles. Management believes that demand for new automobiles
generally reflects sensitivity to overall economic conditions with no material seasonal effect.

The automotive replacement battery market is affected by weather patterns because batteries are more likely to fail
when extremely low temperatures place substantial additional power requirements upon a vehicle's electrical system.
Also, battery life is shortened by extremely high temperatures, which accelerate corrosion rates. Therefore, either
mild winter or moderate summer temperatures may adversely affect automotive replacement battery sales,

Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Refer to Note 18, “Segment Information,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for financial information
about geographic arcas.

Research and Development Expenditures

Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for
research and development expenditures.

Available Information

The Company’s filings with the 1.8, Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including annual reports on Form
10-K, quarterly reporis on Form 10-Q, definitive proxy statements on Schedule 14A, current repoits on Form 8-K,
and any amendments to those reports filed pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
are made available free of charge through the Investor Relations scction of the Company’s Internet website at
http//wwiw.johnsonconirols.com as soon as reasonably practicable after the Company electronically files such
material with, or furnishes it to, the SEC. Copies of any materials the Company files with the SEC can aiso be
obtained free of charge through the SEC’s website at hitp:/www.sec.gov, at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, N.13., Washington, D.C. 20549, or by calling the SEC’s Office of Investor Education and Advocacy at
1-800-732-0330. The Company also makes available, free of charge, its Ethics Policy, Corporate Governance
Guidelines, Board of Directors committee charters and other information related to the Company on the Company’s
Internet website or in printed form upon request. The Company is not including the information contained on the
Company’s website as a part of, or incorporating it by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS
General Risks

General economic, credit and capital market conditions could adversely affect our financial performance,
may affect our ability te grow or sustain our businesses and could negatively affect our ability to access the
capital markets.

We compete around the world in various geographic regions and product markets. Global economic conditions
affect each of our three primary businesses. As we discuss in greater detail in the specilic risk factors for each of our
businesses that appear below, any future financial distress in the automotive industry or residential and commercial
construction markets could negatively aflect our revenues and financial performance in future periods, resull in
future restructuring charges, and adversely impact our ability to grow or sustain our businesses.

The capital and credit markets provide us with liquidity to operate and grow our businesses beyond the liquidity that
operating cash flows provide. A worldwide economic downturn and disruption of the credit markets could reduce
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our access to capital necessary for our operations and executing our strategic plan. 1f our access to capital were to
become significanily constrained or costs of capital increased significantly due to lowered credit ratings, prevailing
industry conditions, the volatility of the capital markets or other factors, then our financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows could be adversely affected. The Company’s $2.5 billion four-year revolving credit
facility expires in February 2015. The Company plans to renew the facility prior to its expiration.

We are subject to pricing pressure from our automotive customers.

We face significant competitive pressures in all of our business scgments. Because of their purchasing size, our
automotive customers can influence market participants to compete on price terms, If we are not able 1o offset
pricing reductions resulting from these pressures by improved operating efficiencies and reduced expenditures, those
pricing reduciions may have an adverse impact on our business.

We are subject to risks associated with our non-U.S. operations that could adversely affect our results of
operations.

We have significant operations in a number of countries outside the U.S., some of which are located in emerging
markets, Long-term economic uncertainty in some of the regions of the world in which we operate, such as Asia,
South America, the Middle East, Central Burope and other emerging markets, could result in the disruption of
markets and negatively affect cash flows from our operations to cover our capital needs and debt service. The
sovereign debt crisis in countries in which we operate in Europe could negatively impact our access to, and cosi of]
capital, and therefore could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and
competitive position.

In addition, as a result of our global presence, a significant portion of our revenues and expenses is denominated in
currencies other than the U.S. dollar, We are therefore subject to foreign currency risks and foreign exchange
exposure. Our primary exposures are to the curo, British pound, Japanese yen, Czech koruna, Mexican peso,
Romanian lei, Hungarian forint, Polish zloty, Canadian doHar and Chinese renminbi. While we employ financial
instruments to hedge transactional foreign exchange exposure, these activities do not insulate us completely from
those exposures. Exchange rates can be volatile and could adversely impact our {inancial results and comparability
of results from period to period. Specifically, there is concern regarding the overall stability of the euro and the
future of the euro as a single currency given the diverse economic and political circumstances in individual
Eurozone countrics. Potential negative developments and market perceptions related to the euro could adversely
affect the value of our euro-denominated assets, as well as those of our customers and suppliers.

There are other risks that are inherent in our non-U.S. operations, including the potential for changes in socio-
economic conditions, laws and regulations, including import, export, labor and environmental laws, and monefary
and fiscal policies; protectionist measures that may prohibit acquisitions or joint ventures, or impact trade volumes;
unsettled political conditions; government-imposed plant or other operational shutdowns; corruption; natural and
man-made disasters, hazards and losses; violence, civil and labor unrest, and possible terrorist aitacks.

These and other factors may have a material adverse effect on our non-1L.S. operations and therefore on our business
and results of operations.

We are subject to regnlation of our international operations that could adversely affeet our business and
results of operations.

Due to our global operations, we are subject to many laws governing international relations, including those that
prohibit improper payments to government officials and commercial customers, and restrict where we can do
business, what information or preducts we can supply fo cettain countries and what information we can provide to a
non-U,S. government, including but not limited to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, U.K. Bribery Act and the U.S,
Export Administration Act. Violations of these laws, which arc complex, may result in criminal penalties or
sanctions that could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Global climate change could negatively affect our business.

Increased public awareness and concern regarding global climate change may result in more regional and/or federal
requirements to reduce or mitigate the effects of greenhouse gas emissions. There continues to be a lack of
consistent climate legistation, which creates economic and regulatory uncertainty. Such regulatory uncertainty
extends to future incentives for energy efficicnt buildings and vehicles and costs of compliance, which may impact
the demand for our products, obsolescence of our products and our results of operations.
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There is a prowing consensus that greenhouse gas emissions are linked 1o global climate changes. Climate changes,
such as extreme weather conditions, create financial risk to our business. For example, the demand for our products
and services, such as residential air conditioning equipment and automotive replacement batteries, may be affected
by unseasonable weather conditions. Climate changes could also disrupt our operations by impacting the availability
and cost of materials needed for manufacturing and could increase insurance and other operating costs. These factors
may impact our decisions (o construct new facilitics or maintain existing facilities in areas most prone to physical
climate risks. The Company could also face indirect financial risks passed through the supply chain, and process
disruptions due to physical climate changes could result in price modifications for our products and the resources
needed to produce them.

New regulations related to conflict minerals could adversely impact our business,

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act contains provisions to improve transparency and
accountability concerning the supply of certain minerals, known as conflict minerals, originating from the
Democratic Republic of Congo (DRC) and adjoining countries. As a result, in August 2012 the SEC adopted annual
disclosure and reporting requiremenis for those companies whe use conflict minerals mined from the DRC and
adjoining countries in their products. These new requirements will require due diligence efforts in fiscal 2013, with
initial disclosure requirements beginning in May 2014, There will be costs associated with complying with these
disclosure requirements, including for diligence to determine the sources of conflict minerals used in our products
and other poteniial changes to products, processes or sources of supply as a consequence of such verification
activities. The implementation of these rules could adversely affect the sourcing, supply and pricing of materials
used in our products. As there may be only a limited number of suppliers offering “conflict free” conflict minerals,
we cannot be sure that we will be able to obtain necessary conflict minerals fiom such suppliers in sufficient
quantitics or at competitive prices. Also, we may face reputational challenges if we determine that certain of our
products contain minerals not determined to be conflict free or if we are unable to sufficiently verify the origins for
all conflict minerals used in our products through the procedures we may implement.

We are subject to requirements relating to environmental regulation and environmental remediation matters,
which could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Because of uncertainties associated with environmental regulation and environmental remediation activities at sites
where we may be liable, future expenses that we may incur to remediate identified sites could be considerably
higher than the current accrued liability on our consolidated statement of financial position, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business and results ol operations.

Risks related to our defined benefit retirement plans may adversely impact our results of operations and eash
flow.

Significant changes in actual investment return on defined benefit plan assets, discount rates, and other factors could
adversely affect owr results of operations and the amounts of contributions we must make to our defined benefit
plans in future periods. U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that we calculate income or expense
for the plans using actuarial valuations. These valuations reflect assumptions about financial markets and interest
rates, which may change based on economic conditions, Funding requirements for our defined benefit plans are
dependent upon, among other things, interest rates, underlying assetl returns and the impact of legislative or
regulatory changes related to defined benefit funding obligations. For a discussion regarding the significant
assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost, refer to “Crilical Accounting Estimates and Policies”
included in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Negative or unexpected tax consequences could adversely affect our results of operations.

Adverse changes in the underlying profitability and financial outlook of our operations in several jurisdictions could
lead to changes in our valuation allowances against deferred tax assets and other tax reserves on our statement of
financial position thal could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, Additionally, changes in tax
faws in the U.S. or in other countries where we have significant operations could materially affeci deferred lax assets
and liabilities on our consolidated statement of financial position and tax expense.

We are also subject to tax audits by governmental authorities in the U.S. and in non-U.S, jurisdictions. Negative
unexpected results from one or more such tax audits could adversely affect our results of operations.




Legal proceedings in which we are, or may be, a party may adversely affect us.

We are currently and may in the future become subject to legal proceedings and commercial or contractual disputes.
These are typically claims that arise in the normal course of business including, without limitation, commercial or
contraciual disputes with our suppliers, intellectual property maltters, third party liability, including product liability
claims and employment claims, There exists the possibility that such claims may have an adverse impact on our
results of operations that is greater than we anficipate.

An investigation by the European Commission (EC) related to European lead recyclers® procurement practices is
currently underway, with the Company one of several named companies subject to review. The Company cannot
predict the ultimate financial impact, as the investigation is al a very preliminary stage. We will continue to
cooperate with the EC in their investigation and monitor refated commercial and financial implications, if any. The
Company’s policy is to comply with antitrust and competition laws and, if a violation of any such laws is found, to
take appropriate remedial action and to cooperate fully with any related governmental inquiry. Competition and
antitrust law investigations may continue for several years and can resull in substantial fines depending on the
gravity and duration of the violations.

A downgrade in the ratings of our debt could restrict our ability to access the debt capital markets and
increase our interest costs.

Changes in the ratings that rating agencies assign to our debt may ultimately impact our access to the debt capital
markets and the costs we incur to borrow funds. If ratings for our debt fall below investment grade, our access to the
debt capital markets would become restricled. Tightening in the credit markets and the reduced level of liquidity in
many financial markets due to turmoil in the financial and banking industries could affect our access to the debt
capital markets or the price we pay to issue debt. Historically, we have relied on our ability to issue commerciai
paper rather than to draw on our credit facility to support our daily operations, which means that a downgrade in our
ratings ot continued volatility in the financial markets causing limitations to the debt capital markets could have an
adverse effect on our business or our ability to meet our liguidity needs.

Additionally, several of our credit agreements generally include an increase in interest rates if the ratings for our
debt are downgraded, Further, an increase in the level of owr indcbtedness may increase our vulnerability to adverse
general economic and industry conditions and may affect our ability to obtain additional financing.

We are subject to potential insolvency or financial distress of third parties.

We are exposed to the risk that third parties to various arrangements who owe us money or goods and services, or
who purchase goods and services from us, will not be able to perforim their obligations or continue to place ordeis
due to insolvency or financial distress. If third parties fail to perform their obligations under arrangements with us,
we may be forced to replace the underlying commitment at current or above market prices or on other terms that are
less favorable to us. In such events, we may incur fosses, or our results of operations, financial position or liguidity
could otherwise be adversely atfected.

We may be unable to complete or integrate acquisitions effectively, which may adversely affect our growth,
profitability and results of operations,

We expect acquisitions of businesses and assets to play a role in our future growth. We cannot be certain that we
will be able to identify attractive acquisition targets, obtain financing for acquisitions on satisfactory terms,
successfully acquire identified targets or manage timing of acquisilions with capital obligations across our
businesses. Additionally, we may not be successful in integrating acquired businesses into our existing operations
and achieving projected synergies. Competition for acquisition opportunities in the various industries in which we
operale may rise, thereby increasing our costs of making acquisitions or causing us to refrain from making further
acquisitions. We are also subject to applicable antitrust laws and must avoid anticompetitive behavior. These and
other acquisition-related factors may negatively and adversely impact our growth, profitability and results of
operations.

We are subject to business continuity risks associated with centralization of certain administrative functions.

We have been and are in the process of regionally centralizing certain administrative functions, primarily in North
America, Europe and Asia, to improve efficiency and reduce costs. To the extent that these central locations are
disrupted or disabled, key business processes, such as invoicing, payments and general management operations,
could be interrupted.
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A failure of our information technology (IT) infrastructure could adversely impact our business and
operations,

We rely upon the capacity, reliability and security of our information technology infrastructure and our abifity to
¢xpand and continually update this infrastructure in response to the changing needs of our business, For example, we
are implementing new enterprise resource planning and other IT systems in certain of our businesses over a period
of scveral years. As we implement the new systems, they may not perform as expected. We also face the chailenge
of supporting our older systems and implementing nccessary upgrades. If we experience a problem with the
functioning of an important I'T system or a security breach of our I'T systems, the resulting disruptions could have an
adverse effecl on our business.

We and certain of owr third-party vendors receive and store personal information in connection with our human
resources operations and other aspects of our business. Despite our implementalion of security measures, our IT
systems are vulnerable to damages from computer viruses, natural disasters, unauthorized access, cyber attack and
other similar disruptions, Any system failure, accident or security breach could result in disruptions to our
operations. A material network breach in the security of our IT systems could include the theft of our intellectual
property or trade secrets, To the extent that any disruptions or security breach results in a loss or damage to our data,
or an inappropriate disclosure of confidential information, it could cause significant damage to our reputation, affect
our relationships with our customers, lead to claims against the Company and ultimately harm our business. In
addition, we may be required to incur significant costs fo protect against damage caused by these disruptions or
security breaches in the future.

Our business success depends on attracting and retaining qualified personnel.

Our ability to sustain and grow our business requires us to hirve, retain and develop a highly skilled and diverse
management team and workforce. Failure to ensure that we have the leadership capacity with the necessary skill set
and experience could impede our ability to deliver our growth objectives and execute our strategic plan. Any
unplanned turnover or inability to attract and retain key employees could have a negative effect on our results of
operations.

Building Efficiency Risks

Failure to comply with regulations duc te our contracts with U.S. gevernment entities could adversely affect
our business and resulis of operations,

Our Building Efficiency business contracts with government entities and is subject to specific rules, regulations and
approvals applicable to government contractors. We are subject to routine audits by the Defense Contract Audit
Agency to assure our compliance with these requirements. Qur failure to comply with these or other laws and
regulations could result in contract terminations, suspension or debarment from contracting with the 1.8, federal
government, civil fines and damages and criminal prosecution, In addition, changes in procurement policies, budget
considerations, unexpected U.S. developments, such as terrorist attacks, or similar political developments or events
abroad that may change the U.S. federal government’s national security defense posture may affect sales to
government entities,

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affect our results of operations.

Increases in commedity costs negatively impact the profitability of orders in backlog as prices on those orders are
fixed; therefore, in the short-term we cannot adjust for changes in commodity prices. If we are not able to recover
commadity cost increases through price increases to our customers on new orders, then such increases will have an
adverse effect on our results of operations. Additionally, unfavorability in our hedging programs during a period of
declining commodity prices could result in lower margins as we reduce prices to match the market on a fixed
commodity cost level.

Conditions in the residential and commercial new construction markets may adversely affect our resulis of
operations.

HVAC cquipment sales in the residential and commercial new construction markets correlate to the number of new
homes and buildings that are built. The strength of the residential and commercial markets depends in parl on the
availability of consumer and commercial financing for our customers, along with inventory and pricing of existing
homes and buildings. If economic and credit market conditions worsen, it may result in a decline in the residential
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housing construction market and construction of new commercial buildings. Such conditions could have an adverse
cffect on our results of operations and result in potential liabilities or additional costs, including impairment charges.

A variety of other factors could adversely affect the results of operations of our Building Efficiency business,

Any of the following could materially and adversely impact the results of operations of our Building Efficiency
business: loss of, changes in, or failure to perform under facility management supply contracts or other guaranteed
performance contracts with our major customers; cancellation of, or significant delays in, projects in our backlog;
delays or difficulties in new product development; the potential introduction of similar or superior technologics;
financial instability or market declines of our major component suppliers; the unavailability of raw materials
{primarily steel, copper and electronic components) necessary for production of HVAC equipment; price increases
of limited-source components, products and services that we are unable to pass on to the market; unseasonable
weather conditions in various parts of the world; changes in energy costs or governmental regulations that would
decrease the incentive for customers to update or improve their building control systems; revisions to enecrgy
efficicney legislation; a decline in the outsourcing of facility management services; availability of fabor to support
growth of our service businesses; and natural or man-made disasters or losses that impact our ability fo deliver
facility management and other products and services to our customers.

Automotive Experience Risks

Conditions in the automotive industry may adversely affect our results of operations.

Our financial performance depends, in part, on conditions in the automotive industry. In fiscal 2012, our largest
customers globally were automobile manufacturers Ford Motor Company (Ford), Daimler AG and General Motors
Corporation (GM). If autemakers experience a decline in the number of new vehicle sales, we may experience
reductions in orders fiom these customers, incur write-offs of accounts receivable, incur impairment charges or
require-additional restructuring actions beyond our current restructuring-plans; particularly if any of the automakers
cannot adequately fund their operations or experience financial distress.

Uncertainty related to the economic conditions in Europe may adverscly affect our results of eperations.

Automakers across Europe are experiencing difficulties from a weakened economy and tightening credit markets,
As a result, we have experienced and may continue to experience reductions in orders from these OEM customers.
A prolonged downturn in the European automotive indusiry or a significant change in product mix due 1o consumer
demand could require us to shut down additional plants or result in additional impairment charges, restructuring
actions or changes in our valuation allowances againsi deferred tax assets, which could be material to our
consolidated financial statements. Continued uncertainty relating to the economic conditions in Europe may
continue to have an adverse impact on our business.

Financial distress of the automotive supply chain conld harm our results of operations,

Automotive industry conditions could adversely affect the original equipment supplicr base. Lower production
levels for key customers, increases in cettain raw material, commodity and energy costs and global credit market
conditions could result in financial distress among many companies within the automotive supply base. Financial
distress within the supplicr base may lead to commercial disputes and possible supply chain interruptions, which in
turn could disrapt our production. Tn addition, an adverse indusiry environment may require us to provide financial
support to distressed suppliers or take other measures to ensure uninterrupted production, which could involve
additional costs or risks, If any of these risks materialize, we are likely to incur losses, or our results of operations,
financial position or liquidity could otherwise be adversely affected.

Change in consumer demand may adversely affect our results of operations.

Increases in energy costs or other factors (e.g., climate change concerns) may shift consumer demand away from
motor vehicles that typically have higher interior content that we supply, such as light trucks, cross-over vehicles,
minivans and SUVs, to smaller vehicles having less interior content. The loss of business with respect to, or a lack
of commercial success of, one or more particular vehicle models for which we are a significant supplier could
reduce our sales and harm our profitability, thereby adversely affecting our results of operations.
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We may not be able to successfully negotiate pricing terms with our customers in the Automotive Experience
business, which may adversely affect our results of operations.

We negotiate sales prices annually with our automotive customers. Cost-cutting initiatives that our customers have
adopted generally result in increased downward pressure on pricing. In some cases our customer supply agreements
require reductions in component pricing over the period of production. If we are unable to generate sufficient
production cost savings in the future to offset price reductions, our results of operations may be adversely affected.
In particular, large commercial settlements with our customers may adversely affect our results of operations or
cause our financial results to vary on a quarterly basis,

Volatility in commodity prices may adversely affect our results of operations.

Commodity prices can be volatile from year to year. If commodity prices rise, and if we are not able to recover these
cost increases from our customers, these increases will have an adverse effect on our results of operations,

The cyclieality of original equipment automobile production rates may adversely affect the results of
operations in our Automotive Experience business.

Our Automotive Experience business is directly related o automotive production by our customers. Automotive
praoduction and sales are highly cyclical and depend on general economic conditions and other factors, including
consumer spending and preferences. An economic decline that results in a reduction in automotive production by
our Automotive Experience customers could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations.

A variety of other factors could adversely affect the results of operations of our Autemotive Experience
business,

Any of the following could materially and adversely impact the results of operations of our Automotive Experience
business: the loss of, or changes in, automobile supply contracts or sourcing strategies with our major customers or
suppliers; start-up expenses associaled with new vehicle programs or delays or cancellations of such programs;
underutilization of our manufacturing facilities, which are generally locaied near, and devoted lo, a particular
customet’s facility; inability to recover engineering and tooling costs; market and financial consequerces of any
recalls that may be required on products that we have supplied; delays or difficulties in new product development;
quantity and complexity of new program launches, which are subject to our customers® timing, performance, design
and quality standards; interruption of supply of cettain single-source components; the potential introduction of
similar or superior technologies; changing nature of our joint ventures and relationships with our strategic business
partners; and global overcapacity and vehicle platform proliferation.

Power Solutions Risks
We face competition and pricing pressure from other companies in the Power Solutions business,

Our Power Solutions business competes with a number of major domestic and international manufacturers and
disteibutors of lead-acid batteries, as well as a large number of smaller, regional competitors. The North American,
European and Asian lead-acid battery markets are highly competitive. The manufacturers in these markets compete
on price, quality, technical innovation, service and warranty, If we are unable to remain competitive and maintain
market share in the regions and markets we serve, our results of operations may be adversely affected.

Volatility in commntodity prices may adversely affect our results of operations.

Lead is a major component of our lead-acid batteries, and the price of lead may be highly volatile. We attempt to
manage the impact of changing lead prices through the recycling of used batteries returned to us by our aftermarket
customers, commercial lerms and commedity hedging programs. Our ability to mitigate the impact of lead price
changes can be impacted by many factors, including customer negotiations, inventory level fluctuations and sales
volume/mix changes, any of which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Additionally, the prices of other commodities, primarily fuel, acid, resin and tin, may be volatile. If other commodity
prices rise, and if we are not able to recover these cost increases through price increases to our customers, such
increases will have an adverse effcct on our results of operations. Moreover, the implementation of any price
increases to our customers could negatively impact demand for our products.
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Decreased demand from our customers in the automotive industry may adversely affect our results of
operations.

Our financial performance in the Power Solutions business depends, in part, on conditions in the automotive
industry. Sales to OEMs accounted for approximately 23% of the total sales of the Power Solutions business in
fiscal 2012. Declines in the North American and European automotive production levels could reduce our sales and
adversely affect our resufts of operations. In addition, If any OEMs reach a point where they cannot fund their
operations, we may incur write-offs of accounts receivable, incur impairment charges or requirc additional
restructuring actions beyond our current restructuring plans.

A variety of other factors could adversely affect the results of operations of our Power Solutions business.

Any of the following could materially and adversely impact the results of operations of our Power Solutions
business: loss of, or changes in, automobile battery supply coniracts with our large original cquipment and
aftermarket customers; the increasing quality and useful life of batteries or use of alternative battery technologics,
both of which may contribute to a growth slowdown in the lead-acid battery market; delays or cancellations of new
vchicle programs; market and financial consequences of any recalls that may be required on our produets; delays or
difficulties in new product development, including lithium-ion technology; impact of potential increases in lithium-
ion battery volumes on established lead-acid battery volumes as lithium-ion ballery technology grows and costs
become more competitive; financial instability or market declines of our customers or suppliers; interruption of
supply of certain single-source components; changing nature of our joint ventures and relationships with our
strategic business partners; unseasonable weather conditions in various paris of the world; increasing global
environmental and safety regulations related to the manufacturing and recycling of lead-acid batteries, and
{ransportation of battery materials; our ability 1o secure sufficient tolling capacity to recycle batteries; price and
availability of battery cores used in recycling; and the lack of the development of a market for hybrid and electric
vehicles.

ITEM 1B UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

The Company has no unresolved written comments regarding its periodic or current reports from the staff of the
SEC,
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ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

At Seplember 30, 2012, the Company conducted its operations in 67 countries throughout the world, with its world
headquarters located in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. The Company’s wholly- and majority-owned facilities, which are
listed in the table on the following pages by business and location, totaled approximately 88 million square feet of
floor space and are owned by the Company except as noted. The facilitics primarily consisted of manufacturing,
assembly and/or warchouse space, The Company considers its facilities to be suitable and adequate for their current
uses. The majority of the facilitics are operating at normal levels based on capacity.

Building Efficiency

Arirona Phoenix {1),(4) Austria Vienna (4)
California Fremont (1),(4) Beigium Diegem {1),(4)
Roseville (1),{4) Brazil Pinhais (1),(4)
Simi Valley (1),(4) Canada Ajax (1).(3)
Whittier (4) Oalcville (1),(4)
Delaware Newark (1),(4) Victoria {1),{(4)
Florida Largo (1),(3) China Beijing (1),(4)
Medley (1),(4) Datian (1),(4)
Georgia Atfanta (1),(4) Guangzhou (1),(4)
iftinois Arlington Heights (4) Qingywan (2),(3)
Ehnbarst (1),(4) Wuxi (2),(3)
Wheeling (1),(4) Denmark Homslet (2),(4)
Kansas Lenexa (1),(4) Viby (2),(3)
Wichita (2),(3) France Carquefou Cedex (3}
Kentucky Eranger (1) Cotombes (1),(3)
Louisvitle (1),(4) Nantes {1}
Maryland Baltimore (1),{4) Germany Essen (1),{3)
Capitol Heights (1),(4) Flensburg (1)
Rossvilie (1) Hamburg {1),(3)
Sparks {1),(4) Kempen {t)
Massachusetts Lynnfield (4) Mannheim (1),(3)
Michigan Sterling Hoights {1).(4) Hong Kong Hong Kong (1),{3)
Minnesota Plymouth (1) (4) Tndia Chakan (1),{3)
Mississippi Hattiesburg (1) Pune (1},(3)
Missouri Albany Ttaly Milan (1),(3)
St, Louis (1),(4) Japan Tekyo (1),(4)
New Jersey Hainesport (1),{4) Mexico Apodaca (1)
North Carolina Charlotte (1),(4) Durango
Oregon Portiand (1),(4) Juarez (3)
Oklahoma Norman {3) Monterrey (1),(3)
Pennsylvania Audubon (1),(4) Reynosa (3}
York (1) Netherlands Dordrecht (3)
Waynesboro (3} Gorinchem (1},(3)
Texas Housten (1),(4) Poland Warsaw (1),(3)
Trving (4) Russia Moscow (1),(3)
San Antonio South Affica Jehannesburg (1),(4)
Washington Fife (1),(4) Spain Sabadell (1),(3)
Wisconsin Milwaukee (2).(4) Turkey Manisa (1)
Wankesha (1),(4) United Arab Emirates Dubai (2),(3)




Automotive Experience

Alabama

Georgia

Hlinois

Indiana
Kentucky

Louisiana
Michigan

Missouri

Ohio

Tennessee

Texas

Calera (1) Argentina
Clanton

Cottondale

Eastaboga Augtralia
McCalla (1) Austria
LaGrange (1)

West Point (1) Belgivm
Chicago (1)

Sycamore Brazil
Kendallville

Cadiz

Georgetown (2)

Louisville (1)

Owensboro (1)

Shelbyville (1)

Winchester (1) Bulgaria
Shreveport Canada
Auburn Hills (1)

Baitle Creek

Cascade (1)

Croswell {1) China
Detroit

Highland Park ()

Holland {2),(3)

Kentwood (1) Czech Republic
Lansing {2)

Monroe (1)

Port Huron {1)

Plymouth (2),(4)

Romulus (1)

Taylor (1)

Troy (1} France
Warren (1)

Eldon (2)

Kansas City (1)

Riverside (1)

Bryan

Greenficld

Northwood

Wauseon

Columbia (1)

Franklin

Murfreesboro (2)

Pulaski (1)

El Paso (1)

San Antonio (1}
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Buenos Aires (1)
Cordoba (f)

Rosario

Adelaide (1)

Graz (1)

Mandling

Assenede (1)

Geel (1),(4)

Gravatai

Pouso Alegre

Quatro Barras (2)
San Bemardo do Campo
Santo Andre (1)

Sao Jose dos Campos
Sao Jose dos Pinhais (1}
Sofia {£),(4)

Milton

Mississauga (1)
Tiltlsonburg

Whitby (2)

Beijing (3)

Kunshan (1),(3)
Shanghai (1),(3)
Shenyang (£),(3)
Benatky (1}

Ceska Lipa (4)
Milada Boleslav (1}
Roudnice

Rychnov (1}
Strakonice

Straz pod Ralskem
Cergy (1).(4)
Conflans-sur-Lanterne
Crentzwald
Fesches-le-Chatel (1)
La Ferte Bernard
Rosny

Strasbourg



Automoftive Experience (continued)

Germany

Ttaly

Japan

Korea

Macedonia
Malaysia

Mexico

Boblingen (1)
Bochum (2}
Bremen (1}
Burscheid (2),(4)
Dautphe (2)
Tspelkamyp
Grefrath
Hannover (1)
Hilchenbach (2)
Holzgerlingen (1}
Kaiserstautern
Katlsruhe (1),(4)
Luneburg
Mannweiler (1)
Markgroningen {1)
Neustadt

Rastatt {1)
Remscheid (1)
Rockenhausen
Saarlouis (1)
Solingen
Uberherra
‘Waghausel (3)
Zwickau
Grugliasco (1)
Melfi

QOgtiastro Cilento
Rocca D'Evandro
Avase (1)
Hamamatsu
Higashiomi
Shibahara (3)
Yokohama (1),(4)
Yokosuka (2)
Ansan (1).(4)
Asan

Skopje

Melaka (1)
Pekan (1)

Perak Darul Redzuan (1)
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Coahuila (1)
Ecapetec Edo (1)
Juarez (2)

Lerma (1}
Matamaros (1)
Monclova
Puebla (2)
Ramos Arizpe
Reynosa (1)
Saltilio (2)
Tlaxcala

Toluca (i)
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Poland

Portugal
Repubtic of Slovenia

Romania

Russia

Slovak Republic

South Affica

Spain

Sweden
Thailand

Tunesia

Turkey

United Kingdom

Bicrun
Siemianowice
Skarbimierz (1)
Swichodzin
Zory

Palmela

Novo Mcesto (1)
Stovenj Gradec (3)
Bradu

Craiova (1)
Jimbolia (1)
Mioveni (1)
Pitesti (1)
Ploesti
Timisoara (1)
St. Petersburg (1)}
Togliatti {1}
Bratislava (1),(4)
Kostany nad Turcom (2)
Lozorno (1)
Lucence (2)
Namestovo (1)
Trencin (1)
Zilina (2)
Chloorkop (1)
East London (1)
Korsten
Pretoria
Swartkops (1)
Uitenhage (1)
Wynberg (1}
Abrera

Alagon
Almussafes (2)
Calatorao (1)
Pedroia
Redondela (1}
Valladolid
Gofeburg (1)
Chonburi (1)
Rayong

Bi'ral Bay (1)
Bursa (2)
Kocaeli
Birmingham
Burton-Upon-Trent
Eltesmere (1)
Garston (1)
Sunderland
Telford (1)
Wednesbury



Power Solutions

Arizona Yuma {3) Austria Graz (1)
Delaware Middletown (3) Vienna (1)
Florida Tampa (3) Brazil Sorocaba (3)
Hlinois Geneva (3) China Changxing (3}
Indiana Ft. Wayne (3) Chongging (3)
lowa Red Oak (3) Shanghai (2),(3)
Kentucky Florence (1),(3) Czech Republic Ceska Lipa (2),(3)
Michigan Holland (3} France Nersac (1),(4)
Missouri 5t. Joseph (2),(3) Rouea
North Carolina Kernersville (3) Sarreguemines (3)
Ohio Toledo (3) Germany Hannover (3}
Oregon Portland (2),(3) Krautscheid (3)
South Carolina Florence (3) Zavickau (2),(3)
Oconee (3) Korea Guimi (2),(3)
Texas San Antonio (3) Mexico Celaya
Wisconsin Milwaukee (4} Cienega de Flores (1)
Escobedo
Flores
Garcia
San Pedro (1),(4)
Tlalnepantla (1),(4)
Terreon
Spain Burgos
Guadamar del Segura
Guadalajara (1)
1bi (3)
Sweden Hasltsfred
Corporate
Wisconsin Milwaukee (4)
¢} Leased facility
()] Includes both leased and owned facilities
3) Includes both administrative and manufacturing facilities
4) Administrative facility only

In addition to the above listing, which idemtifies large properties (greater than 25,000 square feet), there are
approximately 570 Building LEfficicncy branch offices and other administrative offices located in major cities
throughout the world. These offices are primarily leased facilities and vary in size in proportion to the volume of
business in the particular locality.

ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As noted in Item 1, [iabilities potentially arise globally under various environmental laws and worker safety faws for
activities that are not in compliance with stch laws and for the cleanup of sites where Company-related substances
have been released into the environment,

Currently, the Company is responding to allegations that it is responsible for performing envirommental remediation,
or for the repayment of costs spent by governmental entities or others performing remediation, at approximately 38
sites in the United States. Many of these sites arc landfills used by the Company in the past for the disposal of waste
materials; others are secondary lead smelters and lead recycling sites where the Company returned lead-containing
materials for recycling; a few involve the cleanup of Company manufacturing facilities; and the remaining {all into
misceflaneous categories. The Company may face similar claims of liability at additional sites in the future, Where
potential liabilities are alleged, the Company pursues a course of action intended to mitigate them.
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The Company accrues for potential environmental liabilities in a manner consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States; that is, when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of
the liability is reasonably estimable. Reserves for environmental liabilities totaled $25 million and $30 million at
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company reviews the status of its environmental sites on a
quarterly basis and adjusts its reserves accordingly. Such potential liabilities accrued by the Company do net take
into consideration possible recoveries of future insurance proceeds, They do, however, take into account the likely
share other pariies will bear at remediation sites. 1t is difficult to estimate the Company's ultimate level of liability at
many remediation sites due to the large number of other parties that may be involved, the complexity of determining
the relative liability among those parties, the uncertainty as to the nature and scope of the investigations and
remediation to be conducted, the uncertainty in the application of law and risk assessment, the various choices and
costs associated with diverse technologies that may be used in corrective actions at the sites, and the often guite
lengthy periods over which eventual remediation may occur, Nevertheless, the Company does not currently believe
that any claims, penaltics or costs in connection with known environmental malters will have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In addition, the Company has
identified asset retirement obligations for environmental matters that are expected to be addressed at the retirement,
disposal, removal or abandonment of existing owned facilities, primarily in the Powcr Solutions business. At
September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded conditional asset retirement obligations of $76 million and
$91 million, respectively.

The Company is involved in a number of product liability and various other casualty lawsuits incident to the
operation of its businesses. The Company maintains insurance coverages and records estimated costs for claims and
suits of this nature. It is management's opinion that none of these will have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows, Costs related to such matters were not material to
the periods presented.

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the following list of executive officers of the Company as of
November 14, 2012 is included as an unnumbered Item in Part 1 of this report in Heu of being included in the
Company’s Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on January 23, 2013,

Beda Bolzenius, 56, was elected a Corporate Vice President in November 2005 and has served as President —
Automotive Seating since October 2012. Ile previously served as President of the Automotive Experience
business from November 2005 to October 2012 and as Executive Vice President and General Manager Europe,
Africa and South America for Automotive Ixpericnce from November 2004 to November 2005. Dr. Bolzenius
joined the Company in November 2004 from Robert Bosch GmbH, a global manufacturer of automotive and
industrial technology, consumer goods and building technology, where he most recently served as the president
of Bosch’s Body Electronics division.

Colin Boyd, 53, was elected Vice President, Information Technology and Chief Information Officer in
October 2008. Mr. Boyd previously served as Chief Information Officer and Corporate Vice President of Sony
Ericsson from 2002 to 2008,

Susan F. Davis, 59, was clected Executive Vice President of Human Resources in September 2006. She
previously scrved as Vice President of Human Resources from May 1994 to September 2006 and as Vice
President of Organizational Development for the Automotive Experience business from August 1993 to April
1994. Ms. Davis joined the Company in 1983,

Charles 4. Harvey, 60, was elected Corporate Vice President of Diversity and Public Affairs in November
2005. He previously served as Vice President of Human Resources for the Automotive Experience business and
in other human resources leadership positions. Mr. Harvey joined the Company in 1991,

William C. Jackson, 52, was elected Execcutive Vice President — Operations and Innovation, in July 2011 and
has served as President — Automotive Electronics & Interiors since October 2012. Prior to joining Johnson
Controls, Mr. Jackson was Vice President and President of Automotive at Sears Holdings Corporation from 2009
to 2010. Prior to that, he served as Senior Vice President and board member of Booz, Allen & Hamilton and
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Booz & Company, a strategy and consulting firm, where he led the firm*s Global Automotive, Transportation
and Industrials Practice.

R Bruce McDonald, 52, was elected Executive Vice President in September 2006 and Chief Financial
Officer in May 2005. He previously served as Corporate Vice President from January 2002 to September 2006,
Assistant Chief Financial Officer {rom October 2004 to May 2005 and Corporate Controfler from November
2001 to October 2004. Mr, McDonald joined the Company in 2001,

Alex A. Molinareli, 53, was elected a Corporate Vice President in May 2004 and has served as President of
the Power Selutions business since January 2007. Previously, Mr. Molinaroli served as Vice President and
General Manager for North America Systems & the Middle Fast for the Building Efficiency busincss and has
held increasing levels of responsibility for controls systems and services sales and operations. Mr. Molinaroli
joined the Company in 1983,

C. David Myers, 49, was elected a Corporate Vice President and President of the Building Efficiency
business in December 2005, when he joined the Company in connection with the acquisition of York
International Corporation (York). At York, Mr, Myers served as Chicf Executive Officer from February 2004 to
December 2005, President from June 2003 to December 2005, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer from January 2003 to June 2003 and Vice President and Chief I'inancial Officer {from February 2000 to
January 2003.

Jerome D, Okarma, 60, was elected Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel in November 2004 and
was named a Corporate Vice President in September 2003. He previously served as Assistant Secretary from
1990 to November 2004 and as Deputy General Counsel from June 2000 to November 2004, Mr, Okarma joined
the Company in 1989,

Stephen A. Roell, 62, was elected Chief xecutive Officer effective in October 2007, Chairman effective in
January 2008, and President effective in May 2009, He was first elected 1o the Board of Directors in October
2004 and served as Executive Vice President from October 2004 through September 2007. Mr. Roell previously
served as Chief Financial Officer between 1991 and May 2005, Senior Vice President from Sepiember 1998 1o
October 2004 and Vice President from 1991 to September 1998, Mr, Roell joined the Company in 1982.

Brian J. Stief, 56, was elected Vice President and Corporate Contreller in July 2010 and serves as the
Company®s Principal Accounting Officer. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Stief was a partner with
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, which he joined in 1979 and in which he became partner in 1989, He served
several of the firm’s largest clients and also held various office managing partner roles.

Jacquieline F. Straver, 58, was elected Vice President, Corporate Communication in September 2008, She
previously served as Vice President, Corporate Communications, for Arrow Electronics, Inc. from 2004 to 2008,
Prior to that, she held communication feadership positions at United Technologies Corporation and GE Capital
Corporation.

Frank A. Voltolina, 52, was elecied a Corporate Vice President and Corporate Treasurer in July 2003 when
he joined the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Voltelina was Vice President and Treasurer at
ArvinMeritor, Ine.

There arc no family relationships, as defined by the instructions to this ilem, among the Company’s executive
officers,

All officers are elected for terms that expire on the date of the mecting of the Board of Directors following the
Annual Meeting of Sharcholders or until their successors are duly-clected and qualified.
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PARTII

ITEM § MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOILDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The shares of the Company’s common stock are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “JCL”
Number of Record Holders

Title of Class as of September 30, 2012
Comimoen Stock, $0.01 7/18 par value 40,019
Common Stock Price Range Dividends
2012 2011 2012 2011
First Quarter $  2429.3390 % 29.95-40.15 § 0.18 % 0.16
Second Quarter 30.81-3595 36.95-42.42 0.18 0.16
Third Quarter 26.15-33.26 35,37 - 42.53 0.18 0.16
Fourth Quarter 23.37 - 29.59 25.91 -42.92 0.18 0.16
Year $  2337-3595 § 2591-4292 % 072 § 0.64

In September 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to acquire up to $200
million of the Company’s outstanding common stock. Stock repurchases under this program may be made through
open market, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise at times and in such amounts as Company management
deems appropriate. The stock repurchase program was substantially completed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012.

In November 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to acquire up to $500
miilion of the Company’s outstanding common stock; which supersedes any prior programs. Stock repurchases
under this program may be made through open market, privately negotiated transactions or otherwise at times and in
such amounts as Company management deems appropriate. The stock repurchase program does not have an
expiration date and may be amended or terminated by the Board of Directors at any time without prior notice.

The Company entered into an Equity Swap Agreement, dated March 13, 2009, with Citibank, N.A. (Citibank). The
Company selectively uses equity swaps to reduce market risk associated with its stock-based compensation plans,
such as its deferred compensation plans. These equity compensation liabilities increase as the Company’s stock
price increases and decrcase as the Company’s stock price decreases. In contrast, the value of the Equity Swap
Agrecment moves in the opposite direction of these liabilities, allowing the Company to fix a portion of the
liabilities at a stated amount,

In connection with the Equity Swap Agreement, Citibank may purchase unlimited shares of the Company’s stock in
the market or in privately negotiated transactions. The Company disclaims that Citibank is an “affiliated purchaser”
of the Company as such term is defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Securitics Exchange Act or that Citibank is
purchasing any shares for the Company. The Equity Swap Agreement has no stated cxpiration date. The net effect of
the change in fair value of the Equity Swap Agreement and the change in equity compensation liabilitics was not
material to the Company’s earnings for the three months ended September 30, 2012,

21




The foliowing table presents information regarding the repurchasc of the Company’s common stock by the
Company as part of the publicly announced program and purchases of the Company’s common stock by Citibank in
conngction with the Equity Swap Agreement during the three months ended September 30, 2012,

Total Number of

Average Price

Total Nuntber of
Shatres Purchased as
Part of the Publiely

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares thatl
May Yet be
Purchased under the

Period Shares Purchased  Paid per Share Announced Program Programs
7/1/12 - 7731112 ‘

Purchases by Company (1) 250,000 $24.09 250,000 $54,242,754
8/1/12 - 8/31/12

Purchases by Company (1) 1,656,629 $25.86 1,656,629 $11,398,755
9/1/12 - 9/30/12 .

Purchases by Company (1) 418,686 $27.17 418,686 $21,366
T2 -131/12

Purchases by Citibank 250,000 524.04 - NA
8/1/12 - 8/31/12

Purchases by Citibank - - - NA
91112 - 9/30/12

Purchases by Citibank - - - NA

(1) Repurchases of the Company's common stock by the Company pursuant to its publicly announced program may
be intended to partially offset dilution related to the Company's stock option and restricted stock equity

compensation plans.
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The following information in Item 5 is not deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or
subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities 1ixchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act) or to the liabilities of
Section 18 of the Exchange Act, and will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act, except to the extent the Company specifically incorporates it by
reference into such a filing.

The line graph below compares the cumulative total sharesholder return on our Common Stock with the cumulative
total return of companies on the Standard & Poor’s (8&P’s) 500 Stock Index and companies in our Diversified
Industrials Peer Group.* This graph assumes the investment of $100 on September 30, 2007 and the reinvestment of
all dividends since that date.

COMPANY/INDEX Sepll Sep0$ Sepl Sepld Sepli Sepil
Johnson Contrals, Inc, 100 78.27 63.11 §2.81 7287 17157
Diversified Industrials Peer Group 100 74.51 .04 03126 $6.92 184.06
&P 500 Comp-Ltd. 100 1802 72.63 $0.02 80.93 10538

Total Return to Shareholders
Dollars

120
1 +\\\ -~ =
e g
80 e fﬂ 7 5 e .

Wﬁw
60
40
20
0 T T T T
Sepd? Sep08 Sepl® Seplo Sepll Sepl2

—+—Johnson Contrels, Ine. —B—Diversified Industrials Peer Group —&—8&P 500 Comp-Ltd.

* The JCI Diversified Industrials Peer Group inchedes: Danaher Corporation, Dover Corporation, Eaton Corporation, Emerson Electric
Corporation, Honeywell Intemnational Inc., Ingersoll-Rand Ple., Ifinois Tool Works Inc., ITT Corporation, 30 Company, Textren Inc.,
and United Technologies Corporation.

The Company’s transfer agent’s contact information is as follows:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A,
Shareowner Services Department
P.O. Box 64874

St. Paul, MN 55164-0874

(877} 602-7397
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data reflects the resulis of operations, financial position data and common share
information for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2008 through September 30, 2012 (in millions, except per
share data and number of employees and shareholders). Certain amounts have been revised to reflect the
retrospective application of the Company’s accounting policy change for recognizing pension and postretirement
benefit expense. Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” of the notes to conselidated
financial statements for further details surrounding this accounting policy change.

Year ended September 30,

_ 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
OPERATING RESULTS
Net sales $ 41,055 % 40,833 % 34,305 § 28497 § 38,062
Segment income (1) 2,567 2,347 1,948 244 2,094
Net income {loss) attributable
to Johnson Controls, Inc. {6} 1,226 1,415 1,307 (681) 801
Earnings (loss) per share (6)
Basic $ 1.80 $ 209 % 1.94 § (1.1 § 1.35
Diluted 1.78 2.06 1.2 (1.14) 1.33
Return on average sharcholders' equity
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. (2) (6) 1% 13% 14% -T% 9%
Capital expenditures 5 1,831 § 1,325 § 777§ 647 § 807
Depreciation and amortization : 824 731 691 745 - 783
Number of employees 170,000 162,000 137,000 130,000 140,000
FINANCIAL POSITION
Working capital (3) $ 2300 % 1,589 § 919 % 1,147 § 1,225
Total assets 30,884 29,676 25,743 24,088 24,987
Long-term debt 5,321 4,533 2,652 3,168 3,201
Total debt 6,068 5,146 3,389 3,966 3,944
Shareholders' equity attributable
to Johnson Controls, Inc. 11,555 11,042 10,071 9,100 9,406
Total debt to total capitalization (4) 34% 32% 25% 30% 30%
Net book value per share {5) k) 16.94 § 1623 3 1495 § 13.56 $ 15.83
COMMON SHARE INFORMATION
Dividends per share $ 0.72 § 064 § 0.52 § 0.52 % 0.52
Markei prices
High $ 3595 % 4292 § 3577 % 30,01 § 44.46
Low 23.37 25.91 23.62 835 26.00
Weighted average shares (in millions)
Basic 681.5 677.7 672.0 595.3 593.1
Diluted 688.6 689.9 682.5 595.3 601.4
Number of sharcholders 40,019 43,340 44,627 46,460 47,543

(1) Segment income is calculated as income from continuing operations before income taxes and nonconirolling
interests excluding net financing charges, debt conversion costs, significant restructuring costs and net mark-to-
market adjustments on pension and postretirement plans.

{2) Return on average sharcholders’ equity aitribulable to Johnsen Controls, Inc. (ROE) represents net income
aflributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. divided by average shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Controls,
Inc.
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(3) Working capital is defined as current assets less current labilities, exchuding cash, short-term debt and the
current portion of long-term debt.

(4) Total debt to total capitalization represents total debt divided by the sum of total debt and sharcholders’ equily
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

(3) Net book value per share represents shareholders’ equity atiributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. divided by the
number of common shares outstanding at the end of the period.

{6} Net income atiributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. includes $297 million, $230 million and $495 million of
significant restructuring costs in fiscal year 2012, 2009 and 2008, respectively. It also includes $447 million,
$384 million, $269 million, $532 million and $301 million of net mark-to-market charges on pension and
postretirement plans in fiscal year 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The preceding amounts are
stated on a pre-tax basis,

ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSTION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

General

The Company operates in three primary businesses: Building Efficiency, Autometive Ixperience and Power
Solutions. Building Efficiency provides facility systems, services and workplace solutions including comfort, energy
and security management for the residential and non-residential buildings markets. Automotive Experience designs
and manufactures interior systems and products for passenger cars and light trucks, including vans, pick-up trucks
and sport/crossover utility vehicles. Power Solutions designs and manufactures automotive batteries for the
replacement and original equipment markets.

This discussion surmnarizes the significant factors affecting the consolidated operating results, financial condition
and liquidity of the Company for the three-year period ended Septermnber 36, 2012. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with Ttem 8, the consolidated financial statements and the notes to conselidated financial statements.

Certain amounts have been revised to reflect the retrospective application of the Company’s accounting pelicy
change for recognizing pension and postretirement benefit expense. Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies,” of the noles to consolidated financial statements for further details swrounding this
accounting policy change.

Outloek

On October 30, 2012, the Company gave a preliminary outlook of its market and financial expectations for fiscal
2013, saving it believes softening end markets will limit its ability fo grow revenues and earnings in the upcoming
year. In addition, the Company anticipates a higher effective tax rate of 20% in fiscal 2013 due to an increased
percentage of total carnings in the United States. The Company expeocts fiscal 2013 first-half earnings to be
significantly lower than the same period of fiscal 2012 with higher year over year earnings in the sccond half of the
year, The Company also cxpects to incur additional restructuring-related costs in the first half of fiscal 2013
(aspproximately $0.08 - $0.10 impact on earnings per share) and believes the financial benefits of the restructuring
announced in the fiscal 2012 fourth quarter will begin to accrue in the second half of fiscal 2013, The Company
plans to be diligent in controlling costs, but will remain commitied to making investments that support its long-term
growth and profitability strategies. The Company expects full year fiscal 2013 earnings to be flat to slightly higher
than fiscal 2012,

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company reorganized its Automotive Expericnce reportable segments to align with
its new management reporting structure and business activities, As a result of this change, Automotive Experience
will be comprised of three new reportable segments for financial reporting purposes: Seating, Electronics and
Interiors. This change will be reflected in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
December 31, 2012, with comparable periods revised to conform to the new preseniation.
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FISCAL YEAR 2012 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2011

Net Sales

Year Ended

September 30,
{in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Net sales $ 41,955 § 40,833 3%

The increase in consolidated net sales was due (o higher sales in the Automotive Experience business ($2.0 billion),
Power Solutions business ($224 million) and Building Efficiency business {$95 million), partially offsct by the
unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation ($1.2 billion). Excluding the unfavorable impact of foreign
currency translation, consolidated net sales increased 6% as compared to the prior year. The favorable impacts of
increased automotive industry production in North America, strong automotive and buildings demand in China, and
incremental sales from acquisitions were partially offsct by the negative impacts of lower automotive industry
production in Europe, weak Building Efficiency markets and mild weather conditions on automotive battery
aftermarket demand. Refer to the segmont analysis below within Item 7 for a discussion of net sales by segment.

Cost of Sales / Gross Profit

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Cost of sales $ 35737 % 34,775 3%
Gross profit 6,218 6,058 3%
% of sales 14.8% 14.8%

The increase in total cost of sales year over year corresponds to the sales growth noted above, with gross profit
percentage remaining consistent. Gross profit in the Automotive Experience business was favorably impacted by
lower purchasing costs offset by higher operating costs associated with performance at metals facilities and net
unfavorable commergial settlements and pricing. The Power Solutions business experienced favorable pricing and
product mix offset by higher operating, battery core and transportation costs. Gross profit in the Building Efficiency
business benefited year over year from improved labor utilization and pricing initiatives, offset by overall
unfavorable gross margin rates. Foreign currency translation had a favorable impact on cost of sales of
approximately $1.1 billion. Net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and postretirement plans had a net favorable
year over year impact on cost of sales of $87 miltion ($33 million charge in fiscal 2012 compared to $120 million
charge in fiscal 2011) primarily due to assumption changes for certain non-1.S, plans partiatly offset by a decline in
year over year discount rates. Refer to the segment analysis below within Item 7 for a discussion of segment income
by segment.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 4,438 § 4,393 1%
% of sales 10,6% 10.8%

Sclling, gencral and administrative expenses (SG&A) increased sliphtly year over year, but decreased slightly as a
percentage of sales. Automotive Experience business SG&A increased primarily due to the incremental SG&A of
acquired businesses, partially offset by non-recurring prior year costs relaled to business acquisitions. Power
Solutions business SG&A increased primarily due to higher employee-related costs and incremental SG&A of
acquired businesses. Building Lfficiency business SG&A decreased primarily due to cost reduction initiatives, prior
year restructuring costs and gains on business divestitures. The unfavorable impact of net mark-to-market
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adjustments on pension and postretirenient plans in SG&A increased year over year by $150 million ($414 million
charge in fiscal 2012 compared to $264 million charge in fiscal 2011) primarily due to a significant decline in year
over year discount rates. Foreign currency translation had a favorable impact on SG&A of $101 million. Refer to the
segment analysis below within Item 7 for a discussion of segment income by segment.

Significant Restructuring Costs

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Restructuring costs $ 297 % - *

* Measure not meaningful

To better align its resources with its growth strategies and reduce the cost structure of its global operations to
address the softness in certain underlying markets, the Company commilled to a significant restructuring plan (2012
Plan) in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012 and recorded a $297 million restructuring charge, $52 million in
the third quarter and $245 million In the fourth quarier of fiscal 2012. The restructuring charge related to cost
reduction initiatives in the Company’s Automotive Experience, Building Efficiency and Power Solutions businesses
and included workforce reductions and plant closures. The restructuring actions are expected to be substantially
complete by the end of fiscal 2014.

Refer to Note 15, “Significant Restructuring Costs,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for further
disclosure related to the Company’s restructuring plans,

Net Financing Charges
Year Ended
September 30,
(in miltions) 2012 2011 Change
Net financing charges 5 233 § 174 34%

The increase in net financing charges was primarily due to higher debt levels in fiscal 2012 as compared to the prior
year,

Equity Income

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Equity income $ 340 § 298 14%

The increase in equity income was primarily duc to a gain on redemption of a warrant for an existing partially-
owned affiliate and & gain on a current year acquisition of a partially-owned affiliste in the Power Solutions
business, partially offset by a gain on a prior year acquisition of a partially-owned affiliate net of acquisition costs
and related purchase accounting adjustments and a partially-owned cquity affiliate’s restatement of prior period
income in the Power Solutions business. The remaining increase in equity income was primarily due to higher
earnings at cerlain Building Efficiency partially-owned affiliates. Refer to the segment analysis below within ftem 7
for a discussion of segment income by segment.

27




Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Provision for income laxes $ 237 $ 257 -8%

The effective rate is below the U.S, statutory rate primarily due to continuing global fax planning initiatives and
income in certain non-U.S. jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower than the U.8. statutory tax rate. Refer to Note 17,
“Income Taxes,” of the notes 1o consolidated financial statements for finther details.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its deferred tax asset valuation allowances on a quarterly basis, or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that a review is required. In determining the requirement for a
valuation allowance, the historical and projected financial results of the legal entity or consolidated group recording
the net deferred tax asset are considered, along with any other positive or negative evidence. Since future financial
results may differ from previous esiimates, periodic adjustments to the Company's valuation allowances may be
necessary.

In fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an overall increase to its valuation allowances of $47 miliion primarily due to
a discrete period income tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth guarter of fiscal 2012, the Compainy
performed an analysis related to the realizability of its worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, and after
considering tax planning initiatives and other positive and negative evidence, the Company determined that it was
more likely than not that deferred tax assets within Power Solutions in China would not be. utilized. Therefore, the
Company recorded a $35 million valuation allowance in the three month period ended September 30, 2012.

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a decrease to its valuation allowances primarily due to a $30 million discrete
period income tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company performed an
analysis related to the realizability of its worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, and after considering tax
planning initiatives and other positive and negative evidence, the Company determined that it was more likely than
not that the deferred tax assets primarily within Denmark, Italy, Automotive Experience in Korea and Automotive
Experience in the United Kingdom would be utilized. Therefore, the Company released a net $30 million of
valuation allowances in the three month period ended September 30, 2011.

Given the currenl economic uncertainty, it is reasonably possible that over the next twelve months, valuation
allowances against deferred tax assets in certain jurisdictions may result in & net increase to tax expense of up to
3400 million.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Judgment is required in
determining its worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the related assets and liabilities. In the ordinary
cowrse of the Company’s business, there are many {ransactions and calculations where the uliimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Company is regularly under audit by tax authorities.

As a result of certain recent events related to prior tax planning initiatives, during the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the
Company reduced the reserve for uncertain tax positions by $22 million, including $13 million of interest and
penalties.

The Company’s federal income tax returns and cettain non-U.S. income tax returns for various fiscal years remain
under various stages of audit by the Internal Revenuc Service and respective non-U.S. tax authorities. Although the
outcome of tax andits is always uncertain, management believes that it has approptiate support for the positions
taken on its 1ax refurns and that its annual tax provisions included amounts sufficient to pay assessments, if any,
which may be proposed by the taxing authorities. At September 30, 2012, the Company had recorded a liability for
its best estimate of the probable loss on certain of its tax positions, the majority of which is included in other
noncurrent liabilitics in the consolidated statements of financial position. Nonetheless, the amounts ultimately paid,
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if any, upon resolution of the issues raised by the taxing authorities may differ materially from the amounts accrued
for each year.

The Company expects that certain tax examinations, appellate proceedings and/or tax litigation will conclude within
the next twelve months, the impact of which could be up to a $200 million benefit to tax expense.

Tmpacts of Tax Legislation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

The look-through rule, under subpart F of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, expired for the Company on September
30, 2012, The look-through rule had provided an exception to the U.S. taxation of certain income gencrated by
foreign subsidiaries. It is generally thought that this rule will be extended with the possibility of retroactive
application.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, tax legislation was adopted in Japan which reduces its statutory
income tax rate by 5%. Also, tax legislation was adopted in various jurisdictions to limit the annual utilization of tax
losses that are carried forward. None of these changes had a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Income atiributable to
noncontrolling interests - b 127 § 117 - 9%

The increase in income atiributable to noncontrolling intetests was primarity due to higher eamings at certain Power
Solutions and Building Efficiency partially-owned affiliates, partially offset by the effects of an increase in the
Company’s ownership percentage in an Automotive Experience parlially-owned affiliate,

Net Income Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Year Ended
September 30,
(in miHions) 2012 2011 Change
Net income attributable to
Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,226 § 1,415 ~13%

The decrease in net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. was primarily due to higher selling, general and
administrative expenses, restructuring costs, nel financing charges and income attributable to noncontrolling
interests, and the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation, partially offset by higher sales and equity
income, and a decrease in the provision for income taxes. Fiscal 2012 diluted earnings per share was $1.78
compared to prior year’s diluted earnings per share of $2.06.

Segment Analysis
Management evaluates the performance of its business units based primarily on segment income, which is defined as

income from continuing operations before income taxes and noncontrolling interests excluding net financing
charges, significant restructuring costs and net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and postretirement plans.
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Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Income
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

{in millions) 2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change
North America Systeins $ 238§ 2,343 2% $ 286 % 247 16%
North America Service 2,145 2,305 -1% 164 121 36%
Global Workplace Solutions 4,294 4,153 3% 52 22 #
Asia 1,987 1,840 8% 267 251 6%
Other 3,900 4,252 -8% 141 105 34%

$ 14715 § 14,893 1% 0§ 910 § 746 22%

¥ Measure nol meaningful

Net Sales:

The increase in North America Systems was primarily due lo higher volumes of equipment and controls
systems in the commercial construction and replacement markets ($50 million), partially offset by the
unfavorable impact of foreign cutrency ranslation ($4 million),

The decrease in North America Service was primarily due to a reduction in truck-based volumes ($130
million) and energy solutions volumes ($50 million), and the unfavorable impact of foreign currency
translation ($4 million), partially offset by the incremental sales from a prior year business acquisition ($24
million).

The increase in Global Workplace Solufions was primarily due to a net increase in services to new and
existing customers ($264 million), partially offset by the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation
{8123 million).

The increase in Asia was primarily due to higher service volumes including the prior year negative impact
of the Japan earthquake and related events (884 million), higher volumes of equipment and controls
systems ($39 million), and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation ($24 miltion).

The decrease in Other was primarily due to the unfavorable impact of foreign currency transkation ($166
million), lower volumes in Latin America ($93 million), the Middle East ($41 million} and Europe ($32
million), and fower volumes due to current year divestitures ($55 million), partially offset by higher
volumes in other business areas ($33 million) and unitary products ($2 million).

Sepment Income:

The increase in North America Systems was primarily due 1o lower selling, general and adminisirative
expenses ($24 million) and higher volumes ($15 million).

The increase in North America Service was primarily due to lower selling, general and administrative
expenses ($40 million) and favorable margin rates ($38 million), partiatly offset by lower volumes ($31
million), loss on a business divestiture ($3 million) and lower equity income ($1 million).

The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was primarily due 1o higher volumes ($15 million), lower
selling, general and administrative expenses {$14 million) and favorable margin rates ($4 million), partially
offset by unfavorable impact of foreign cnrency translation ($3 million).

The increase in Asia was primarily due to higher volumes {$30 million} and the favorable impact of foreign
currency translation ($6 million), partially offset by higher selling, general and administrative expenses
($18 million) and unfavorable margin rates ($2 million).

The increase in Other was primarily due to gains on business divestitures net of transaction costs ($42
million), prior year restructuring costs ($35 million), prior year non-recurring charges refaled to South
America indirect taxes ($24 millon), lower selling, general and administrative expenses ($14 million),
prior year business distribution costs ($11 million) and higher equity income ($6 million), partially offset
by unfavorable margin rates ($51 million), lower volumes ($20 million), net prior year warranly accrual
adjustment due to favorable experience ($14 million), lower income due to current year divestitures ($10
million) and the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation ($1 million).
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Automotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Income (Loss)
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2012 2011 Change 2012 2011 Change
North America $ 8721 § 7431 17% % 487 § 419 16%
Europe 9,973 10,267 -3% (52) 116 #
Asia 2,640 2,367 12% 368 245 50%

$ 21,334 § 20,065 6% § 803 § 780 3%

* Measure not meaningful

Net Sales:

The increase in North America was primatily due to higher volumes to major OEM customers {$967
million), the prior year negative impact of the Japan earthquake and related events ($263 million), and
incremental sales due to prior year business acquisitions ($129 million), partially offset by net unfavorable
pricing and commercial settlements {$69 million).

The decrease in Europe was primarily due (o the unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation ($773
million), net unfavorable pricing and commercial scttlements ($84 million), and fower volumes despite the
priot year negative impact of the Japan earthquake and related events ($32 million), partially offset by
incremental sales due to business acquisitions ($595 million).

The increase in Asia was primarily due to higher volumes and new customer awards including the prior
year negative impact of the Japan earthquake and related events ($182 million), incremental sales due to
prior year acquisitions ($144 millien) and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation ($9 million),
partially offset by net unfavorable pricing and commercial settlements ($37 million) and the negative
impact of the flooding in Thailand and related events ($25 million).

Segment Income;

The increase in North America was primarily due to higher volumes {$199 million), the prior year negative
impact of the earthquake in Japan and related events ($61 million), lower purchasing costs ($49 miliion),
higher equily income (%4 million), lower engineering expenses ($3 million) and incremental operating
income of prior year acquisitions ($3 million), partially offset by higher operating costs ($126 million), net
unfavorable commercial settlements and pricing ($91 million), and higher selling, general and
administrative expenses {$34 million).

The decrease in Europe was primarily due to higher operating costs ($131 million), net unfavorable
commercial settlements and pricing ($88 million), lower volumes despite the priot year negative impact of
the earthquake in Japan and related events (365 million), and higher selling, general and administrative
expenses ($40 million), partially offset by prior year costs related to business acquisitions ($64 million),
incremental operating income of prior year acquisitions ($42 million), lower purchasing costs ($26
million), lower engineering expenses ($23 million) and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation
($1 million).

The increase in Asia was primarily due to higher volumes including the prior vear negative impact of the
earthquake in Japan and related evenis ($64 million), lower purchasing costs ($41 million), lower selling,
general and administrative expenses ($28 million), incremental operating income of prior year acquisitions
{$19 million), lower operating costs ($14 million) and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation
{$2 million), partially offset by net unfavorable commercial settlements and pricing ($34 million), the
negative impact of the flooding in Thailand and related events ($5 million), higher engincering cxpenses
($3 million) and fower equity income ($3 million),
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Power Solutions

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Net sales $ 59006 % 5875 1%
Segment income 854 821 4%

s  Net sales increased primarily due to favorable pricing and product mix ($156 million), higher volumes
including the prior year negative impact of the earthquake in Japan and related events ($144 million), and
incremental sales due to business acquisitions ($38 million}, partiatly offsel by the unfavorable impact of
foreign currency translation ($193 million) and impact of pass through pricing ($114 million),

s  Sepment income increased primarily due to favorable pricing and product mix including lead net of higher
costs for battery cores ($117 million); a gain on redemption of a warrant for an existing partially-owned
affiliate (525 million); higher volumes including the prior year negative impact of the earthquake in Japan
and related events ($24 million); change in asset retirement obligations ($14 million); an insurance
settlement ($12 million); a gain on a current year acquisition of a partially-owned affiliate (§9 million) and
higher equity income ($4 million); partially offset by higher operating and transportation costs ($46
million); higher selling, general and administrative expenscs ($43 million); a gain on a prior year
acquisition of a partially-owned affiliate net of acquisition costs and related purchase accounting
adjustments and a partially-owned affiliate’s restatement of prior period income ($37 million); the
unfavorable impact of foreign currency translation ($21 million); an impairment of an equity investment
{$14 million) and the unfavorable impact of business acquisitions ($11 million).

FISCAL YEAR 2011 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR 2010

Net Sales

Year Ended

September 30,
(in millions}) 2011 2010 Change
Net sales $ 40,833 § 34,305 19%

The increase in consolidated nct sales was primarily due to higher sales in the Automotive Experience business
{$3.1 billion) as a result of increased industry production levels in all segments and incremental sales due to business
acquisitions; higher sales in the Building Efficiency business ($1.7 billion) as a result of higher sales in all scgments;
higher sales in the Power Solutions business ($0.9 billion) reflecting higher sales volumes, the impact of higher lead
costs on pricing and sales associated with a prior year business acquisition; and the favorable impact of foreign
currency translation ($0.8 billion). Excluding the favorable impact of foreign currency translation, consolidated net
sales increased 17% as compared to the prior year. Refer to the segment analysis below within Item 7 for a
discussion of net sales by segment.

Cost of Sales / Gross Profic

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Cost of sales $ 34775 % 29,084 20%
Gross profit 6,058 5,221 16%
% of sales 14.8% 15.2%

The increase in total cost of sales year over year corresponds to the sales growth noted above, with gross profit
percentage decreasing slightly. Gross profit in the Automotive Experience business was unfavorably impacted by
the earthquake in Japan and related events, higher operating costs in Europe and unfavorable commercial
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setflements and pricing in Europe, partially offset by the income of acquisitions. Gross profit in the Building
Lfficiency business reflected overall unfavorable gross margin rates partially offset by prior year inventory
adjustments. 'The Power Solutions business experienced favorable pricing and product mix, and income associated
with a prior year business acquisition, partially offset by higher operating and transportation costs. Foreign cutrency
translation had an unfavorable impact on cost of sales of approximately $0.7 billion. The unfavorable impact of net
mark-to-market adjustments on pension and postretirement plans in cost of sales increased year over year by $52
million ($120 million charge in fiscal 2011 compared (o $68 million charge in fiscal 2010) primarily due to a decline
in year over yvear discount rates. Refer to the segment analysis below within tem 7 for a discussion of segment
income by segment.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 4393 § 3,796 16%
% of sales 10.8% 11.1%

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) increased year over year, but decreased as a percentage of
sales. Automotive Experience business SG&A increased primarily due lo costs related to business acquisitions,
incremental SG&A of acquired businesses and higher engincering expenses. Building Efficiency business SG&A
increased primarily due to higher employee-related costs, restrucluring costs and information technology
implementation costs. Power Solutions business SG&A increased primarily due to higher employee-related costs
and incremental SG&A of acquired businesses. The unfavorable impact of net mark-to-market adjustments on
pension and postretitement plans in SG&A increased year ovei year by $63 million ($264 million charge in fiscal
2011 compared to $201 million charge in fiscal 2010) primarily due to a decline in ycar over year discount rates.
Foreign currency translation had an unfavorable impact on SG&A of 563 million. Refer to the segment analysis
below within Ttem 7 for a discussion of segment income by segment.

Net Financing Charges
Year Ended
September 30,
(in miHions) 2011 2010 Change
Net financing charges $ 174 § 170 2%

The increasc in net financing charges was primarily due to higher debt levels partially offset by lower interest rates
in fiscal 2011.

Equity Income
Year Ended
September 30,
{(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Equity income $ 298 $ 254 17%

The increase in equily income was primarily duc to a gain on acquisition of partially-owned affiliate net of
acquisition costs and purchase accounting adjustments and a partially-owned cquity affiliate’s restatement of prior
period income in the Power Solutions business, partially offset by a prior year gain on consolidation of a Korean
partially-owned affiliate in the Power Solutions business. The remaining increase in equity income was primarily
due to higher earnings at cerlain Automotive Experience and Building Efficiency partially-owned affiliates.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Proviston for income taxes $ 257 & 127 *

* Measure not meaningfisl

The effective rate is below the 1.8, stalutory rate primarily due to continuing global lax planning initiatives and
income in certain non-U.8. jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower than the U.S. statutory tax rate. Refer to Note 17,
“Income ['axes,” of the noles 1o consolidated financial statements for further details.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its deferred tax asset valuation allowances on a quarterly basis, or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thal a review is required. In determining the requirement for a
valuation allowance, the historical and projecied financial results of the legal entity or consolidated group recording
the net deferred tax asset are considered, along with any other positive or negative evidence. Since future financial
results may differ from previous cstimates, periodic adjustments to the Company's valuation allowances may be
necessary.

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a decrease to its valuation allowances primarily due to a $30¢ million discrete
period income tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company performed an
analysis related 1o the realizability of its worldwide deferred tax assefs. As a result, and after considering tax

" planning initiatives and other positive and negative evidence, the Company determined that it was more likely than
not that the deferred tax assets primarily within Denmark, Ttaly, Automotive Experience in Korea and Auwlomotive
Experience in the United Kingdom would be utilized, Therefore, the Company released a net $30 million of
valuation allowances in the three month period ended September 30, 2011.

In fiscal 2010, the Company recorded an overall decrease to its valuation allowances of $87 million primarily due to
a $111 million discrete period income tax adjustment, In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company performed
an analysis related to the realizability of its worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, and after considering tax
planning initiatives and other positive and negative evidence, the Company determined that it was more likely than
not that the deferred tax assets primatily within Mexico would be utilized. Therefore, the Company refeased $39
million of valuation allowances in the three month period ended Seplember 30, 2010. Further, the Company
determined that it was more likely than not that the deferred tax assets would not be utilized in selected entities in
Europe. Therefore, the Company recorded $14 million of valuation allowances in the three month period ended
September 30, 2010, To the extent the Company improves its underfying operating results in these entities, these
valuation allowances, or a portion thereof, could be reversed in future periods.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company determined that it was more likely than not that a portion of the
deferred tax assets within the Slovakia Automotive Experience entity would be utilized. Therefore, the Company
released $13 million of valuation allowances in the three month period ¢cnded June 30, 2010,

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company determined that it was more likely than not that a portion of the
deferred tax assets within the Brazil Automotive Experience entity would be utilized. Therefore, the Company
released $69 million of valuation allowances, This was comprised of a $93 million decrease in income tax expense
offset by a $24 million reduction in cumulative translation adjustments.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company increased the valuation allowances by $20 million, which was
substantially offset by a decrease in its reserves for uncertain tax positions in a similar amount, These adjustments
were based on a review of tax return filing positions taken in these jurisdictions and the established reserves.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Judgment is required in
determining its worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the related assels and liabilities. In the ordinary
course of the Company’s business, there are many lransactions and calculations where the ultimate tax
determination i3 unceriain, The Company is regularly under audit by tax authorities.

34



Based on published case law in a non-U.S. jurisdiction and the settlement of a tax audit during the third quarter of
fiscal 2010, the Company released net $38 million of reserves for uncertain tax positions, including interest and
penaliies.

As a result of certain cvents related to prior year tax planning initiatives during the first quarter of fiscal 2010, the
Company increased the reserve for uncertain tax positions by $31 million, including $26 million of interest and
penalties.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company decreased its reserves for uncertain tax positions by $20 million,
which was substantially offset by an increase in its valuation allowances in a similar amount. These adjusiments
were based on a review of tax filing positions taken in jurisdictions with valuation allowances as indicated above.

The Company’s federal income tax returns and certain non-U.S. income tax returns for various fiscal years remain
under various stages of audit by the Internal Revenue Service and respective non-U.S. tax authorities. Although the
outcome of tax audits is always uncertain, management believes that it has appropriate support for the positions
taken on its tax returns and that its annual tax provisions included amounts sufficient to pay assessments, if any,
which may be proposed by the taxing authorities. At September 30, 2011, the Company had recorded a liability for
its best sstimate of the probable loss on certain of its tax positions, the majority of which is included in other
noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position, Nonetheless, the amounis ultimately paid,
if any, upon resofution of the issues raised by the taxing authorities, may differ materially from the amounts accrued
for each year.

Impacis of Tax Legislation and Change in Statutory Tax Rates

During the fiscal vear ended Seplember 30, 2011, tax legislation was adopted in various jurisdictions. None of these
changes had a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows.

On March 23, 2010, the U.8, President signed into law comprehensive health care reform legislation under the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (IIR3590). Included among the major provisions of the law was a
change in the tax treatment of a portion of Medicare Part D medical payments. The Company recorded a noncash
tax charge of approximately $18 million in the second guarter of fiscal year 2010 to reflect the impact of this
change. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the amount decreased by $2 million resulting in an overall impact of
$16 million.

Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests

Year Ended
September 30,
(in miilions) 2011 2010 Change
Income atiributable to
noncontrolling interests $ 117 % 75 56%

The increase in income atiributable to noncontrolling interests was primarily due to higher earnings at ceriain
Automotive Expetience partially-owned affiliates in North America and Asia, and a Power Selutions partially-
owned affiliate.
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Net Income Attributable to Johnson Centrols, Inc.

Year Ended
September 30,

(in millions) 2011 2010 Change

Net income attributable to
Johnson Controls, Inc. $ 1,415 § 1,307 8%

The increase in net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. was primarily due to higher sales and equity
income, and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation, partially offset by an increase in selling, general
and administrative expenses, provision for income taxes and income attributable to noncontrolling interests. Fiscal
2011 diluted earnings per share was $2.06 compared to prior year’s diluted carnings per shave of $1.92.

Segment Analysis

Management evaluates the performance of its business units based primarily on segment income, which is defined as
income from continuing operations before income taxes and noncontrolling interests excluding net financing
charges, significant restructuring costs and net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and postretirement plans,

Building Efficiency

Net Sales Segment Income
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
: : September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change
North America Systems $ 2343 § 2142 9% % 247 § 206 20%
North America Service 2,305 2,127 8% 121 117 3%
Global Workplace Solutions 4,153 3,288 26% 22 40 ~45%
Asia 1,840 1,422 29% 251 180 39%
Other 4,252 3,823 11% 105 136 -23%

$ 14,893 § 12,802 16% § 746§ 679 10%
Net Sales:

The increase in North America Systems was primarily duc to higher volumes of equipment and controls
systems in the commercial construction and replacement markets ($191 million), and the Tavorable impact
of foreign currency translation ($10 million).

The increase in North America Service was primarily due to higher volumes, mainly driven by energy
solutions and truck-based business ($120 million), incremental sales due to a prior year business acquisition
{$46 million) and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation ($12 million).

The increase in Global Workplace Solutions was primarily due to a net increase in services 1o new and
existing customers {$709 million), and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation {$156 miltion).

The increase in Asia was primarily due to higher volumes of equipment and conirols systems ($255
million), the favorable impact of foreign currency translation ($98 million), and higher service volumes
including the negative impact of the Japan earthquake and related evenis ($65 million).

The increase in Other was primarily due to higher volumes in the Middle East ($198 million), Latin
America ($107 million) and Europe (339 million), and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation
($85 millicn).

Segment Income:

The increase in North America Systems was primarily due to higher volumes ($38 million), favorable
margin rates ($25 million), prior year reserves for existing customers ($13 million) and the favorable
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impact of foreign currency translation ($1 million), partially offset by higher selling, general and
administrative expenses ($36 million).

s The increase in North America Service was primarily due to prior year inventory adjustments and
information technology implementation costs ($55 million), higher volumes ($25 million), lower selling,
general and administrative expenses ($2 million) and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation
(81 million), partially offset by unfavorable mix and margin rates ($79 million).

s  The decrease in Global Workplace Solutions was primarily due to unfavorable margin rates ($40 million)
and higher selling, general and administrative expenses (332 million), partially offset by higher volumes
($49 miilion) and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation ($5 million).

e The increase in Asia was primarily due to higher volumes ($82 million) and the favorable impact of foreign
currency translation ($15 million), partially offset by higher selling, general and adntinistrative expenses
($26 million),

e The decrease in Other was primarily due to higher selling, general and administrative expenses ($41
million), restructuring costs ($35 million), non-recurring charges related to South America indirect taxes
{$24 million), unfavorable margin rates ($15 million) and distribution business costs (311 million), partially
offset by higher volumes ($75 million), higher equity income ($18 million) and the favorable impact of
foreign currency translation ($2 miltion).

Auntomotive Experience

Net Sales Segment Income
for the Year Ended for the Year Ended
September 30, September 30,

(in millions) 2011 2010 Change 2011 2010 Change
North America $ 7431 & 6,765 10% § 419 § 380 10%
Europe 10,267 8,019 28% 116 108 7%
Asia 2,367 1,826 30% 245 109 125%

$ 20,065 $ 16,610 21% § 780 $ 597 31%

Net Sales:

e The increase in North America was primarily due to higher volumes to the Company’s major OEM
customers ($779 million), incremental sales due to business acquisitions ($129 million) and net favorable
commercial settlements and pricing ($21 million), partially offset by the negative impact of the Japan
earthquake and related events ($263 million).

s The increase in Europe was primarily due to higher volumes and new customer awards including the
negative impact of the Japan carthquake and related events ($1.1 billion), incremental sales due to business
acquisitions ($855 million) and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation ($295 million),
partially offset by net unfavorable commercial settflements and pricing ($37 million).

+  The increase in Asia was primarily due to higher volumes and new customer awards including the negative
impact of the Japan earthquake and related events ($455 million), the favorable impact of foreign currency
translation ($88 million) and incremental sales due to business acquisitions ($13 million), partially offset by
unfavorable commercial settlements and pricing ($135 million).

Segment Income;

# The increase in North America was primarily due to higher volumes ($160 miltion), higher equity income
{$0 million), and net favorable commercial setllements and pricing (35 million), partially offsct by the
negative impact of the earthquake in Japan and related events ($61 million), higher selling, general and
administrative expenses net of a legal scttlement award ($36 million), higher engineering expenses ($27
million) and higher purchasing costs (88 million).

s The increase in Europe was primarily due to higher volumes including the negative impact of the
earthquake in Japan and related events ($95 million), operating income of current year acquisitions ($75
million), Jower selling, general and administrative expenses ($16 million) and the favorable impact of
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forsign currency translation ($9 million), partially offset by costs related to business acquisitions (564
million), higher operating costs ($58 million), unfavorable commetcial settlements and pricing ($34
million), higher engineering expenses ($22 million) and higher purchasing costs ($9 million).

¢ The increase in Asia was primarily due to higher volumes including the negative impact of the earthquake
in JTapan and related events ($84 million), higher equity income mainly in China ($55 million), prior year
asset impairment charges in Japan ($22 million), lower purchasing costs ($19 million), lower operating
costs ($13 million) and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation (§4 million), partially offset by
higher selling, general and administrative expenses ($33 million), unfavorable pricing ($16 million) and
higher engineering expenses ($12 million).

Power Solutions

Year Ended
September 30,
(in millions) 2011 2010 Change
Net sales $ 5873 % 4,893 20%
Scgment income 821 672 22%

e Net sales increased primarily due to the impact of higher lead costs on pricing ($287 million), higher sales
volumes including the negative impact of the earthquake in Japan and related events ($283 million), sales
associated with a prior year business acquisition ($261 million), favorable price/product mix ($81 million)
and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation ($70 million).

s Segment income increased primarily due to favorable pricing and product mix net of lead and other
commodity costs ($145 million); higher sales volumes (§56 million); a gain on acquisition of a partially-
owned affiliate net of acquisition costs and related purchase accounting adjustments and a partially-owned
equity affiliate’s restatcment of prior peried income ($37 million); income associated with a prior year
business acquisition ($30 million); and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation (88 million);
partially offset by higher operating and transportation costs ($44 million); higher selling, general and
administrative expenses ($38 million); prior year net gain on acquisition of a Korean partially-owned
affiliate ($37 million); and lower equity income ($8 million).

GOODWILL, LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

Goodwill at September 30, 2012 was $7.0 billion, $34 million lower than the prior year. The decrease was primarily
due to the impact of foreign currency wranslation and current year business divestitures, partially offset by business
acquisitions.

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in excess of the fair values assigned to identifiable net assets acquired.
The Company reviews goodwilt for impairment during the fourth fiscal quarter or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate the assct might be impaired. The Company performs impairment reviews [or its
reporting units, which have been determined to be the Company’s reportable segments or one level below the
reportable segments in certain instances, using a fair-value method based on management’s judgments and
assumptions or third party valuations. The fair value of a reporting unit refers to the price that would be received to
sell the unit as a whole in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In estimating
the fair value, the Company uses multiples of earnings based on the average of historical, published multiples of
earnings of comparable enfities with similar operations and economic characteristics. In certain instances, the
Company uses discounted cash flow analyses to further support the fair value estimates. The inputs utilized in the
analyses are classified as Level 3 inpuls within the fair value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures.” The estimated fair value is then compared with the carrying amount of the
reporting unit, including recorded goodwill. The Company is subject to financial statement risk to the extent that the
carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value. The impairment testing performed by the Company in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 indicated that the estimated fair value of each reporting unit substantially
exceeded its corresponding carrying amount including recorded goodwill, and as such, no impairment existed at
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, No reporting unit was determined to be at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test. While at September 30, 2012 the estimated fair value of each reporting unit substantialty
exceeded its corresponding carrying amount including recorded goodwill, a prolonged significant decline in the
European automotive industry could put the Company at risk of not achieving future growth assumptions and could
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result in impairment of goodwill or other long-lived assets, or result in additional restructuring actions, within the
Automotive Experience Europe segment, which could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

Indefinite Hved other intangible assets are also subject to at least annual impairment testing. Other intangible assets
with definite lives continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives and arc subject to impairment testing if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. A considerable amount of management
judgment and assumptions are required in performing the impairment tests. While the Company believes the
judgments and assumptions used in the impairment tests are reasonable and no impairment existed at September 30,
2012, 2011 and 2010, different assumptions coukd change the estimated fair values and, therefore, impairment
charges could be required, which could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company reviews the realizability of its deferred tax asscts on a quarterly basis, or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that a review is required. In determining the requirement for a valuation allowance, the
historical and projected financial results of the legal entity or consolidated group recording the net deferred tax asset
ate considered, along with any other positive or negative evidence. Since future financial results may differ from
previous estimates, periodic adjustments to the Company's valuation allowances may be necessary. Given the
current economic uncettainty, it is reasonably possible that over the next twelve months, valuation allowances
against deferred tax assets in certain jurisdictions may result in a net increase to tax expense of up o $400 million,

The Company has cerlain subsidiaries, mainly located in France and Spain, which have generated operating and/or
capital losses and, in certain circumstances, have limited loss carryforward periods. In accordance with ASC 740,
“Income Taxes,” the Company is required to record a valuation allowance when it is more likely thar not the
Company will not utilize deductible amounts or net operating losses for each legal entity or consolidated group
based on the tax rules in the applicable jurisdiction, evaluating both positive and negative historical evidences as
well as expected future events and tax planning strategies.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate.that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable, The Company conducts its long-lived asset impairment
analyses in accordance with ASC 360-10-15, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” ASC 360-10-15
requires the Company to group assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities and evaluate the asset group against the sum of the
undiscounted future cash flows. If the undiscounted cash flows do not indicate the carrying amount of the asset
group is recoverable, an impairment charge is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
group exceeds its fair value based on discounted cash flow analysis or appraisals.

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment
of impairment for cerlain of its long-lived assets in conjunction with its 2012 restructuring plan. In addition, in the
fourth quatter of fiscal 2012, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment of impairment
for certain of its long-lived assefs due to volume declines in the European automotive markets. As a result, the
Company reviewed the long-tived assets for impairment and recorded a $39 million impairment charge within
restructuring costs on the consolidated statement of income, of which $3 million was recorded in the third quarter
and $36 miflion in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, Of the total impairment charge, $14 miltion related to the Power
Solutions segment, $11 million related to the Automotive Experience Europe segment, $4 million related to the
Building Efficiency Other segment and $10 million related to corporale assels. Refer to Note 15, “Significant
Restructuring Costs,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the 2012
Plan. The impairment was measured, depending on the asset, cither under an income approach utilizing forecasted
discounted cash flows or a market appreach utilizing an appraisal to determine fair values of the impairment assets.

" These methods are consistent with the methods the Company employed in prior periods to value other long-lived
assets. The inputs utilized in the analyses are classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.”

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an impairment charge related to an equity investment.
Refer 1o Note 10, *Tair Value Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional
information.

At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company concluded it did not have any other triggering events requiring
asscssment of impairment of its long-lived assets.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment of
impairment of its long-lived assets due to the planned relocation of a plant in Japan in the Automotive Experience
Asia segment. As a result, the Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment and recorded an $11 million

39




impairment charge within cost of sales in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 related to the Automotive Experience
Asia segment. The impairment was measured under a market approach utilizing an appraisal. The inputs utilized in
the analysis are classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures.”

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment of
impairment of its long-lived assets due to the planned relocation of its headquarters building in Japan in the
Automotive Experience Asia segment. As a resull, the Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment and
recorded an $11 million impairment charge within selling, general and administrative expenses in the third quarter
of fiscal 2010 rclated to the Awtomotive Experience Asia segment. The impairment was measured under a market
approach utilizing an appraisal. The inputs utilized in the analysis are classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair
value hicrarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.”

In the second quatter of fiscal 2010, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment of
impairment of its long-lived assets duc to planned plant closures for the Automotive Experience North Ametica
segment. These closures are a result of the Company’s revised restruciuring actions to the 2008 restructuring plan,
As a result, the Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment and recorded a $19 million impairment
charge in the second quarter of fiscal 2010 related to the Automotive Experience North America segment. This
impairment charge was offset by a decrease in the Company’s restructuring reserve related to the 2008 restructuring
plan due to lower employee severance and termination benefil cash payments than previously expected. The
impairment was measured under an income approach utilizing forecasted discounted cash flows to determine the fair
value of the impaired assets. This method s consistent with the method the Company has employed in prior periods
to value other long-lived assets. The inputs utilized in the discounted cash flow analysis are classified as Level 3
inputs within the fair value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value Mcasurements and Disclosures.”

Investments in partially-owned alfiliates (“affiliates™) at September 30, 2012 were $948 million, $137 million higher
than the prior year. The increase was primarily due to positive earnings by affiliates in all businesses, primarily in
the Automotive Experience Asia and Power Solutions segments, and an acquisition of additional interests in a Power
Solutions affiliate, partially offset by dividends paid by affiliates and the acquisition of the controlling interest in a
formerly unconsolidated Power Solutions affiliate.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Working Capital

September 30,  September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Current assets 3 12,673 % 12,015
Current liabilities {10,855) {10,782)

1,818 1,233 47%

Less: Cash 265 257
Add: Short-term debt 323 596
Add: Current portion of long-term debt 424 17
Working capital : $ 2,300 §$ 1,589 45%
Accounts recetvable 7,308 7,151 2%
Inventories 2,227 2,316 -4%
Accounts payable 6,114 6,159 -1%

s  The Company defines working capital as current assets less current liabilities, excluding cash, short-term debt,
and the current portion of leng-term debt, Management believes that this measure of working capital, which
excludes financing~related items, provides a more useful measurement of the Company’s operating
performance.

s The increase in working capital at September 30, 2012 as compared to September 30, 2011 was primarily due to
higher accounts rcecivable from higher sales volumes, lower accounts payable primarily due to timing of
supplier payments, lower accerued compensation and benefits primarily due to lower incentive compensation,
and higher other current assets, partially offset by lower inventory levels based on increased turnover,
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s The Company’s days sales in accounts receivable increased to 55 at September 30, 2012 trom 52 for the prior
year. The increase in accounts receivable compared to September 30, 2011 was primarily due to increased sales
in the current year and timing of customer receipts. There has been no significant adverse change in the level of
overdue receivables or changes in revenue recognition methods.

¢ The Company’s inventory turns during fiscal 2012 were higher compared to ihe prior year primarily due fo
increased sales volumes and improvements in inventory management.

¢« Days in accounts payable at September 30, 2012 increased to 72 days from 71 days at September 30, 2011
primarily due to the timing of supplier payments,

Cash Flows
Year Ended September 30,

(in millions) 2012 2011

Cash provided by operating activities $ 1,559 % 1,076
Cash used by investing activities {1,792} (2,637)
Cash provided by financing activities 207 1,239
Capital expenditures {1,831) (1,325)

+ ‘The increase in cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to changes in accounts receivable,
inventory and restructuring reserves; partially offset by changes in accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
other assets and accrued income faxes; and [ower net income.

e The decrease in cash used by investing activities was primarily due to lower cash paid for acquisitions of
businesses and cash received for business divestitures, partially offset by higher capital expenditures.

e The decrease in cash provided by financing activities was primarily due to a prior year $1.6 billion bond
issuance, and current year cash paid o repurchase stock and acquire noncontrolling interests, partially offset by
a cutrent year $1.1 billion bond issuance and lower repayments of debt. Refer to Note 8, “Debt and Financing
Arrangements,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for further discussion on debt issuances and
debt levels.

s The increase in capital expenditures in the current year primarily relaled fo capacity increases and vertical
integration efforts in the Power Solutions business, program spending for new customer launches in the
Automotive Experience business, and increased investments to support customer growth and enhance the
Company’s sirategic footprint primarily in Southeast Asia.

Capitalization
September 30, September 30,
(in millions) 2012 2011 Change
Short-term debt $ 323 % 596
Current portion of long-term debt 424 17
Long-term debt 5,321 4,533
Total debt $ 6,068 § 5,146 18%
Shareholders’ equity
attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. 11,535 11,042 5%
Total capitalization $ 17,623 § 16,188 9%

Total debt as a % of
total capitalization 34% 32%

o The Company believes the percentage of total debt Lo tolal capitalization is useful to understanding the
Company’s financial condition as it provides a review of the extent to which the Company relies on external
debt financing for its funding and is a measure of risk to its shareholders.

e At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company had committed bilateral euro denominated revolving credit
facilitics totaling 237 million euro and 223 million euro, respectively. Additionally, al September 30, 2012 and
2011, the Company had committed bilateral U.S. dollar denominaied revolving credit facilities totaling $185
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million and $50 million, respectively. There were no draws on any of the revolving facilities for the respective
periods. As of September 30, 2012, facilities for $185 million and 137 million euro are scheduled to expire in
fiscal 2013, and a facility for 100 million euro is scheduled to expire in fiscal 2014.

In November 2010, the Company repaid debt of $82 million which was acquired as part of an acquisition in the
first quarter of fiscal 2011, The Company used cash to repay the debi,

In January 2011, the Company rctired $654 million in principal amount, plus accrued interest, of its 5.25%
fixed rate notes that matured on January 15, 2011, The Company used cash to fund the payment,

In February 2011, the Company issued $350 million aggregale principal amount of fleating rate senior
unsecured notes due in fiscal 2014, $450 million aggregate principal amount of 1,75% senior unsecured fixed
rate notes due in fiscal 2014, $500 million aggregate principal amount of 4.25% senior unsecured fixed raie
notes due in fiscal 2021 and $300 million aggregate principal amount of 5.7% senior unsccured fixed rate notes
duc in fiscal 2041. Aggregate net proceeds of $1.6 billion from the issues were used for general corporate
purposes including the retirement of short-term debt.

Tn February 2011, the Company entered into a six-year, 100 million euro, floating rate loan scheduled fo mature
in February 2017. Proceeds from the facility were used for general corporate purposes,

In February 2011, the Company replaced its $2.05 billion commitled five-year credit facility, scheduled 1o
mature in December 2011, with a $2.5 billion committed four-year credit facility scheduled to mature in
February 2015. The facility is used to support the Company’s outstanding commercial paper. At September 30,
2012, there were no draws on the facility.

In April 2011, a total of 157,820 equity units, which had a purchase contract settlement date of March 31, 2012,
were early exercised, As a result, the Company issued 766,673 shares of Johnson Controls, Inc. common stock
and approximately $8 million of 11.5% notes due 2042.

In November 2011, the Company issued $400 million aggregate principal amount of 2.6% senior unsecured
fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2017, $450 million aggregate principal amount of 3.75% senior unsecured fixed
rate notes due in fiscal 2022 and $250 million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% senior unsecured fixed rate
notes due in fiscal 2042, Aggregate net proceeds of $1.1 billion from the issues were used for general corporate
purposes, including the retirement of short-term debt and confributions to the Company’s pension and
postretirement plans,

In December 2011, the Company entered into a five-year, 75 million euro, floating rate credit facility scheduled
to mature in February 2017, The Company drew on the credit facility during the second quarter of fiscal 2012.
Proceeds from the facility were used for general corporate purposes.

In March 2012, the Company remarketed $46 million aggregate principal amount of 11.5% subordinated notes
due in fiscal 2042, on behalf of holders of Corporate Units and holders of separate notes, by issuing $46 million
aggregate principal amount of 2.355% senior notes due on March 31, 2017.

The Company also selectively makes use of short-term credit lines. The Company estimates that, as of
September 30, 2012, it could borrow up to $1.9 billion at its current debt ratings on committed credit lines.

The Company belicves its capital resources and liquidity position at September 30, 2012 are adequate to meet
projected needs. The Company believes requiremenis for working capital, capital expenditures, dividends,
minimum pension contributions, debt maturities, announced acquisitions and any potential acquisitions in fiscal
2013 will continue to be funded from operations, supplemented by shori- and long-term borrowings, if required.
The Company currently manages its short-term debt position in the U.S. and euro commercial paper markets
and bank loan markets. In the event the Company is unable to issue commercial paper, it would have the ability
to draw on its $2.5 billion revolving credit facility, which matures in February 2015, There were no draws on
the revolving credit facility as of September 30, 2012. As such, the Company believes it has sufficient financial
resources to fund operations and meet its obligations for the foreseeable future.

The Company earns a significant amount of its operating income outside the U.S., which is deemed to be
permanently reinvested in foreign jurisdictions. The Company currently does not intend nor foresee a need to
repattiate these funds. The Company’s intent is for such earnings to be reinvested by the subsidiaries or to be
repatriated only when it would be tax effective through the utilization of foreign tax credits. The Company
expects existing domestic cash and Hquidity 1o continue to be sufficient to fund the Company’s domestic
operating activities and cash commitments for investing and financing activities for at least the next twelve
months and thereafier {or the foreseeable future. In addition, the Company expects existing foreign cash, cash
equivalents, short-term investments and cash flows from operations to continue to be sufficient to fund the
Company’s foreign operating activities and cash commitments for investing activities, such as material capital
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expenditures, for at least the next twelve months and thereafler for the foreseeable future, Should the Company
require more capital in the U.S. than is generated by operations domestically, the Company could elect to raise
capital in the U.S. through debt or equity issuances, This alternative could result in increased interest expense or
other dilution of the Company’s earnings. The Company has borrowed funds domestically and continucs to
have the ability to borrow funds domestically at reasonable interest rates.

= The Company’s debt financial covenants require a minimum consolidaied shareholders’ equity attributable to
Johnson Controls, Inc. of at least $3.5 billion at all times and allow a maximum aggregated amount of 10% of
consolidated sharcholders® equity attributable io Johnson Controls, Inc. for liens and pledges. For purposes of
calculating the Company’s covenants, consolidated shareholders’ equity atiributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. is
calculated without giving effect to (i) the application of ASC 715-60, “Defined Benefit Plans - Other
Postretivement,” or (ii) the cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment. As of September 30, 2012,
consolidated shareholders’ equity atfributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. as defined per the Company’s debt
financial covenants was $11.2 billion and there were no outstanding amounts for liens and pledges. The
Company expects to remain in compliance with all covenants and other requirements set forth in its credit
agreements and indentures for the foresecable fiture. None of the Company’s debt agreements limit access to
stated borrowing levels or require accelerated repayment in the event of a decrease in the Company’s credit
rating,

A summary of the Company’s significant contractual obligations as of September 30, 2012 is as follows (in
millions):

2018

Total 2013 2014-2015 2016-2017  and Beyond
Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt
(including capital leasc obligations)* : $ 5745 % 424 % 1,072 § 1645 $ 2,604
Interest on long-term debt
(including capital lease obligations)* 2,566 233 413 305 1,615
Operating leases 978 315 402 174 87
Purchase obligations 2,115 1,732 396 40 7
Pension and postretirement contributions 382 94 47 54 187
Total contractual cash obligations $ 11,846 § 2,798 § 2330 § 2218 % 4,500

* See "Capitalization" for additional information related to the Company's long-term debt.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND POLICIES

The Company prepares its consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). This requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates,
The following policies arc considered by management 1o be the most critical in understanding the judgments that are
involved in the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statcments and the uncertainties that could
impact the Company’s results ol operations, financial position and cash flows.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s Building Bfficiency business recognizes tevenwe from cerfain long-term contracts over the
contractual period under the percentage-of-completion (POC) method of accounting. This method of accounting
recognizes sales and gross profit as work is performed based on the relationship between actual costs incurred and
total cstimated cosis at completion. Recognized revenues that will not be billed under the terms of the contract until
a later date are recorded in unbilled accounts receivable. Likewise, contracts where billings to date have exceeded
recognized revenues are recorded in other current liabilities. Changes to the original cstimales may be required
during the life of the contract and such estimates are reviewed monthly. Sales and gross profit arc adjusted using the
cumulative catch-up method for revisions in estimated total contract costs and contract values, Estimated losses are
recorded when identified. Claims against customers are recognized as revenue upon settlement. The amount of
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accounts receivable due after one year is not significant. The use of the POC mcthod of accounting involves
considerable use of estimates in determining revenues, costs and profits and in assigning the amounts to accounting
periods. The periodic reviews have not resulied in adjustments that were significant to the Company’s results of
operations. The Company continually evaluates all of the assumptions, risks and uncertainties inherent with the
application of the POC method of accounting.

The Building Efficiency business enters into extended warranties and long-term service amd maintenance
agreements with certain customers, For these arrangements, revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
respective contract term.

The Company’s Building Efficiency business also sells certain heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) and
refrigeration products and services in bundled arrangements, where multiple products and/or services are involved.
In accordance with ASU No. 2009-13, “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangements — A Consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force,” the Company divides bundled
arrangements into separate deliverables and revenue is allocated to each deliverable based on the relative selling
price method. Significant deliverables within these arrangements include equipment, commissioning, service labor
and extended warranties. In order to estimate relative selling price, market data and transfer price studies are
utilized. Approximately four to twelve months separate the timing of the first deliverable until the last piece of
cquipment is delivered, and there may be extended warranty arrangements with duration of onc to five years
commencing upon the end of the standard warranty period.

In ali other cases, the Company recognizes revenue at the time title passes to the customer or as services are
performed.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in excess of the fair values assigned to identifiable net assets acquired.
The Company reviews goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal quarter or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate the asset might be impaired. The Company performs impairment reviews for its
repotling units, which have been determined to be the Company’s reporiable segments or one level below the
reportable segments in certain instances, using a fair-value method based on management’s judgmenis and
assuniptions or third party valuations. The fair value of a reporting unit refers to the price that would be received to
sell the unil as a whole in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In estimating
the fair value, the Company uses multiples of earnings based on the average of historical, published multiples of
earnings of comparable entities with similar operations and economic characteristics, In certain instances, the
Company uses discounted cash flow analyses to further support the fair value estimates. The inputs utilized in the
analyses arc classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures.” The estimated fair value is then compared with the carrying amount of the
reporting unit, including recorded goodwill. The Company is subject to financial statement risk to the extent that the
carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value. The impairment testing performed by the Company in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 indicated that the estimated fair value of each reporting unit substantially
exceeded ils corresponding carrying amount including recorded goodwill, and as such, no impairment existed at
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010. No reporting unit was determined to be at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test. While at September 30, 2012 the estimated fair value of each reporting unit substantially
exceeded its corresponding carrying amount including recorded goodwill, a prolonged significant decline in the
European automotive industry could put the Company at risk of not achieving future growth assumptions and could
result in impairment of goodwill or other long-lived assets, or result in additional restructuring actions, within the
Automotive Experience Europe segment, which could be material to the consolidated financial statements,

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are also subject to at least annual impairment testing. Other intangible assets
with definite lives continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives and are subject to impairment testing if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the assct might be impaired. A considerable amount of management
judgment and assumptions are required in performing the impairment tests. While the Company believes the
judgments and assumptions used in the impairment tests are reasonable and no impairment cxisted at September 30,
2012, 2011 and 2010, different assumptions could change the estimated fair values and, therefore, impairment
charges could be required, which could be material to the consolidated financial statements.
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Employee Benefit Plans

The Company provides a range of benefits to its employees and retired employees, including pensions and
postretirement benefits. Plan assets and obligations are measured anmually, or more frequently if there is a
remeasurement event, based on the Company’s measurement date wilizing various actuarial assumptions such as
discount rates, assumed rates of return, compensation increases, turnover rates and health care cost trend rates as of
that date. The Company reviews ils actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and makes modifications to the
assumptions based on current rates and trends when appropriate.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company changed its accounting policy for recognizing pension and
postretirement benefit expenses. The Company’s historical accounting treatment smoothed asset returns and
amortized deferred actuarial gains and losses over future years. By adopting the new mark-to-market accounting
method, the Company recognizes these gains and losses in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year or at the date of a
remeasurement event, The Company believes this new policy is preferable and provides greater transparency to on-
going operational results. The change has no impact on future pension and postretirement funding or benefits paid to
participants. These changes have been reported through retrospective application of the new policy to all periods
presented.

U.S. GAAP requires that companics recognize in the statement of financial position a liability for defined benefit
pension and postretirement plans that are underfunded or unfunded, or an asset for defined benefit pension and
posiretirement plans that are overfunded. U.S. GAAP also requires that companies measure the benefit obligations
and fair value of plan assets that determine a benefit plan’s funded status as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-
end.

The Company considers the expected benefit payments on a plan-by-plan basis when sctting assumed discount rates.
As a result, the Company uses different discount rates for each plan depending on the plan jurisdiction, the
demographics of participants and the expected timing of benefit payments, For the 1.5, pension and postretirement
plans, the Company uses a discount rate provided by an independent third party calculated based on an appropriate
mix of high quality bonds. For the non-U.S. pension and postretirement plans, the Company consistently uses the
relevant country specific benchmark indices for determining the various discount rates. The Company’s discount
rate on U.S. plans was 4.15% and 5.25% at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company’s weighted
average discount rate on non-U.S, plans was 3.40% and 4.00% at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In estimating the expected return on plan assets, the Company considers the historical returns on plan assets,
adjusied for forward-looking considerations, inflation assumptions and the impact of the active management of the
plans’ invested assets. Reflecting the relatively long-term nature of the plans’ obligations, approximately 50% of the
plans’ assets are invested in equilies, with the remainder primarily invested in fixed income and alternative
investments. For the years ending September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s expected long-term return on U.S,
pension plan assets used to determine net periodic benetit cost was 8.50%. The actual rate of return on U.S. pension
plans was above 8.50% in fiscal 2012 and below 8.50% in fiscal 2011. For the years ending September 30, 2012 and
2011, the Company’s weighted average expected long-term return on non-U.S. pension plan assets was 5.15% and
5.50%, respectively. Plan assets for the Company’s posiretirement plans were contributed at the end of fiscat 2011
and were not contemplated in fiscal 2011 net periodic benefit costs. For the year ending September 30, 2012, the
Company’s weighted average expected long-term return on postretirement plan assets was 6.30%. The actual rate of
return on postretirement plan assets was above 6,30% in fiscal 2012.

Beginning in fiscal 2013, the Company befieves the long-term rate of retun will approximate 8,00%, 4.55% and
5.80% for U.S. pension, non-U.S. pension and postretirement plans, respectively. Any differences between actual
investment results and the expected long-term asset returns will be reflected in net periodic bencfit costs in the
fourth quarter of each fiscal year. If the Company’s actual returns on plan assets are less than the Company’s
expectations, additional contributions may be required.

In fiscal 2012, total employer and employee confributions to the defined benefit pension plans were $364 million, of
which $266 million were voluntary contributions made by the Company. The Company expects to contribute
approximately $100 million in cash to its defined benefit pension plans in fiscal year 2013, In fiscal 2012, total
employet and employee contributions to the postretirement plans were $63 million, of which $60 million were
voluntary contributions made by the Company. The Company does not expect to make any significant contributions
to its postretivement plans in fiscal year 2013.
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Based on information provided by its independent actuaries and other relevant sources, the Company believes that
the assumptions used are reasonable; however, changes in these assumptions could impact the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties to its customers depending upon the specific product and terms of the customer
purchase agreement. A {ypical warranty program requires that the Company replace defective products within a
specified time period from the date of sale. The Company rccords an estimale of {uture warranty -related costs based
on actual historical return rates and other known factors. Based on analysis of return rates and other factors, the
adequacy of the Company’s warranty provisions are adjusted as necessary. At September 30, 2012, the Company
had recorded $278 million of watranty reserves. The Company monitors its warranty activity and adjusts its reserve
estimates when i1 is probable that future warranty costs will be different than those estimates,

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740, “Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future fax consequences attributable to differences between financial statement
cattying amounts of exisling assets and Habilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and other loss
catryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or seitled. The Company
records a valuation allowance that primarily represents non-U.S. operating and other loss carryforwards for which
uiilization is uncertain. Management judgment is required in determining {he Company’s provision for income
taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities and the valuation allowance recorded against the Company’s net deferred tax
assets. In calculating the provision for income taxes on an interim basis, the Company uses an estimate of the annual
effective tax rate based upon the facts and circumstances known at each interim period. On a quarterly basis, the
actual effective tax rate is adjusted as appropriate based upon the actual results as compared to those forecasted at
the beginning of the fiscal year. In determining the need for a valuation allowance, the historical and projected
financial results of the legal entity or consolidated group recording the net deferred tax asset are considered, along
with any other positive or negative evidence. Since future financial results may diiffer from previous estimales,
periodic adjustments to the Company’s valuation allowance may be necessary. At September 30, 2012, the
Company had a valuation allowance of $766 million, of which $619 million relates to net operating loss
carryforwards primarily in Fiance and Spain, for which sustainable taxable income has not been demonstrated; and
$147 million for other deferred tax assets. Given the current economic uncertainty, it is reasonably possible that over
the next twelve months, valuation allowances against deferred tax assets in certain jurisdictions may result in a net
increase to tax expense of up to $400 million,

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous non-U.S. jurisdictions. Judgment is required in
determining its worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the related assets and liabilities. In the ordinary
course of the Company’s business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Company is regularly under audit by tax authoritics. At September 30, 2012, the
Company had unrecognized tax benefits of $1,465 million.

The Company does not provide additional U.S. income taxes on undistributed earnings of non-U.S. conselidated
subsidiaries included in sharcholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. Such earnings could become
taxable upon the sale or liquidation of these non-U.S. subsidiaries or upon dividend repatriation. The Company’s
intent is for such earnings to be reinvested by the subsidiaries or to be repatriated only when it would be tax
effective through ihe utilization of foreign tax credits. Refer to “Capitalization™ within the “Liquidity and Capital
Resources” section for discussion of domestic and foreign cash projections.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2012-02, “Intangibles — Goodwill and
Other (Topic 350): Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment” ASU No. 2012-02 provides
companies an option first to assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events and
circumstances indicates that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired. If, as a
result of the qualitative assessment, it is determined that it is not more likely than not that the indefinite-lived
intangible assets is impaired, then the Company is not required to take further action. ASU Ne. 2012-02 will be
effective for the Company for impairment tesls of indefinite-lived intangible assets performed in the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2013, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial condition and results of operations.
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In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-11, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities.” ASU No. 2011-11 requires additional quantitative and qualitative disclosures of gross and
net information regarding financial instruments and derivative instruments that are offset or eligible for offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. ASU No. 2011-11 will be cffective for the Company for the quarter
ending December 31, 2013. The adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-09, “Compensation — Retirement Benefits — Multiempioyer
Plans (Subtopic 715-80): Disclosures about an Employer’s Participation in 2 Multiemployer Plan.” ASU No. 2011-
09 requires additional quantitative and gualitative disclosures about an employer’s participation in multiemployer
pension plans, including disclosure of the name and identifying number of the significant multiemployer plans in
which the employer participales, the level of the employer’s participation in the plans, the financial health of the
plans and the nature of the employer commitments to the plans. ASU No. 2011-09 was effective for the Company
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2012, The adoption of this guidance had no impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition and results of operations. Refer to Note 14, “Retirement Plans,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements for disclosures surrounding the Company’s participation in multiemployer pension
plans.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing
Goodwill for Tmpairment.” ASU No. 2011-08 provides companics an option to perform a qualitative assessment lo
determine whether further goodwill impairment testing is necessary. If, as a result of the qualitative assessment, it is
determined that it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, the two-
step quantitative impairment test is required. Otherwise, no further testing is required. ASU No. 2011-08 will be
effective for the Company for goodwill impairment tests performed in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2013,
with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations, .

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of
Comprehensive Tncome.” ASU No. 2011-05 eliminates the option lo present components of other comprehensive
income as part of the statement of sharcholders® equity. All non-owner changes in sharcholders® equity instead must
be presented either in a single conlinuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate bul consecutive
statements, ASU No. 2011-05 will be ctfective for the Company for the quarter ending December 31, 2012, The
adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company’s consoldated financial condition and results of
operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, “Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve
Common Fair Value Measurement and Discloswre Requirements in U.S, GAAP and TFRSs.” ASU No. 2011-04
clarifies and changes the application of various fair value measurement principles and disclosure requirements, and
was effective for the Company beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2012 (January 1, 2012), The adoption of this
guidance had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition and results of operations, Refer to Note
[0, “Fair Value Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for disclosures surrounding the
Company’s fair value measurements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company selectively uses derivative instruments to reduce. market risk associated with changes in foreign
currency, commodities, interest rates and stock-based compensation. All hedging transactions are authorized and
executed pursuant to clearly defined policies and procedures, which strictly prohibit the use of financial instruments
for speculalive purposes. At the inception of the hedge, the Company assesses the effectiveness of the hedge
instrument and designates the hedge instrument as either (1) a hedge of a recognized asset or liability or of a
recognized firm commitment (a fair value hedge), (2) a hedge of a forecasted iransaction or of the variability of cash
flows to be received or paid related to an unrecognized asset or liability (a cash flow hedge) or (3} a hedge of a net
investment in a non-U.S. operation (a net investment hedge). The Company performs hedge effectiveness testing on
an ongoing basis depending on the type of hedging instrument used. All other derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments under ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging,” are revalued in the consolidated statements of income.

For all foreign currency derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges, retrospective effectiveness is tested
on a monthly basis using a cumulative dollar offset test. The fair value of the hedged exposures and he fair value of
the hedge instruments arc revalued and the ratio of the cumulative sum of the periodic changes in the value of the
hedge instruments to the cumulative sum of the periodic changes in the value of the hedge is calculated. The hedge
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is decmed as highly effective if the ratio is between 80% and 125%. For commodity derivative confracts designated
as cash flow hedges, effectiveness s tested using a regression calculation. Incffectiveness is minimal as the
Company aligns most of the critical terms of its derivatives with the supply contracts.

For net investment hedges, the Company assesses its net investment positions in the non-11.8. operations and
compares it with the outstanding net investiment hedges on a quarterly basis. The hedge is deemed effeciive if the
aggregate oufstanding principal of the hedge instruments designated as the net investment hedge in a non-U.S.
operation does not exceed the Company’s net investment positions in the respective non-U.S. operation.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swaps to reduce market risk associated with changes in interest rates for
its fixed-rate bonds, For the five fixed to floating intercst rate swaps totaling $450 million to hedge the coupon of its
1.75% notes maturing March 2014, the Company clected the short cut method as the criteria to apply the short cut
method as defined in ASC 815 was met and the critical terms for both the hedge and underlying hedged item are
identical at inception of the hedge and the presented reporting periods. In applying the short cut method, the
Company is allowed to assume zero ineffectiveness without performing detailed effectiveness asscssments and does
not record any ineffectiveness related to the hedge relationship. For remaining interest rate swaps, the long-haul
method is used. The Company therefore assesses retrospective and prospective effectiveness on a quarterly basis and
records any measured ineffectiveness in the consolidated statements of income.

Equity swaps and any other derivative instrumenis not designated as hedging instruments under ASC 815 require no
assessment of effectiveness on a quarterly basis.

A discussion of the Company’s accounting policies for derivative financial instruments is included in Note I,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements, and further
disclosure relating to derivatives and hedging activities is included in Note 9, “Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Aclivities,” and Note 10, “Fair Value Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Exchange

The Company has manufacturing, sales and distribution facilities around the world and thus makes investments and
enters into transactions denominated in various foreign currencies. In order to maintain strict control and achieve the
benefits of the Company’s global diversification, foreign exchange exposures for each currency are netted internally
so that only its net foreign exchange exposures are, as appropriate, hedged with financial instruments.

The Company hedges 70% to 90% of the nominal amount of each of its known foreign exchange transactional
exposures. The Company primarily enters into foreign currency exchange coniracts to reduce the earnings and cash
flow impact of the variation of non-functional currency denominated receivables and payables. Gains and losses
resulting from hedging instruments offse! the foreign exchange gains or losses on the underlying assets and
liabilities being hedged. The maturities of the forward exchange contracts generally coincide with the settlement
dates of the related transactions. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on these contracts arve recognized in the
same period as gains and losses on the hedged items. The Company also selectively hedges anticipated transactions
that are subject to foreign exchange exposure, primarily with forcign currency exchange contracts, which are
designated as cash flow hedges in accordance with ASC 815. At Septeruber 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company
estimates that an unfavorable 10% change in the exchange rates would have decreased net unrealized gains by
approximately $23 million and $54 million, respectively.

The Company has entered into cross-currency interest rate swaps to selectively hedge portions of its net invesiment
in Japan. The currency effects of the cross-currency interest rate swaps are reflected in the accumulated other
comprehensive income (AOCI) account within shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Conirols, Inc. where
they offset gains and losses recorded on the Company’s net investment in Japan.

Interest Rates

The Company uses interest rate swaps to offset its exposure to interest rate movements. In accordance with ASC
815, these outstanding swaps qualify and are designated as fair value hedges. As of September 30, 2012, the
Company had eight interest rate swaps totaling $850 million outstanding. A 10% increase in the average cost of the
Company’s variable rate debt would result in an unfavorable change in pre-tax interest expense of approximately $3
million and $5 million at Seplember 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Commodities

The Company uses commodity contracts in the financial derivatives market in cases where commodity price risk
cannot be naturally offset or hedged through supply base fixed price contracts. Commodity risks are systematically
managed pursuant io policy guidelines. As a cash flow hedge, gains and losses resulting from the hedging
instruments offset the gains or losses on purchases of the underlying commaditics that will be used in the business.
The maturities of the commodity contracts coincide with the expected purchase of the commodities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, HEALTH AND SAFETY AND OTHER MATTERS

The Company's global operations are governed by environmental laws and worker safety laws. Under various
circumstances, these laws impose civil and criminal penalties and fines, as well as injunctive and remedial relief, for
noncompliance and require remediation at sites where Company-related substances have been released into the
environment.

The Company has expended substantial resources globally, both financial and managerial, to comply with applicable
environmental laws and worker safety laws and to protect the environment and workers. The Company believes it is
in substaniial compliance with such laws and mainfains procedures designed to foster and ensure compliance.
However, the Company has been, and in the future may become, the subject of formal or informal enforcement
actions or proceedings regarding noncompliance with such laws or the remediation of Company-related substances
released into the environment. Such matters typically are resolved by negotiation with regulatory authorities
resulting in commitments to compliance, abatement or remediation programs and in some cases payment of
penalties. Historically, neither such commitments nor penalties imposed on the Company have been material.

Environmental considerations are a part of all significant capital expenditure decisions; however, expenditures in
fiscal 2012 related solely to environmental compliance were not material. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the
Company recorded environmental liabilities of $25 million and $30 million, respectively. A charge to.income is
recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the liability is reasonably estimable.
The Company’s environmental liabilities do not take into consideration any possible recoveries of future insurance
proceeds. Because of the uncertainties associated with environmental remediation activities at sites where the
Company may be potentially liable, future expenses to remediate identified sites could be considerably higher than
the accrued Hability. However, while neither the timing nor the amount of ultimate costs associated with known
environmental remediation matters can be determined at this time, the Company does not expect that these matters
will have a maferial adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In addition, the
Company has identified asset retirement obligations for environmental matters that are expected to be addressed at
the retivement, disposal, removal or abandonment of existing owned facilities, primarily in the Power Solutions
business. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded conditional asset retirement obligations of $76
million and $91 million, respectively.

Additionally, the Company is involved in a number of product liability and various other casualty lawsuits incident
to the operation of its businesses. The Company maintains insurance coverages and records estimated costs for
claims and suits of this nature, It is management's opinion that none of these will have a materially adverse effect on
the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows (sce Note 20, “Commifments and
Contingencies,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements). Cosis refated 1o such matiers were not material to
the periods presented.
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

Previously reported quarterly amounts have been updated to reflect the retrospective application of the Company’s
accounting policy change for recognizing pension and postretirement benefit expense. Refer lo Note 1, “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for further details surrounding
this accounting policy change.

(in millions, except per share data) First Second Third Fourth Full

(unaudited) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
2012
Net sales 5 10,417 § 10,565 5 10,581 % 10,392 § 41,955
Gross profit 1,536 1,553 1,541 1,588 6,218
Net income (loss) attributable

to Johnson Controls, Inc. (1) 424 379 431 (8) 1,226
Earnings (Joss) per share (3}

Basic 0.62 0.56 0.63 (0.0 1.80

Diluted 0.62 0.55 0.63 (0.01 1.78
2011
Net sales b 9,537 % 10,144 § 10,364 $ 10,788 § 40,833
Gross profit , 1,416 1,476 1,552 1,614 6,058
Net income attributable

to Johnson Controls, Inc. {2) 400 414 367 234 1,415
Earnings per share (3)

Basic 0.59 0.61 0.54 0.34 2.09

Diluted 0.58 0.60 0.53 0.34 2.06

(1) The fiscal 2012 first quarter net income includes a $25 million gain on redemption of a warrant for an
existing Power Solutions partially-owned affiliate, The fiscal 2012 second quarter net income includes
a $35 million gain on business divestitures net of transaction costs in the Building Efficiency business
and a $14 million impairment of an equily investment in the Power Solutions segment. The fiscal 2012
third quarter net income includes $52 million of significant restructuring costs. The fiscal 2012 fourth
quarter net income includes $447 miilion of net mark-to-market charges on pension and postretirement
plans and $245 million of significant restructuring costs. The preceding amounts are stated on a pre-tax
basis.

(2) The fiscal 2011 first quarter net income includes a $27 million net actuarial gain due to a pension plan
curtailment. The fiscal 2011 second quarter net income includes a $68 million net actuarial gain due to
a pension plan curtailment and $36 million of costs related to business acquisitions recorded in the
Automotive Experience Europe segment. The fiscal 2011 third quarter net income includes $28 miflion
of costs related to business acquisitions recorded in the Automotive Experience Europe segment. The
fiscal 2011 fourth quarter net income includes $479 million of net mark-to-market charges on pension
and postretirement plans; a $37 million gain on acquisition of a Power Solutions partially-owned
affiliate net of acquisition costs and related purchase accounting adjustments and a Power Solutions
partially-owned affiliate’s restatement of prior period income; and $43 million of restructuring costs
recorded in the Building Efficiency and Automotive Experience businesses. The preceding amounts
are stated on a pre-tax basis.

(3) Due to the use of the weighled-average shares outstanding for cach quarter for computing earnings per
share, the sum of the quarierly per share amounts may not equal the per share amount for the year.

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See “Risk Management” included in Item 7 - Management®s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johnson Controls, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its subsidiaries at September 30, 2012 and 2011, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for cach of the three years in the period ended September 30,
2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in
our opinion, the financial statement schedute listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2012, based on criteria established in fnrernal Control - Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company's managemenl is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibilily is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial
statement schedule, and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan atd perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a rmaterial weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions,

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2012 the Company has changed its method of
accounting for pension and postretirement benefits. All periods have been retroactively revised for this accounting
change.

" PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 100 East Wisconsin Avenue, Milwaukee, WI 53202
T: {414)212- 1600, F: (414) 212- 1880, www.pwe.com/us
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A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stalements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedurces that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and dircetors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assels that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
November 19, 2012
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended September 30,

(in millions, except per share data) 2012 2011 2010
Net sales
Products and systems* $§ 33561 $ 32420 § 27,204
Services* 8,394 8,413 7.101
41,955 40,833 34,305
Cost of sales
Products and systems* 28,830 27,675 23,263
Services* 6,898 7,100 5,821
35,737 34,775 29,084
Gross profil 6,218 6,058 5,221
Selling, general and administrative expenses (4,438) (4,393) (3,796)
Restructuring costs (297) - -
Net financing charges (233) (174) {170)
Equity income 340 298 254
Income before income taxes 1,590 1,789 1,509
Provision for income taxes 237 257 127
Net income _ _ 1,353 . 1,532 1,382
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests 127 117 75
Net income atiributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. 8 1,226 % 1,415 § 1,307

Earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

&~

1.80 3% 209 % 1.94
178 8 206 % 1.92

£

*  Products and systems consist of Automotive Experience and Power Solutions preducts and systems and
Building Efficiency installed systems. Setvices are Building Efficiency technical and Global Workplace
Solutions.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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Johnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

(in millions, except par value and share data)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts reccivable, less allowance for doubtful

accounts of $78 and $89, respectively
Inventories
Other curtent assets

Current assets

Property, plant and equipment - net
Goodwill

Other intangible assets - net
Investments in partially-owned affiliates
Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity

Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and benefits
Other current liabitities

Current liabilities

Long-term debt

Pension and postretirement benefits

Other noncurrent liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Commitments and contingencics (Note 20)

Redeemable noncontrolling interests

Common Stock, $.01 7/18 par value
shares authorized: 1,800,000,000

shares issued: 2012 - 688,483,873, 2011 - 682,634,236

Capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost (2012 - 6,176,266; 2011 - 2,470,168 shares})

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Shareholders’ equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Noncontrolling intetests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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September 30,

2012 2011
265§ 257
7,308 7,151
2,227 2,316
2,873 2,291
12,673 12,015
6,440 5,616
6,982 7,016
947 945
948 811
2,894 3,273
30,884 $ 29,676
323§ 596
424 17
6,114 6,159
1,090 1,315
2,904 2,695
10,855 10,782
5,321 4,533
1,248 1,102
1,504 1,819
8,073 7,454
253 260
10 9
2,725 2,620
8,541 7,838
(179 (74)
458 649
11,555 11,042
148 138
11,703 11,180
30,884 § 29,676




Johnson Controls, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

{in millions)

Operating Activities

Net income atiributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.
Income attributable fo noncontrolling interests
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles
Pension and postretirement benefit expense
Pension and postretirement contributions
Equity in earnings of partially-owned affiliates,
net of dividends received
Deferred income taxes
Impairment charges
Gain on divestitures - net
Fair value adjustment of equity investment
Equity-based compensation
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding
acquisitions and divestitures:
Receivables
Inventorics
Other assets
Restructuring reserves
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accrued income taxes
Cash provided by operating activilics

Investing Activities
Capital expenditures
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired
Business divestitures
Setflement of cross-currency interest rate swaps
Changes in long-term investments
Warrant redemption

Cash used by investing activities

Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in short-term debt - net
Increase in long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Stock repurchases
Payment of cash dividends
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options
Settlement of interest rate swaps
Cash paid to acquire a noncontrolling interest
Other
Cash provided {uscd) by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
$ 1226 § 1415 % 1,307
127 117 75
1.353 1,532 1.382
768 678 618
56 53 43
479 410 378
(414) (451) (695)
(138) (15) 5
(206) (257) (155)
53 ) 41
(40) - -
(12) {(89) 47)

56 59 49
(11 2 13
(114 (721) (608)
39 (387) (260)
(367) (118) 274
196 (94) (195)
(64) 343 812
{75 131 (247)
1,559 1,076 1,438
(1,831 (1,325) (777)
58 54 47
(30) (1,226) (61)
105 - -
(19) - -
(100) (140) (101)
25 - -
(1,792) (2,637) (892)
(302) 510 (575)
1,260 1,852 515
(36) (787) (526)
(102) - -
(477) (413) (339)
40 105 52

- 24 -

(115) (23) -
(61) (29 (22)
207 1,239 (895)
34 19 148
8 (303) (201)

257 560 761

$ 265 8 257 8§ 560

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Johnson Controls, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Sharcholders' Equity Attributable toe Johnson Controls, Inc.

Accumulated
Capitaf in Treasury Other
Commen  Excessof  Retained Stack, Comprehensive
(in miltions, except per share data) Total Stock Par Value  Eamings at Cost Income (Loss)
At Septemnber 30, 2009 {previously reported) $ 9,100 $ 9% 2,354 % 6,615 $ (70) $ 192
Pension and postretirement policy change (Note 1) - - - {691} - 691
At September 30, 2009 (revised) 9,100 9 2,354 5,924 (70) 883
Comprehensive income:

Net income atiributable to Johnson Controls, Inc, 1,307 - - £,307 - -
Foreign currency translation adjustments (115) - - - - {115)
Realized and unrealized gains on derivatives 13 - - - - 13
Unrealized gains on marketable common stock 3 - - - - 3
Employee retirement plans 14 “ - - - 14

Other comprehensive loss (83)

Comprehensive income 1,222
Cash dividends

Common ($0.52 per share) (350) - - (350) - -
Redemption value adjustment atiributable

to redeemable noncontrolling interests 9 - - 9 - -
Other, including options exercised S0 - 94 - (4) -
At September 30, 2010 16,071 9 2,448 6,890 (74) 798
Comprehensive income:

Net income attributable to Jechnson Controls, Inc. 1,415 - - 1,415 - -
Foreign currency transfation adjusiments (109 - : - - - {109
Realized and unrealized losscs on derivatives 47} - - - - {47
Unreatized gains on marketable common stock 3 - - - - 3
Employee retirement plans 4 - - - - 4

Other comprehensive loss (149)

Comprehensive income 1,266
Cash dividends

Common ($0.64 per share} {435) - - (435) - -
Redemption value adjustment attributable

to redeemable noncontrolling interesis (32) - - (32) - -
Other, including options exercised 172 - 172 - - -
At September 30, 2011 11,042 9 2,620 7,838 (74) 649
Comprehensive income:

Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Tnc, 1,226 - - 1,226 - -
Foreiga currency translation adjustments (221) - - - - (221)
Realized and unrealized gains on derivatives 39 - - - . 39
Unrealized losses on marketable common stock {H - - - - [4))
Employee retirement plans [63) - - - - &)

Other coniprehensive loss (191)

Comprehensive income 1,035
Cash dividends

Common ($0.72 per share) (492) - - {492) - -
Redemption value adjustment atiributable

to redeemable noncontrolling interests (35) - - 35) - -
Repurchases of common stock (102) - - - {102) -
Other, incheding options exercised 107 1 105 4 (3} -
At Sepiember 30, 2012 b 11,555 § 10 § 2,725 § §,541 § (179) 8§ 458

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fnancial statements.
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeni{s

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Johnson Controls, Inc. and iis domestic and non-U.S.
subsidiaries that are consolidated in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAP). Al significant intercompany transactions have been efiminated. Investments in partially-
owned affiliates are accounted for by the equity method when the Company’s intcrest exceeds 20% and the
Company does not have a controlling interest.

Under certain ctiteria as provided for in VFinancial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards
Codification {ASC) 810, “Consolidation,” the Company may consolidate a partially-owned affiliate. To determine
whether to consolidate a partially-owned affiliate, the Company first determines if the entity is a variable interest
entity (VIE). An entity is considered to be a VIE if it has one of the following characteristics: 1) the cntity is thinly
capitalized; 2) residual equity holders do not control the entity; 3) equity holders are shielded from economic losses
or do not participate fully in the entity’s residual economics; or 4} the entily was established with non-substantive
voting, If the entity meets one of these characteristics, the Company then determines if it is the primary beneficiary
of the VIE. The party with the power to direct activitics of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE’s
economic performance and the potential to absorb benefits or losses that could be significant to the VIE is
considered the primary beneficiary and consolidates the VIE. If the entity is not considered a VIE, then the
Company applies the voting interest model to determine whether or not the Company shall consolidate the partially-
owned affiliate.

Consolidated VIEs

Based upon the criteria set forth in ASC 810, the Company has determined that it was the primary beneficiary in
three VILs for the reporting period ended September 30, 2012 and two VIEs for the reporting period ended
September 30, 2011, as the Company absorbs significant economics of the entities and has the power to direct the
activities that are considered most significant to the entities.

Two of the VIEs manufacture products in North America for the automotive industry. The Company funds the
entities’ short-ferm liquidity needs threugh revolving credit facilities and has the power to direct the activities that
are considered most significant to the entities through its key customer supply relationships.

During the three month period ended December 31, 2011, a pre-existing VIE accounted for under the equity method
was reorganized into three separate investments as a result of the counterparty exercising its option to put its interest
to the Company. The Company acquired additional interests in two of the reorganized group entities. The
reorganized group entities are considered to be VIEs as the other owner party has been provided decision making
rights but does not have cquity at risk. The Company is considered the primary beneficiary of one of the entities due
to the Company’s power pertaining to decisions over significant activities of the entity. As such, the VIE has been
congolidated within the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position. The impact of the consolidation of
the entily on the Company’s consolidated statements of income for the year ended September 30, 2012 was not
material. The VIE is named as a co-obligor under a third party debt agreement of $135 million, maturing in fiscal
2019, in which it could become subject to paying more than its allocated share of the third party debt in the event of
bankruptcy of one or more of the other co-obligors. The other co-obligors, all related parties in which the Company
is an equity investor, consist of the remaining group entities involved in the reorganization. As part of the overall
reorganization transaction, the Company has also provided financial support to the group entities in the form of
loans totaling $101 million, which are subordinate to the third party debt agreement, The Company is a significant
customer of certain co-obligors, resulting in a remote possibility of loss. Additionally, the Company is subject to a
floor guaranty expiring in fiscal 2022; in the cvent that the other owner party no longer owns any part of the group
entities due to sale or transter, the Company has guaranteed that the proceeds received fiom the sale or transfer will
not be less than $25 million. The Company has partnered with the group entities to design and manufacture battery
components for the Power Solutions business.
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The carrying amounts and classification of assets (none of which are resiricted) and liabilities included in the
Company’s consolidated statements of financial position for the consolidated VIEs are as follows (in millions):

September 30,

2012 2011
Current assets $ 199 % 207
Noncurrent asseis 144 35
Total assets $ 343§ 262
Curtent liabilities 3 172 3 144
Noncurtent liabilities 25 -
Total liabilities % 197 % 144

Nonconsolidated ViEs

During the three month period ended June 30, 2011, the Company acquired a 40% interest in an equity method
invesiee. The investee produces and sells lead-acid balferies of which the Company will both purchase and supply
cerlain balteries to complement each investment partners’ portfolio. Commencing on the third anniversary of the
closing date, the Company has a contractual right to purchase the remaining 60% equity interest in the investes (the
“call option™}. If the Company does not exercise the call oplion on or before the fifth anniversary of the closing date,
for a petiod of six months thereafter the Company is subject to a contractual obligation at the counterpatty’s option
to sell the Company’s equity investment in the investee to the counterparty (the “repurchase option™). The purchase
price is fixed under both the call option and the repurchase option. Based upon the orileria set forth in ASC 810, the
Company has determined that the investee is a VIE as the equity holders, through their equity investments, may not
participate fully in the entity’s residual economics. The Company is not the primary beneficiary as the Company
does not have the power to make key operating decisions considered to be most significant to the VIE. Therefore, |
ihe invesiee is accounted for under the equity method of accounting as the Company’s interest exceeds 20% and the
Company docs not have a controlling interest. The investment balance included within investments in partially-
owned affiliates in the consolidated statement of {inancial position at September 30, 2012 and 2011 was $55 million
and $49 million, respectively, which represents the Company’s maximum exposure to loss. Current assets and
liabilities related to the VIE are immaterial and represent normal course of business trade receivables and payables
for all presented periods.

As mentioned previously within the “Consolidated VIEs” section above, during the three month period ended
December 31, 2011, a pre-existing VIE was reorganized into three separate investments as a result of the
counterparty exercising its option to put its interest to the Company. The reorganized group entities are considered
to be VIEs as the other owner party has been provided decision making rights but does not have equity at risk. The
Company is not considered to be the primary beneficiary of two of the entities as the Company cannot make key
operating decisions considered to be most significant to the VIEs. Therefore, the entities are accounted for under the
equity method of accounting as the Company’s interest exceeds 20% and the Company does not have a controlling
interest. The Company’s maximum exposure to loss, which included the partially-owned affiliate investment
balance and a note receivable, approximated $43 million at September 30, 2011, The Company’s maximum
exposure to loss at September 30, 2012 includes the partially-owned affiliate investment balance of $52 million as
well as the subordinated loan from the Company, third party debt agreement and floor guaranty mentioned
previously within the “Consolidated VIEs” section above. Current liabilities due to the VIEs are not material and
represent normal course of business trade payables for all presented periods.

The Company did not have a significant variable interest in any other unconsolidated VIEs for the presented
reporting periods.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels and labilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term debt and accounts payable approximate
their carrying values. See Note 9, “Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” and Note 10, “Fair Value
Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for fair value of financial instruments, including
derivative instruments, hedging activities and long-term debt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be
cash equivalents,

Receivables

Receivables consist of amounts billed and currently due from customers and unbilled costs and accrued profits
refated to revenues on long-term contracts that have been recognized for accounting purposes but not yet billed to
customers. The Company extends credit to customers in the normal course of business and maintains an allowance
for doubtful accounts resulting from the inability or unwillingness of customers to make required payments. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical experience, existing economic conditions and any specific
customer collection issues the Company has identified.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using either the last-in, first-out (LIFO)
method or the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Finished goods and work-in-process inventories include material,
labor and manufacturing overhead costs.

Pre-Production Costs Related to Long-Term Supply Arrangements

The Company’s policy for engineering, research and development, and other design and development costs related
to products that will be sold under long-term supply arrangements requires such costs to be expensed as incurred or
capitalized if reimbursement from the customer is contractually assured, Income related to recovery of these costs is
recorded within selling, general and administrative expense in the consolidated statements of income. At September
30, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded within the consolidated statements of financial position approximately
$286 miltion and $215 million, respectively, of engineering and research and development costs for which customer
reimbursement is contractually assured. The reimbursable costs are recorded in other current assets if reimbursement
will occur in less than one year and in other noncurrent assets if reimbursement will occur beyond one year.

Costs for molds, dies and other tools used to make products thal will be sold under long-term supply arrangements
are capitalized within property, plant and equipment if the Company has title to the assets or has the non-cancelable
right to use the assets during the term of the supply arrangement. Capitalized items, if specifically designed for a
supply arrangement, are amortized over the term of the arrangement; otherwise, amounts are amortized over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The carrying values of assets capitalized in accordance with the foregoing policy
are periodically reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying
amount may not be recoverable. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, approximately $113 million and $109 millien,
respectively, of costs for molds, dies and other tools were capitalized within property, plant and equipment which
represented assets to which the Company had title. In addition, at September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company
recorded within the consolidated statements of financial position in other ciurent assets approximately $284 million
and $254 million, respectively, of costs for meolds, dies and other tools for which customer reimbursement is
contractually assured.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets using the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes and accelerated methods for income

tax purposes, The estimated useful lives range from 3 to 40 years for buildings and improvements and from 3 to 15
years for machinery and equipment.

The Company capitalizes interest on borrowings during the active construction period of major capital projects.
Capitalized interest is added to the cost of the underlying assets and is amortized over the useful lives of the assets.
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assefs

Goodwill reflects the cost of an acquisition in excess of the fair values assigned to identifiable net assets acquired.
The Company reviews goodwill for impairment during the fourth fiscal quarter or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate the asset might be impaired. The Company performs impairment reviews for its
reporiing units, which have been determined to be the Company’s reportable segments or onc level below the
reportable segments in certain instances, using a fair-value method based on management’s judgments and
assumptions or third party valuations, The fair value of a reporting unit refers to the price that would be received to
setl the unit as a whole in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, In estimating
the fair value, the Company uses multiples of earnings based on the average of historical, published multiples of
carnings of comparable entities with similar operations and economic characteristics. In certain instances, the
Company uses discounted cash flow analyses to further support the fair value estimates. The inputs utilized in the
analyses are classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures.” The estimated fair value is then compared with the carrying amount of the
reporting unit, inchuding recorded goodwill. The Company is subject to financial slatement risk to the extent that the
carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value. The impairment testing performed by the Company in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 indicated that the estimated fair value of each reporting unit substantially
exceeded its corresponding carrying amount including recorded goodwill, and as such, no impairment existed at
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010. No reporting unit was determined o be at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test. While at September 30, 2012 the cstimated fair value of each reporting unit substantially
exceeded ifs corresponding carrying amount including recorded goodwill, a prolonged significant decline in the
European automotive industry could put the Company at risk of not achieving future growth assumptions and could
result in impairment of goodwill or other long-lived asseis, or result in additional restructuring actions, within the
Automotive Experience Europe segment, which could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

Indefinite lived other intangible assets are also subject to at least annual impairment testing. Other intangible assets
with definite lives continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives and are subject to impairment testing if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. A considerable amount of management
judgment and assumptions are required in performing the impairment tests. While the Company believes the
judgments and assumptions used in the impairment tests are reasonable and no impairment exisled at September 30,
2012, 2001 and 2010, different assumptions could change the estimated fair values and, therefore, impairment
charges could be required, which could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets with
definite lives, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the asset’s carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The Company conducts its long-lived asset impairment analyses in accordance with ASC
360-10-15, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” ASC 360-10-15 requires the Company te group assets
and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other
assets and liabilities and evaluate the asset group against the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows. If the
undiscounted cash flows do not indicate the carrying amount of the assct is recoverable, an impairment charge is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset group exceeds its fair value based on discounted
cash flow analysis or appraisals. See Note 16, “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets,” of the notes to consolidated
financial statements for disclosure of the impairment analyses performed by the Company during fiscal 2012, 2011
and 2010,

Percentage-of-Completion Centracts

The Building Efficiency business records certain long-term contracts under the percentage-of-completion method of
accounting. Under this method, sales and gross profit are recognized as work is performed based on the relationship
between actual costs incurred and total estimated costs at completion. The Company records costs and earnings in
excess of billings on uncompleted contracts within accounts receivable — net and billings in excess of costs and
earnings on uncompleted conlracts within other cuirent liabilities in the consolidated statements of f{inancial
position. Amounts included within accounts receivable — net related to these coniracts were $548 million and $476
million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Amounts included within other current liabilities were $365
million and $359 million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company’s Building Bfficiency business recognizes revenue from certain long-term contracts over the
contractual period under the percentage-of-completion (POC) method of accounting. This method of accounting
recognizes sales and gross profit as work is performed based on the relationship between actual costs incurred and
total estimated costs at completion. Recognized revenues that will not be billed under the terms of the contract until
a later date are recorded in unbilled accounts receivable, Likewise, contracts where billings to date have exceeded
recognized revenues are recorded in other current liabilities. Changes to the original estimates may be required
during the life of the contract and such estimates arc reviewed monthly. Sales and gross profit are adjusted using the
cumulative catch-up method for revisions in estimated total contract costs and contract values. Estimated losses are
recorded when identified. Claims against customers are recognized as revenue upon settlement. The amount of
accounis receivable due after one year is not significant. The use of the POC method of accounting involves
considerable use of estimates in determining revenues, costs and profits and in assigning the amounts to accounting
periods, The periodic reviews have not resulted in adjustments that were significant to the Company’s resulls of
operations. The Company continually evaluates all of the assumptions, risks and uncerlainties inherent with the
application of the POC method of accounting.

The Building Efficiency business enters inio extended warrantics and long-term service and maintenance
agreements with certain customers. For these arrangements, revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
respective contract term.

The Company’s Building Efficiency business also sells certain heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) and
refrigeration products and services in bundled arrangements, where multiple products and/or services are involved.
In accordance with ASU No. 2009-13, “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605): Multiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangements — A Consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force,” the Company divides bundled
arrangements into separate deliverables and revenue is allocated 1o each deliverable based on the relative selling
price method. Significant deliverables within these arrangements include equipment, commissioning,; service labor
and extended warranties. In order to estimate relative selling price, market data and transfer price studies are
utilized. Approximately four to twelve months separate the timing of the first deliverable until the last piece of
equipment is delivered, and there may be extended warranly arrangements with duration of one to five years
commencing upon the end of the standard warranty period.

In all other cases, the Company recognizes revenue at the lime tifle passes to the customer or as services are
performed.

Research and Development Costs

Expenditures for research activities relating to product development and improvement are charged against income as
incurred and included within selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of income.
Such expenditures for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $1,025 million, $876 million and
$723 million, respectively.

A portion of the costs associated with these activities is reimbursed by customers and, for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $516 million, $366 million and $315 million, respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding, Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by diluted weighted average shares
outstanding, Diluted weighted average shares include the dilutive effect of common steck equivalents which would
arise from the exercise of stock options and any outstanding Equity Units and convertible senior notes as of the
beginning of the period, for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010. See Note 12, “Earnings per
Share,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for the calculation of earnings per share.

Foreign Currency Translation

Substantially all of the Company’s infernational operations use the respective local currency as the functional
currency. Assets and Habilities of international entities have been translated at period-end exchange rates, and
income and expenses have been translated using average exchange rates for the period. Monefary assets and
liabilities denominated in non-funciional currencies are adjusted to reflect period-cnd exchange rates. The aggregate

62



transaciion gains (losses), net of the impact of foreign cwrrency hedges, included in net income for the years ended
September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $12 million, $(22) million and $50 million, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has written policies and procedures that place all financial instruments under the direction of
corporate treasury and restrict all derivative transactions to those intended for hedging purposes. The use of financial
instruments for speculative purposes is strictly prohibited, The Company uses financial instruments to manage the
market risk from changes in foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, stock-based compensation liabilities and
interest rates.

The fair values of all derivatives are recorded in the consolidated statements of financial position. The change in a
derivative’s fair value is recorded each period in current earnings or accumulated other comprehensive income,
depending on whether the derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and if so, the type of hedge
transaction. See Note 9, “Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” and Note 10, “Fair Value Measurements,”
of the notes to consolidated financial statements for disclosure of the Company’s derivative instruments and hedging
activities.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company changed its accounting policy for recognizing pension and
postretirement benefit expenses. The Company’s historical accounting treatment smoothed asset retwrns and
amortized deferred actuarial gains and losses over future years. The new mark-to-market approach includes
measuring the market related value of plan assets at fair value instead of utilizing a three-year smoothing approach.
In addition, the Company has elected to completely eliminate the corridor approach and recognize actuarial gains
and losses in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year or at the date of a remeasurement event. The Company believes
this new policy is preferable and provides greater {ransparency to on-going operational results. The change has no
impact on future pension and postretirement funding or benefits pald to participants. These changes have been
reported through retrospective application of the new policy 1o all periods presented.

This change resulted in a $14 million increase in net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. ($0.02 per dituted
share) in each of the quarters ended December 31, 2011, March 31, 2012 and June 30, 2012,
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The impact of all adjustments made to the consolidated
following table (in millions, except per share data):

Consolidated Statement of Income
Cost of sales

Products and systems

Services

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net incoimne
Net income aitributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.
Earnings per shate

Basic

Diluted

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Tlows

Cash provided by operating activities ‘ .
Net income atiributable to Johnson Controls, Ine,
Net income
Pension and postretirement benefit expense {1}
Pension and postretirement contributions (2)
Deferred income taxes
Other
Accounts payable and accrued [iabilities

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equity
Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.

Retained earnings al September 30, 2011

Net income atiributable to Johnson Controfs, Inc.

Retained earnings at September 30, 2012

Accumulated other comprehensive income (foss) at September 30, 2011

Employee retirement plans

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at September 30, 2012
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financial statements presented is summarized in the

2012
Previous Method ~ AsRepoited  Effect of Change
$ 28,796 % 28,839 % 43
6,922 6,898 (24)
6,237 6.218 (19)
4,102 4,438 336
1,945 1,550 (355)
378 237 (141)
1,567 1,353 214y
1,440 1,226 (214)
2.11 1.80 {0.31)
2.09 1.78 (0.31)
$ 9,839 § 8,541 § {1,298)
(840) 458 1,208
§ 1440 § 1,226 § 214y
1,567 1,353 (214)
- 479 479
- (414) (414)
(65) (206) (141)
75 (11) (86)
(440) (64) 376
$ 8,922 % 7.838 § (1,08
1,440 1,226 (214)
9,839 8,541 (1,298)
(435) 649 1,084
(222) (8) 214
(840) 458 1,298



2011

Previously
Reported Revised Effect of Change
Consolidated Statement of Income
Cost of sales
Products and systems $ 27,631 § 27,675 % 44
Services 7,032 7,100 68
Gross profit 6,170 6,058 (112)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 4,183 4,393 210
Income belore income laxes 2,111 1,789 (322)
Provision for income taxes 370 257 (113)
Net income 1,741 1,532 (209)
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. 1,624 1,415 (209)
Earnings per share
Basic 2.40 2.09 {0.31)
Diluted 2.36 2.06 (0.30)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Retained earnings 5 8922 % 7,838 § {1,084
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (435) 649 1,084
Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows
Cash provided by operating activities
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. b3 1,624 % 1415 % 20%)
Net income 1,741 1,532 (209}
Pension and postretirement benefit expense (1) - 410 410
Pension and postretirement contributions (2) - (451} (451)
Deferred incomne taxes {144) (257) {113)
Other 37 2 (35
Accounis payable and accrued liabilities (55) 343 398
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equity
Attributable to Johnson Controels, Inc.
Retained earnings at September 30, 2010 § 7,765 % 6,890 § (87%)
Net income attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc, 1,624 1,415 (209)
Retained emnings at September 30, 2011 8,922 7,838 {1,084)
Accumalated other comprehensive income {(loss) at September 30, 2010 (77 798 875
Employee retirement plans (205) 4 209
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at September 30, 2011 (435) 649 1,084
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2010

Previously
Reported Revised Effect of Change
Consolidated Statement of Income
Cost of sales
Products and systems $ 23,226 § 23,263 § 37
Services 5,790 5,821 31
Gross profit 5,289 5,221 (68)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3,610 3,796 186
Income before income taxes 1,763 1,509 (254)
Provision for income taxes 197 127 (70)
Net income 1,566 1,382 (184)
Net income atfributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. 1,491 1,307 (184)
Earnings per share
Basic 2.22 1.94 (0.28)
Diluted 2.19 1.92 (0.27)
Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows
Cash provided by operating activities:
Net income altributable to Johnson Controls, luc, $ 1,491 3 1,307 § (184)
Net income 1,566 1,382 (184)
Pension and postretirement benefit expense (1) - 378 378
Pension and postretirement contributions (2) - (695) (695}
Deferred income taxes (85) (155) (70)
Other 36 13 (23)
Acéounts payable and decrued liabilities ' ' 218 ’ 812 594
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Eguity
Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc,
Retained earnings at September 30, 2009 § 6,615 § 5924 % (691)
Net income attributable to Johnson Conlrols, Tnc. 1,491 1,307 (184)
Retained earnings at September 30, 2010 7,765 6,890 (875)
Accumulated other comprehensive incomc (loss) at September 30, 2009 192 883 691
Employee retirement plans (170} 14 184
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at September 30, 2010 N 798 875

{1} Pension and postretirement benefit expense was previously included in different lines on the consolidated
statement of cash flows. The amoriization of amounts from accumulated other comprehensive income was
previously Included in the other line, The remaining expense was included in the accounts payable and
accrued liabilities line.

(2) Pension and posiretirement coniributions were previousty included in the accounts payable and accrued
lHabilities line on the consolidated statement of cash flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2012-02, “Intangibles — Goodwill and
Other (Topic 350); Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment.” ASU No. 2012-02 provides
companies an option first to assess qualitative factors lo defermine whether the existence of events and
circumstances indicates that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired. If, as a
result of the qualitative assessment, it is determined that it is not more likely than not that the indefinite-lived
intangible assets is impaired, then the Company is not required to take further action. ASU No. 2012-02 will be
effective for the Company for impairment (ests of indefinite-lived intangible assets performed in the fiscal year
ending September 30, 2013, with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial condition and results of operations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No, 2011-11, *Balance Sheel (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsctting
Assets and Liabilities.” ASU No. 2011-11 requires additional quantitative and qualitative disclosures of gross and
net information regarding financial instruments and derivative instruments that arc offsct or eligible for offset in the
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consolidated statement of financial position, ASU No. 2011-11 will be effective for the Company for the quarter
ending December 31, 2013. The adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No, 2011-09, “Compensation — Retirement Benefits — Multiemployer
Plans (Subtopic 715-80): Disclosures about an Employer’s Participation in a Multicmployer Plan,” ASU No. 2011-
09 requires additional quantitative and qualitative disclosures about an employer’s participation in multiemployer
pension plans, including disclosure of the name and identifying number of the significant multiemployer plans in
which the employer participates, the level of the employer’s participation in the plans, the financial health of the
plans and the nature of the employer commitments to the plans. ASU No. 2011-09 was effective for the Company
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2012, The adoption of this guidance had no impaci on the Company’s
consolidated financial condition and results of operations. Refer to Note 14, “Retirement Plans,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements for disclosures surrounding the Company’s participation in multicmployer pension
plans.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASUI No. 2011-08, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Testing
Goodwill for Impairment,”” ASU No. 201108 provides companies an option to perform a qualitative assessment fo
determine whether further goodwill impairment testing is necessary. H, as a result of the qualitative assessment, it is
determined that it is more likely than not that a reporting unit’s fair value is less than its carrying amount, the two-
step quantitative impairment test is required, Otherwise, no further testing is required. ASU No. 2011-08 will be
effective for the Company for goodwill impairment tests performed in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2013,
with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial condition and results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, “Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of
Comprchensive Income.” ASL No. 2011-05 eliminates the option to present components of other comprehensive
income as part of the statement of shareholders’ equity. All non-owner changes in sharcholders® equity instead must
be presented either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive
statements. ASU No. 2011-05 will be effective for the Company for the quarter ending December 31, 2012. The
adoption of this guidance will have no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition and results of
operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, “Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendments to Achieve
Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requiremenls in U.8. GAAP and IFRSs.” ASU No. 2011-04
clarifies and changes the application of various fair value measurement principles and disclosure requirements, and
was effective for the Company beginning in the second quarter of fiscal 2012 (January 1, 2012). The adoption of this
guidance had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial condition and results of operations. Refer to Note
10, “Fair Value Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for disclosures surrounding the
Company’s fair value measurements,

ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed three acquisitions for a combined purchase price, net of cash acquired,
of $38 million, all of which was paid as of September 30, 2012, The acquisitions in the aggregate were not material
1o the Company’s consolidated financial statements. In connection with the acquisitions, the Company recorded
goodwill of $50 million. As a result of iwo of the acquisitions, each of which increased the Company’s ownership
from a noncontrolling to controlling intercst, the Company recorded an aggregate non-cash gain of $12 millien, of
which $9 million was recorded within Power Solutions equity income and $3 million was recorded in Automotive
Iixperience Furope equity income, to adjust the Company’s existing equity investments in the partiafly-owned
affiliates to fair value. The purchase price allocations may be subsequently adjusted to reflect final valuation studies.

During fiscal 2012, the Company completed three divestitures for a combined sales price of $105 million, all of
which was received as of September 30, 2012. The divestitures in the aggregate were not material to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. In connection with the divestitures, the Company recorded a gain, net of
transaction costs, of $40 million and reduced goodwill by $34 million in the Building Efficiency business.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company acquired an additional 49% of a Power Solutions partially-
owned affiliate. The acquisition increased the Company’s ownership percentage to 100%. The Company paid
approximately $143 million (excluding cash acquired of $11 million) for the additional ownership percentage and
incurred approximately $15 million of acquisition costs and related purchase accounting adjustments. As a result of
the acquisition, the Company recorded a non-cash gain of $75 million within Power Solutions equity income to
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adjust the Company’s existing equity investment in the partially-owned affiliate to fair value. Goodwill of $100
million was recorded as part of the transaction, of which $6 million was recorded in fiscal 2012.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company completed its acquisition of Keiper/Recaro Automolive, a
leader in recliner system technology with engineering and manufacturing expertise in metals and mechanisms for
automobile seats, based in Kaisersfautern, Germany., The total purchase price, net of cash acquired, was
approximately $442 million, of which $450 million was paid as of September 3¢, 2011 and $8 million was received
in the threc months ended December 31, 2011 as a result of a true-up to the purchase price. In connection with the
Keiper/Recare Automotive acquisition, the Company recorded goodwill of $128 million primarily in the
Automotive Experience Europe segment, of which $2 million was recorded in fiscal 2012.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company completed its acquisition of the C. Rob. Hammerstein Group
(Iammerstein), a leading global supplier of high-quality metal seat structures, components and mechanisms based
in Solingen, Germany. The total purchase price, net of cash acquired, was approximately $529 million, all of which
was paid as of September 30, 2011. In connection with the Hammerstein acquisition, the Company recorded
goodwill of $200 million primarily in the Automotive Experience BEurope segment, of which $7 million was
recorded in fiscal 2012,

Also during fiscal 2011, the Company completed five additional acquisitions for a combined purchase price, net of
cash acquired, of $115 million, all of which was paid as of September 30, 201 1. The acquisitions in the aggregate
were not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements. As a result of one of these acquisitions, which
increased the Company’s ownership from a noncontrolling to controlling interest, the Company recorded a non-cash
gain of $14 million within Automotive Experience Asia equity income to adjust the Company’s existing equity
investment in the partially-owned affiliate to fair value. In connection with the acquisitions, the Company recorded
goodwill of $1 19 million, of which $14 million was recorded in fiscal 2012.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company acquired an additional 40% of a Power Solutions Korean
partially-owned affiliate. The acquisition increased the Company’s ownership percentage to 90%. The remaining
10% was acquired by the local management team. The Company paid approximately $86 million (excluding cash
acquired of $57 million) for the additional ownership percentage and incurred approximately $10 million of
acquisition costs and related purchase accounting adjustments. As a resuli of the acquisition, the Company recorded
a non-cash gain of $47 million within Power Solutions equity income to adjust the Company’s existing equity
investment in the Korean partially-owned affiliate to fair value. Goodwill of $51 million was recorded as part of the
transaction.

Also during fiscal 2010, the Company completed three acquisitions for a combined purchase price of $35 miltion, of
which $32 million was paid as of September 30, 2010. The acquisitions in the aggregale were not material to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. In connection with the acquisitions, the Company recorded goodwill
of $9 million.

There were no business divestitures for the years ended Septetber 30, 2011 and 2010,

INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following (in millions):

September 30,

2012 2011
Raw materials and supplies $ L1118 % 1,136
Work-in-process 417 434
Finished goods 806 867
FIFO inventories 2,341 2,437
LIFO reserve (114} {121)
Inventories $ 2,227 % 2,316

Inventories valued using the LIFO method of accounting were approximately 19% and 18% of total inventories at
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively,
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Propetty, plant and equipment consisted of the following (in miHions):

September 30,
2012 2011
Buildings and improvements $ 2,716 § 2,488
Machinery and equipment 7,827 7,205
Construction in progress 1,722 1,419
Land 375 360
Total property, plant and equipment 12,640 11,472
Less accumulated depreciation {6,200} {5,856}
Property, plant and equipment - net $ 6440 3§ 5,616

Interest costs capitalized during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $55 million, $34
million and $21 million, respectively. Accumulated depreciation related to capital leases at September 30, 2012 and
2011 was $56 million and $44 million, respectively.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in each of the Company’s reporting segments for the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 were as follows (in millions):

Cutrency
September 30, Business Business - Translation and - September 30, -
2010 Acguisilions Divestitures Other 2011

Building Efficiency

North America Systems $ 522 3 - 3 - % 3 3 519

Noith America Service 676 33 - 1 710

Global Workplace Solutions 177 - - 7 184

Asia 379 - - 12 391

Other 1,085 - - (20) 1,065
Automotive Experience

North America 1,378 2 - () 1,379

Europe 1,140 371 - (8) 1,503

Asia 233 16 - 12 261
Power Solutions 911 96 - (3} 1,004
Total $ 6501 § 518 8 - 3 3 % 7,016

Currency
September 30, Business Business Translation and Scptember 30,
2011 Acquisitions Divestitures Other 2012

Building Efficiency

North America Sysiems $ 519 § - 3 - % 2 3 521

Noith America Service 710 - 2) - 708

Global Workplace Solutions 184 - - 3 187

Asia 391 - - 5 396

Other 1,065 - (32) (39) 994
Automotive Experience

North America 1,379 13 - 27 1,419

Europe 1,503 14 - (70) ) 1,447

Asia 261 7 - 2 270
Power Solutions 1,004 45 - (%) 1,040
Total $ 7016 § 79§ 34) $ (19 $ 6,982
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The Company’s other intangible assets, primarily from business acquisitions, are valued based on independent
appraisals and consisted of (in millions):

September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Arnortized intangible assets
Patented technology $ 188§ (113 $ 3% 298 0§ (209 § 89
Custemer retationships 517 (17 400 487 21) 39
Miscellaneous 204 {47) 157 184 (38) f46
Total amortized
intangible assets 909 (277 632 969 (338) 631
Unamortized intangible assets
Trademarks 315 - 315 314 - 3i4
Total intangible assets 3 $224 § 21 % %47 % 1,283 § (338) § 945

Amortization of other intangible assets for the f{iscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $56
million, $53 million and $43 million, respectively. Excluding the impact of any future acquisitions, the Company
anlicipates amortization for fiscal 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 will be approximately $60 million, $58 million,
$55 million, $49 million and $49 million, respectively.

PRODUCT WARRANTIES

The Company offers warranties to its customers depending upon the specific product and terms of the customer
purchase agreement. A typical warranty program requires that the Company replace defective products within a
- specified time period from the date of sale, The Company records an estimate for future warranty-related costs based
on actual historical return rates and other known factors, Based on analysis of return rates and other factors, the
Company’s watranty provisions are adjusted as necessary. The Company monitors its warranty activity and acjusts
its reserve estimates when it is probable that future warranty costs will be different than those estimates.

The Company’s product warranty liability is recorded in the consolidated statements of financial position in other
current Habilities if the warranly is less than one year and in other noncurrent liabilities if the warranty extends
longer than one year.

The changes in the carrying amount of the Company’s total product warranty liability for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011 were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
September 30,

2012 2011
Balance at beginning of period 5 301§ 337
Accruals for warranties issued during the period : 224 217
Accruals from acquisitions and divestitures )] 12
Accruals refated to pre-existing warranties (including changes in estimates) (21) (32)
Settlements made (in cash or in kind} during the period (221) (233)
Currency translation 4 -
Balance at end of period 3 278§ 301
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LEASES

Cerlain administrative and production facifitics and equipment are leased under long-term agrecments. Most leases
contain renewal options for varying periods, and certain leases include options to purchase the leased propeity
during or at the end of the lease term. Leases generally require the Company to pay for insurance, taxes and
maintenance of the property. Leased capital assets included in net property, plant and equipment, primarily buildings
and improvements, were $96 million and $68 million at September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Other facilities and equipment are leased under arrangements that are accounted for as operating leases. Total rental
expense for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $454 million, $424 million and $389
million, respectively.

Tuture minimum capital and operating lease payments and the related present value of capital lease payments at
September 30, 2012 were as follows (in mitlions):

Capital Operating

Leases Leases
2013 8 14§ 315
2014 16 234
2015 12 168
2016 _ 7 105
2017 7 69
After 2017 43 87
Total minimum lease payments 9 $ 978
Interest . (19)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 80

DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Short-term debt consisted of the following (in millions):

September 30,

2012 2011
Bank borrowings and commercial paper $ 323§ 596
‘Weighted average interest rate on short-term
debt outstanding 2.5% 2.4%

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Company replaced its $2.05 billion committed five-year credit
facility, scheduled to mature in December 2011, with a $2.5 billion committed four-year credit facility scheduled to
mature in February 2015. The facility is used to support the Company’s outstanding commercial paper. There were
no draws on the committed credit facilities during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, Average
outstanding commercial paper for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 was $1,287 million, and $186 million
was outstanding at September 30, 2012, Average outstanding commercial paper for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2011 was $955 million, and $409 million was outstanding at September 30, 2011,
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Long-term debt consisted of the following (in millions; due dates by fiscal year):

September 30,
2012 2011

Unsecured notes
5.8% due in 2013 ($100 mitlion par value) $ 100§ 101
4.875% due in 2013 ($300 million par value) 310 321
Floating rate notes due in 2014 ($350 million par value) 350 350
1.75% duc in 2014 ($450 million par value) 456 462
7.7% due in 2015 ($125 million par value) 125 125
5.5% due in 2016 (5800 million par value) 800 800
7.125% due in 2017 (8150 million par value) 162 164
2.6% due in 2017 ($400 million par valuc) 400 -
2.355% due in 2017 ($46 million par value) 46 -
5.0% due in 2020 (3500 million par value) 498 498
4.25% due 2021 ($500 million par value) 497 497
3.75% due in 2022 ($450 million par value) 447 -
6.0% due in 2036 ($400 million par value) 395 395
5.7% due in 2041 ($300 million par value) T 299 299
11.5% due in 2042 {760,100 equity units in fiscal 2011) - 38
11.5% notes due in 2042 ($8 million par value) - 8
3.25% due in 2042 ($250 million par value) 250 -
6.95% due in 2046 ($125 million par value) 125 125
Capital lease obligations _ _ _ _ 80 70
Foreign-denominated debt

Euro 377 286
Other 28 11
Gross long-term debt 5,745 4,550
Less: current portion 424 17
Net long-term debt b 5321 % 4,533

At September 30, 2012, the Company’s euro-denominated long-term debt was at fixed rates with a weighied-
average interest rate of 3.6%. At September 30, 2011, the Company’s curo-denominated long-term debt was al {ixed
rates with a weighted-average interest rate of 4.7%.

The installmenis of long-term debt maturing in subsequent fiscal years are; 2013 — $424 million; 2014 — $937
million; 2015 — $135 millicn; 2016 - $806 million; 2017 — $839 million; 2018 and therealter — $2,604 million,
The Company’s long-term debt includes various financial covenants, none of which are expecied to restrict future
operations.

Total interest paid on both short and long-term debt for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
was $283 million, $216 million and $181 million, respectively. The Company uscs financial instruments to manage
its inferest rate exposure (see Note 9, “Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activilies,” and Note 10, “Fair Value
Measurements,” of the notes to consolidated financial statemenis). These instruments affect the weighted average
interest rate of the Company’s debt and interest expense.

Financing Arrangements

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, two 37 million euro revolving credit facilities and a 50 million euro
revolving credit facility expired. The Company entered Into a new 50 million euro revolving credit facility
scheduled to expire in August 2013, The Company also entered into a new 37 million eure and a new 30 million
euro revolving credit facility both scheduled to expire in September 2013. There were no draws on the facilities
during fiscal 2012,

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012, a $50 million revolving credit facility expired. The Company entered
into a new $50 million revolving credit facitity scheduled to expire in September 2013, There were no draws on this
facility during fiscal 2012.
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Puring the quarter ended March 31, 2012, the Company remarketed $46 million aggregate principal amount of
11.5% subordinated notes due in fiscal 2042, on behalf of holders of Corporate Units and holders of separate notes,
by issuing $46 million aggregate principal amount of 2.355% senior notes due on Maich 31, 2017,

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, the Company issued $400 million aggregate principal amount of 2.6%
senior unsecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2017, $430 million aggregate principal amount of 3.75% senior
unsecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2022 and $250 million aggregate principal amount of 5.25% senior
unsecured fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2042, Aggregate net proceeds of $1.1 billion from the issuances were used
for general corporate purposes, including the retirement of short-term debt and contributions to the Company’s
pension and postretirement plans,

During the guarter ended December 31, 2011, the Company enlered into two commilled, one-year revolving credit
facilities totaling $135 million in aggregate. There were no draws on gither facility during f{iscal 2012,

During the quarter ended December 31, 2011, the Company entered into a five-year, 75 million euro, floating rate
credit facility scheduled to mature in fiscal 2017. The Company drew on the credit facility during the quarter ended
March 31, 2012. Proceeds from the facility were used for general corporate purposes.

During the guarter ended September 30, 2011, the Company had four euro-denominated revolving credit facilities
totaling 223 million euro with 50 million curo expiring in July 2012, two 37 million curo facilities expiring in
Septemtber 2012 and 100 million curo expiring in August 2014, Additionally, the Company had a $50 million
revolving credit facility expiring in September 2012, At September 30, 2011, there were no draws on the revolving
credit facilities.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011, a 150 million euro revolving credit facility and a 50 million euro revolving
credit facility matured. :

During the quarter ended June 30, 2011, a total of 157,820 cquity units, which had a purchase contract settlement
date of March 31, 2012, were early exercised. As a result, the Company issued 766,673 shares of Johnson Controls,
Inc. common stock and approximately $8 million of 11.5% notes due 2042,

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Company issued $350 million aggregate principal amount of floating
rate senior unsecured notes due in fiscal 2014, $450 million aggregate principal amount of 1.75% senior unsecured
fixed rate notes due in fiscal 2014, $500 million aggregate principal amount of 4.25% senior unsecured fixed rate
notes due in fiscal 2021 and $300 million aggregate principal amount of 5.7% senior unsecured fixed rate notes due
in fiscal 2041, Agpregate net proceeds of $1.6 billion from the issues were used for general corporate purposes
including the retirement of short-term debt.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Company entered into a six-year, 100 million euro, floating rate loan
scheduled to mature in February 2017. Proceeds from the facility were used for general corporate purposes.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Company retived $654 million in principal amount, plus accrued
interest, of its 5.25% fixed rate notes that matured on January 15, 2011. The Company used cash to fund the
payment,

During the quarter ended March 31, 2011, the Company retived its $100 million committed revolving facility prior
to its scheduled maturity date of December 2011. There were no draws on the facility.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2010, the Company repaid debt of $82 million which was acquired as part
of an acquisition in the same quarter. The Company used cash to repay the debt.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company selectively uscs derivative instruments to reduce market risk associated with changes in foreign
currency, commodities, stock-based compensation liabilities and interest rates. Under Company policy, the use of
derivatives is restricted to those intended for hedging purposes; the use of any derivative instrument for speculative
purposes is strictly prohibited. A description of each type of detivative utilized by the Company to manage risk is
included in the following paragraphs. In addition, refer to Note 10, “Fair Value Measurements,” of the notes to
consolidated financial statements for information related to the fair value measurements and valvation methods
utilized by the Company for each derivative type.
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The Company has global operations and participates in the foreign exchange markets to minimize its risk of loss
from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company primarily uses foreign currency exchange
contracts to hedge certain of its foreign exchange rate exposures. The Company hedges 70% to 90% of the nominal
amount of each of its known foreign exchange transactional exposures.

The Company has entered into cross-cutrency intetest rate swaps to sclectively hedge portions of its net investment
in Japan. The curtency effecis of the cross-currency interest rate swaps are reflected in the accumulated other
comprehensive income {AOCI) account within shareholders® equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. where
they offset gains and losses recorded on the Company’s net investment in Japan, At September 30, 2012 and 2011,
the Company had three cross-currency interest rate swaps outstanding totaling 20 billion yen.

The Company uses commodity contracts in the financial derivatives market in cases where commodity price risk
cannot be naturally offset or hedged through supply base fixed price contracts. Commaodity risks are systematically
managed pursuant to policy guidelines. As cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the hedge gains or losses due to
changes in fair vatue are initially recorded as a component of AOCI and are subsequently reclassified into earnings
when the hedged transactions, typically sales or costs related fo sales, ocour and affect earnings. Any ineffective
portion of the hedge is reflected in the consolidated statement of income. The maturities of the commodity contracts
coincide with the expected purchase of the commodities. The Company had the following outstanding commodity
hedge contracts that hedge forecasted purchases:

Volume Outstanding as of

Commodity Units September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Copper Pounds 13,135,000 18,760,000
Lead _ Metri¢ Tons 21,200 25,600
Aluminum Metric Tons 2,868 . 5,398
Tin Metric Tons 1,344 260

The Company selectively uses equity swaps to reduce market risk associated with certain of its stock-based
compensation plans, such as its deferred compensation plans. These equity compensation labilities increase as the
Company’s stock price increases and decrease as the Company’s stock price decreases. In contrast, the value of the
swap agreement moves in the opposite direction of these liabilities, allowing the Company to fix & portion of the
Habilities at a stated amount. As of September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company had hedged approximately 4.5
million and 4.3 million shares of its common stock, respectively.

The Company selectively uses interest rate swaps to reduce market risk associated with changes in interest rates for
its fixed-rate notes. As fair value hedges, the interest rate swaps and related debt balances are valued under a market
approach using publicized swap curves. Changes in the fair value of the swap and hedged portion of the debt are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income. In the second quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company entered into a
fixed to floating interest rate swap totaling $100 million to hedge the coupon of its 5.8% bond maturing November
15, 2012, two fixed to floating interest rate swaps totaling $300 million to hedge the coupon of its 4.875% bond
maturing September 15, 2013 and five fixed to floating interest rate swaps totaling $450 million to hedge the
coupon of its 1.75% bond maturing March 1, 2014, These eight interest rate swaps were outstanding as of
September 30, 2012 and 2011,

In September 2005, the Company entered into three forward treasury lock agreements to reduce the market risk
associated with changes in interest rates associated with the Company’s anticipated fixed-rate note issuance to
finance the acquisition of York International Corp. (cash flow hedge). The three forward treasury lock agreements,
which had a combined notional amount of §1.3 billion, fixed a portion of the future interest cost for S-year, 10-year
and 30-year notes. The fair value of cach trecasury lock agrecment, or the difference beiween the freasury lock
reference rate and the fixed rate at time of note issuance, is amortized to interest expense over the life of the
respective note issuance, In Jaruary 2006, in connection with the Company’s debt refinancing, the three forward
treasury lock agreements were terminated.
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The following table presents the location and fair values of derivative instruments and hedging activities included in
the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position (in millions}:

Other current assets

Foreign currency exchange derivatives

Commodity derivatives

Interest rate swaps

Cross-currency interest rate swaps
Other noncurrent assets

Interest rate swaps

Equaity swap

Toreign currency exchange derivatives

Totai asscts

Other current liabilities

Foreign cumrency exchange derivatives

Commodity derivatives

Cross-currency inlerest rate swaps
Current portion of long-terin debt

Fixed rate debt swapped to floating
Long-term debt

Fixed rate debt swapped to floating
Other noncurzent kabilities

Foreign currency exchange derivatives

Totat liabilities

Derivalives and Hedging Activities
Designated as Hedging Instruments

Derivatives and Hedging Activities Not
Designated as Hedging Istruments

under ASC 815 under ASC 815
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011
3 14 28§ g % 18
11 - - -
2 - - .
1 . - -
& 15 - -
- - 123 112
- 11 - 16
3 34 54 % 131 % 146
5 17 9 § g % 21
- 32 - -
- 20 - -
401 - - -
456 865 - -
- 19 - 11
$ 874 985 $ 9 3 32

The following tables present the location and amount of the effective portion of gains and losses gross of tax on
derivative instruments and related hedge items reclassified from AOCI into the Company’s consolidated statements
of income for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 and amounts recorded in AOCT net of tax in the
consolidated statements of financial position (in millions}):

Berivatives i ASC 815 Cash Flow

Location of Gain {Loss)

Amount of Gain {Loss) Reclassified from AOCT injo Income

Year Ended Scptember 30,

Hedyping Relationships Reclassified from AOCI inte Income 2012 2011
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Cost of sales $ (19 8 3
Commodity derivatives Cost of sales (25 28
Forward treasury locks Net financing charges 2 1
Total $ 4N 8 32
Derivatives in ASC 815 Cash Flow Amount of Gain (.oss) Recognized in AOCI on Derivative
Hedping Relationships September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Foreipn currency exchange derivatives $ 3 s (16)
Commedity derivatives 7 (20)
Forward treasury locks 8 9
Totak b 12 3 27
Amount of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income on Derivative
Derivatives in ASC 815 Fair Value Location of Gain (Loss) Year Ended September 30,
Hedging Relationships Recognized in Income on Derivaive 2012 2011
Interest rate swap Net financing charges 3 8) % L5
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating Net financing charges 9 (15)
Total 5 18 -
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Amount of Gain (Eoss) Recognized in Income on Derivative

Derivatives Not Desigmated as Location of Gain (Loss) Year Ended September 30,
Hedging Instruments ender ASC 815 Recognized in [ncome on Derivative 2012 2001
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Cost of sales 3 23 5 5
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Net financing charges {19) 3
Foreign currency exchange derivatives Provision for income taxes 1 -
Equity swap Selling, gencral and administrative 6 {23)
Total 5 11 & {15)

The amount of gains (losses) recognized in cumulative translation adjustment (CTA) within AOCI on the effective
portion of cutstanding net investment hedges was $1 million and $(12) million at September 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, For the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, no gains or losses were reclassified from CTA into
income for the Company’s outstanding net investment hedges, and no gains or losses were recognized in income for
the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures,” defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
ASC 820 also establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes information used in developing
assumptions when pricing an asset or liabilily as follows:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly;
and

Leve] 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little or no market data, which requires the reporting entity to
develop its own assumptions.

ASC 820 requires the use of observable market data, when available, in making fair value measurements. When

inputs used to measure fair value fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the level within which the fair value
measurement is categorized is based on the Towest level input that s significant to the fair value measurement.
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present the Company’s fair value hierarchy for those asseis and Habilities measured at fair
value as of September 30, 2012 and 2011 {(in millions):

FFair Value Measurements Using;

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30, 2012 {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Other current assets
Foreign currency exchange derivatives  § 22§ - % 22 % -
Conunodity derivatives 1 - 11 -
Tnterest rale swaps 2 - 2 -
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 1 - 1 -
Other noncurrent assets
Interest rate swaps 6 - 6 -
Investments in marketable common stock 32 32 - -
Equity swap 123 123 - -
Total assets 3 197 § 155 % 42 3 -
Other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange derivatives  $ 26 $ - $ 26 § -
Current portion of long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating ' 401 R B i) I -
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped fo floating 456 - 456 -
Total liabilities $ 883 $ -3 883 § -

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Tnputs Inputs
September 30, 2011 {Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Other current assets
TForeign currency exchange derivalives  § 46 § - $ 46 % -
Other noncurrent assets
Interest rate swaps 15 - 15 ~
Investments in marketable common stock 34 34 - -
Equity swap 112 112 - -
Foreign currency exchange derivatives 27 - 27 -
Total assets 5 234 % 146 $ 88 § -
Other current liabilities
Foreign currency exchange derivatives  § 70 $ - $ 70 8 -
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 20 - 20 -
Commedily derivatives 32 - 32 -
Long-term debt
Fixed rate debt swapped to floating 865 - 865 -
OGther noncurrent liabilities
Foreign currency cxchange detivatives 30 - 30 -
Total liabilities $ 1,017 § - § 1,017 § -
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Yaluation Methods

Foreign currency exchange derivatives — The Company selectively hedges anticipated transactions that are subject to
foreign exchange rate risk primarily using foreign currency exchange hedge contracts. The foreign currency
exchange derivatives are vatued under a market approach using publicized spot and forward prices. As cash flow
hedges under ASC 815, the effective portion of the hedge gains or losses due to changes in fair value are initially
recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income and are subsequently reclassified into
garpings when the hedged transactions occur and affect earnings. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is reflected in
the consolidated statement of income. These contracts were highly effective in hedging the variability in future cash
flows attributable to changes in currency exchange rates at September 30, 2012 and 2011, The fair value of foreign
currency exchange derivatives that are designated as fair value hedges under ASC 815, as well as those not
designated as hedging instruments under ASC 8135, are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Commodity derivatives — The Company selectively hedges anticipated transactions that are subject to commodity
price risk, primarity using commodity hedge contracts, o minimize overall price risk associaled with the Company’s
purchases of lead, copper, tin and aluminum. The commodity derivatives are valued under a market approach using
publicized prices, where available, or dealer quotes. As cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the hedge gains or
losses due fo changes in fair value are initially recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income and are subsequently reclassified into earnings when the hedged transactions, typically sales or cost related
to sales, oceur and affect earnings. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is reflected in the consolidated statement of
income. These confracts are highly effective in hedging the variability in future cash flows attributable to changes in
commodity price changes at September 30, 2012 and 2011.

Interest rate swaps and related debt — The Company selectively uses interest rate swaps to reduce market risk
associated with changes in interest rates for its fixed-rate bonds. As fair value hedges, the intercst rate swaps and
related debt balances are valued under a market approach using publicized swap curves. Changes in the fair value of
the swap and hedged portion of the debt are recorded in the consolidated statement of income. In the second quarter
of fiscal 2011, the Company entered into a fixed to floating interest rate swap totaling $100 million to hedge the
coupens of its 5.80% notes maturing November 15, 2012, two fixed to floating interest rate swaps totaling $300
million to hedge the coupon of its 4.875% notes maturing September 15, 2013 and five fixed to floating interest rate
swaps totaling $450 million to hedge the coupon of its 1.75% bond maturing March 1, 2014. These cight interest
raie swaps were outstanding as of September 30, 2012 and 2011,

Cross-currency interest rate swaps — The Company selectively uses cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge the
foreign currency rate risk associated with certain of its investments in Japan. The cross-currency interest rate swaps
ate valued using observable market data. Changes in the market value of the swaps are reflected in the foreign
curtency translation adjusiments component of accumulated other comprehensive income where they offset gains
and losses recorded on the Company’s net investment in Japan. At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company had
three cross-currency interest rate swaps outstanding totaling 20 billion yen.

Investments in marketable common stock — The Company invests in certain marketable common stock, which is
valued under a market approach using publicized share prices. As of September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company
recorded unrealized gains of $5 million and $9 million, respectively, in accumulated oiher comprehensive income.
The Company also recorded unrealized losses of $3 million in accumulated other comprehensive income on these
investments as of September 30, 2011, and no unrealized losses as of September 30, 2012, Tn the second quarter of
fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an impairment charge related to an invesiment in marketable common stock due
to the investee’s bankruptcy announcement in March 2012, As a result, the Company recorded a $14 million
impairment charge within selling, general, and administrative expenses in the Power Solutions segment, The
impairment reduced the investment to zero and was measured under a market approach using the publicized share
price. The inputs wtilized in the analysis are classified as Level 1 inputs within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
ASC 820.

Equity swaps — The Company selcctively uses equily swaps to reduce market risk associated with certain of its
stock-based compensation plans, such as its deferred compensation plans. The cquity swaps are valued under a
market approach as the fair value of the swaps is cqual to the Company’s stock price at the reporting period date.
Changes in fair value on the cquity swaps are reflected in the consolidated statement of income within selling,
general and administrative expenses.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts reccivable, short-lerm debt and accounts payable approximate
their carrying valuss. The fair value of long-term debt, which was $6.3 billion and $4.9 billion at September 30,
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2012 and 2011, respectively, was determined using market quotes classified as Level 1 inputs within the ASC 820
fair value hierarchy.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has three share-based compensation plans, which are described below, The compensation cost
charged against income for those plans was approximately $55 million, $47 million and $52 million for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized in the
consolidated statements of income for share-based compensation arrangements was approximately $22 million, $19
million and $21 million for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company
applies a non-substantive vesting period approach whereby expense is accelerated for those employees that receive
awards and arc eligible to retire prior to the award vesting.

Stock Option Plan

The Company’s 2007 Stock Option Plan, as amended (the Plan), which is sharcholder-approved, permits the grant
of stock options to its employees for up to approximately 40 million shares of new common stock as of September
30, 2012. Option awards are granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the
dale of grant; those option awards vest between two and three years afler the grant date and expire ten years from
the grant date (approximately 16 million shares of common stock remained available to be granted at September 30,

2012).

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option valuation model
that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatilities are based on the historical volatility of
the Company’s stock and other factors. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercises and employee
terminations within the valuation model. The expected term of options represents the period of time that options
granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods during the contractual life of the option is-
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the iime of grant.

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
Expected life of option (years) 4.8 - 6.4 45-6.0 43-5.0
Risk-free interest rate 0.54% - 1.61% 1.10% - 1.58% 1.91% - 2.20%
Expected volatility of the
Company's stock 4(.00% 38.00% 40.00%
Expected dividend yield on the
Company's stock 1.81% 1.74% 1.73%

A summary of stock option activity at September 30, 2012, and changes for the year then ended, is presented below:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Weighted Shares Remaining Intrinsic
Average Subject to Contractual Value
Option Price Option Life (years) (in miflions)
Outstanding, Septetnber 30, 2011 $ 25.87 34,224,012
Granted 28.54 5,017,870
Exercised 21.00 {1,933,069)
Forfeited or expired 30.28 (840,310)
Outstanding, September 30, 2012 $ 26.39 36,468,503 5.3 $ 101
Exercisable, September 30, 2012 $ 25.35 24,885,923 3.9 $ a5

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012,
2011 and 2010 was $8.92, $9.09 and $7.70, respectively.
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The total intrinsic value of options excrcised during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was
approximately $19 million, $101 million and $33 million, respectively.

In conjunction with the exercise of stock options granted, the Company received cash payments for the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 of approximately $40 million, $105 million and $52 million,
respectively.

The Company has elected to utilize the alternative transition method for caleulating the tax effects of stock-based
compensation. The alternative transition method includes computational guidance to establish the beginning balance
of the additional paid-in capital pool (APIC Pool) related to the tax effects of employee stock-based compensation,
and a simplified method to determine the subsequent impact on the APIC Pool for employee stock-based
compensation awards that are vested and outstanding upon adoption of ASC 718, The tax benefit from the exercise
of stock options, which is recorded in capital in excess of par value, was $3 million, $30¢ million and $7 million for
the fiscal vears ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company does not settle equity
instruments granted under share-based payment arrangements for cash.

At September 30, 2012, the Company had approximately $32 million of total unrecognized compensation cost
related to nonvested share-hased compensation arrangements granted under the Plan. That cost is expecied to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 0.8 years,

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs)

The Plan also permits SARs to be separately granted to certain employees. SARs vest under the same terms and
conditions as option awards; however, they are settled in cash for the difference between the market price on the
date of exercise and the exercise price. As a result, SARSs are recorded in the Company’s consolidated statements of
financial position as a liability until the date of exercise.

The fair value of each SAR award is estimated using a similar method described for option awards. The fair value of
each SAR award is recalculated at the end of each reporting period and the labilily and expense adjusted based on

the new fair value.

The assumptions used to determine the fair value of the SAR awards at September 30, 2012 were as follows:

Expected life of SAR (years) 0.05 - 4.0
Risk-free interest rate 0.07% - 47%
Expected volatility of the Company's stock 40.00%
Expected dividend yield on the Company's stock 1.81%

A summary of SAR activity at September 30, 2012, and changes for the year then ended, is presented below:

Weighted
Average Agpregate
Weighted Shares Remaining Intrinsic
Average Subject to Contraciual Valhue
SAR Price SAR Life (years) (in millions)
Outstanding, September 30, 2011 b 26.24 3,463,975
Granted 28.54 669,824
Exercised 19.28 (218,607}
Forfeited or expired 29.47 (139,314)
QOutstanding, September 30, 2012 $ 26.93 3,775,878 5.8 $ 8
Exercisable, September 30, 2012 $ 25.91 2,311,820 4.2 $ 8

In conjunction with the excrcise of SARs granted, the Company made payments of $2 million, $4 million and $3
million during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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12.

Restricted (Nonvested) Stock

The Company has a restricled slock plan that provides for the award of restricted shares of common stock or
restricted share units to certain key employees, Awards under the restricted stock plan typically vest 50% after two
vears firom the grant date and 50% after four years from the grant date. The plan allows for different vesting terms
on specific grants with approval by the board of directors.

A summary of the stalus of the Company’s nonvested restricted stock awards at September 30, 2012, and changes
for the fiscal year then ended, is presented below:

Weighted Shares/Units
Avcrage Subject to
Price Restriction
Nonvested, September 30, 2011 $ 32.85 1,064,405
Granted 27.69 409,459
Vested 33.44 (474,205)
Forfeited 28.54 (2,600)
Nonvested, September 30, 2012 $ 30.46 997,059

At September 30, 2012, the Company had approximately $12 million of total unrecognized compensation cost
related to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the restricted stock plan. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.3 years.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company presents both basic and diluled earnings per share (EPS) amounts. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing net income attributable to Johnson Conirols, Inc. by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the reporting period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing net income attributable to Johnsen
Controls, Inc. by the weighted average number of common shares and common equivalent shares outstanding during
the reporting period that are calculated using the treasury stock method for stock options. The treasury stock method
assumes that the Company uses the proceeds from the exercise of awards to repurchase common stock at the
average market price during the period. The assumed proceeds under the treasury stock method include the purchase
price that the grantee will pay in the fulure, compensation cost for future service that the Company has not yet
recognized and any windfall tax benefits that would be credited to capital in excess of par value when the award
generates a tax deduction. If there would be a shortfall resulting in a charge to capital in excess of par value, such an
amount would be a reduction of the proceeds.

The Company’s cutstanding Equity Units due 2042 and 6.5% convertible senior notes due 2012 are reflected in
diluted earnings per share using the “if-converted” method. Under this method, if dilutive, the common stock is
assumed issued as of the beginning of the reporting period and included in calculating diluted earnings per share. In
addition, if dilutive, interest expense, net of tax, related to the outstanding Equity Units and converiible senior notes
is added back to the numerator in calculating diluted earnings per share.
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The following table reconciles the numerators and denominators used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per
share (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
Income Available to Common Shareholders
Basic income available to common shareholders $ 1,226 § 1,415 § 1,307
Interest expense, net of tax 1 3 5
Diluted income available to commen shareholders b 1,227 & 1,418  § 1,3i2
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 681.5 677.7 672.0
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock oplions 52 81 5.9
LBquity units 1.9 4.1 4.5
Convertible senior notes - - 0.1
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 688.6 689.9 682.5
Antidilutive Securities
Options to purchase conmnon shares 2.2 0.4 0.8

During the three months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company declared a dividend of $0.18 and $0.16,
respectively, per common share. During the twelve months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company
declared four quarterly dividends totaling $0.72 and $0.64, respectively, per common share. The Company paid all
dividends in the month subsequent to the end of each fiscal quarster.
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EQUITY AND NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following schedules present changes in consolidated equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. and
noncontrolling interests (in millions):

Equity Attributable to  Equity Atftributable to
Johnson Controls, Noncontrolling

Ine. Interests Total Equity
At September 30, 2009 $ 9,100 % 84 % 9,184
Total comprehensive income:

Net income 1,307 43 1,350
Foreign currency translation adjustments {115) - (115)
Realized and unrealized gains on derivatives 13 - 13
Unrealized gains on marketable commeon stock 3 - 3
Employee retirement plans 14 - 14

Other comprehensive loss (83) - (85)

Comprehensive income 1,222 43 1,265

Other changes in equiy:
Cash dividends - common stock ($0.52 per share) (350) - (350)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling interests - (22) (22)
Redemiption vatue adjustment attributable
to redeemable noncontrolling interests 9 - 9
Other, including options exercised 90 1 9]
At September 30, 2010 10,071 106 10,177
Total comprehensive income:

Net income L4135 53 1,468
Foreign currency translation adjustments (109 (1) (110)
Realized and unrealized losses on derivatives 47y - @7
Unrealized gains on marketable common stock 3 - 3
Eniployee retirement plans 4 - 4

Other comprehensive loss (149 (1) (150)

Compzehensive income 1,266 52 1318

Other changes in equity:
Cash dividends - common stock ($0.64 per share) (435) - (435)
Dividends attributable to noncontrolling interests - {32) (32)
Redemption value adjusiment attributable
to redeemable noncontrolling inferests (32) - (32)
Increase in noncontrolling interest share - 12 12
Other, including opticns exercised 172 - 172
At September 30, 2011 11,042 138 11,180
Total comprehensive income;

Net income 1,226 58 1,284
Foreign currency translation adjustments (221) - (2213
Realized and unreatized gains on derivatives 39 - 39
Unrealized losses on marketable common stock (1) - (1)
Employee retirement plans (8) - (8)

Other comprehensive foss (191) - (191}

Comprchensive income 1,035 58 1,093

Other changes in equity:

Cash dividends - common stock ($0.72 per share) (492) N (492)

Dividends attributable fo noncontrolling interests - (48) (48)

Redemption value adjustment atiribitable

to redeemable noncontroling interests 35 “ (35)
Repurchases of common stock (102) - (102)
Other, including options exercised 107 - 107

At September 30, 2012 11,555 % 148§ 11,703
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14,

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows {(in millions, net of tax):

September 30,
2012 2011
Foreign currency transiation adjustments h 413 § 634
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives 12 27)
Unrealized gains on marketable common stock 5 6
Employee retirement plans 28 36
Accumulated other compiehensive income $ 458 $ 649

The Company consolidates certain subsidiaries in which the noncontrolling interest party has within their control the
right to require the Company to redeem all or a portion of its interest in the subsidiary. The redeecmable
noncontrolling interests are reported at their estimated redemption value. Any adjustment to the redemption value
impacts retained earnings but does not impact net income. Redecemable noncontrolling interests which are
redeemable only upon future events, the occurrence of which is not currently probable, are recorded at casrying
value.

The following schedules present changes in the redeemable noncontrolling interests (in millions):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010

Beginning balance, September 3¢ $ 260 % 196 & 155

Net income 69 64 32

Foreign currency translation adjustments (1) - 1

Change in noncontroiling interest share 95 2 17

Dividends (15) (1) -

Redemption value adjustment 35 32 9
Ending balance, September 30 % 253 % 260 % 196
RETIREMENT PLANS

As discussed in Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” the Company elected to change its policy
for recognizing pension and postretirement benefit expenses. The historical accounting treatment smoothed asset
returns and amoriized deferred actuarial gains and losses over future years. The new mark-to-market accounting
method recognizes those gains and losses in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year or at the date of a remeasurement
event. The Company believes this new policy will provide greater transparency to on-going operational results. The
change has no impact on pension and postreticement funding or benefits paid to participants, This change in
accounting policy has been applied retrospectively, revising all periods presented. See Note 1, “Summary of
Significant Accountling Policies,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for further information on the
change in accounting policy and the impact of the Company’s consolidated financial statements,

Pension Benefits

The Company has non-contributory defined benefit pension plans covering certain U.S. and non-U.S. employees.
The benefits provided are primarily based on years of service and average compensation or a monthly retirement
benefit amount. Effective January 1, 2006, certain of the Company’s U.S. pension plans were amended to prohibit
new participants from entering the plans. Effective September 30, 2009, active participants will continue to accrue
benefits under the amended plans until December 31, 2014, Funding for U.S. pension plans equals or exceeds the
minimum requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. IFunding for non-U.S. plans
observes the local legal and regulatory limits, Also, the Company makes contributions to union-trusteed pension
funds for construction and service personnel.

For pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations (ABO) that exceed plan assets, the projected benefit
obligation (PBO), ABO and fair value of plan assets of those plans were $4,430 million, $4,242 million and $3,279
million, respectively, as of September 30, 2012 and $4,339 million, $4,185 million and $3,346 million, respectively,
as of September 30, 2011.
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1n fiscal 2012, total employer and emplovee contributions to the defined benefit pension plans were $364 million, of
which $266 million were voluntary contributions made by the Company. The Company expects to contribule
approximately $100 million in cash to its defined benefit pension plans in fiscal vear 2013. Projected benefit
payments from the plans as of Seplember 30, 2012 are estimated as follows {in millions}):

2013 $ 281
2014 287
2015 283
2016 288
2017 292
2018-2022 1,555

Postretirement Benefits

The Company provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for eligible retirecs and their dependents
primarily in the U.8. Most non-U.8. employees are covered by government sponsored programs, and the cost to the
Company is not significant.

Eligibility for coverage is based on meeting certain years of service and retirement age qualifications. Thesc benefits
may be subject to deductibles, co-payment provisions and other limitations, and the Company has reserved the right
to modify these benefits. Effective January 31, 1994, the Company modified certain salaried plans to place a limit on
the Company's cost of future annual retiree medical benefits at no more than 150% of the 1993 cost.

The September 30, 2012 postretirement PBO for both pre-65 and post-65 years of age employees was determined
using assumed medical care cost trend rates of 7.5% for U.S, plans, decreasing one half percent each year fo an
_ultimate rate of 5% and 7.5% for non-U.8. plans, decreasing three twentieths of one percent sach year to an ultimate
rate of 4.5%. The prescription drug trend rates used were 7.5% for U.S. plans, decreasing one half percent each year
to an ultimate rate of 5% and 8.5% for non-U.S. plans, decreasing one f{ifth of one percent each year to an ultimate
rate of 4.5%. The Scptember 30, 2011 PBO for both pre-65 and post-65 years of age employees was determined
using medical care cost trend rates of 7.5% for U.S. plans, decreasing one half percent each year to an ultimate rate
of 5% and a flat 5% for non-U.S. plans. The prescription drug trend rates used were 7.5% for U.S, plans and non-
U.S. plans, decreasing one half percent each year to an ultimaie rate of 5%. The health care cost trend assumption
does not have a significant effect on the amounts reported.

In fiscal 2012, total employer and employee contributions to the postretirement plans were $63 million, of which
$60 million were voluntary contributions made by the Company. The Company does not expect to make any
significant contributions to its postretirement plans in fiscal year 2013, Projected benefit payments from the plans as
of September 30, 2012 are estimated as follows (in millions):

2013 i 22
2014 22
2015 23
2016 23
2017 23
2018-2022 9

In December 2003, the U.S. Congress enacted the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act
of 2003 (Act) for employers sponsoring postretirement care plans that provide prescription drug benefits, The Act
introduces a prescription drug benefit under Medicare as well as a federal subsidy 1o sponsors of retiree health care
benefit plans providing a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D.1. Under the Act, the
Medicare subsidy amount is received directly by the plan sponsor and not the related plan. Further, the plan sponsor
is not required to use the subsidy amount to fund postretirement benefits and may use the subsidy for any valid
business purpose. Projected subsidy receipts are estimated to be approximately $3 million per year over the next ten
years.

Savings and Investment Plans

The Company sponsors various defined contribution savings plans primarily in the U.S, that allow employees to
contribute a portion of their pre-tax and/or afier-tax income in accordance with plan specified guidelines. Under
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specified conditions, the Company will contribute to certain savings plans based on the employees’ eligible pay
and/or will match a percentage of the cmployce contributions up to certain Hmits. Matching contributions charged 1o
expense amounted to $65 million, $67 million and $42 million for the fiscal years ended 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Multiemployer Benefit Plans

The Company contributes to multiemployer benefit plans based on obligations arising fiom collective bargaining
agreements related to certain of its hourly employees in the U.S. These plans provide retirement benefils to
participants based on their service to contributing employers. The benefits are paid from assets held in trust for that
purpose. The trustces typically are responsible for determining the Ievel of benefits to be provided to participants as
well as for such matters as the investment of the assets and the administration of the plans.

The risks of participating in these multiemployer benefii plans are different from single-employer benefit plans in
the following aspects:

«  Assets coniributed to the multiemployer benefit plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to
employees of other participating employers.

e [f a participating employer stops contributing to the multiemployer benefit plan, the unfunded obligations
of the plan may be borne by the remaining participating employers,

« If the Company stops participating in some of its multiemployer benefit plans, the Company may be
required to pay those plans an amount based on its allocable share of the underfunded status of the plan,
referred to as a withdrawal Tiability.

The Company participates in over 300 multiemployer benefit plans, primarily related to its Building Efficiency
business in the U.S., none of which are individually significant to the Company. The number of employees covered
by the Company’s multiemployer benefil plans has remained consistent over the past three years, and there have -
been no significant changes that affect the comparability of fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010 contributions. The Company
recognizes expense for the contractually-required contribution for each period. The Company contributed $47
million, $51 million and $46 million to multiemployer benefit plans in fiscal 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Based on the most recent information available, the Company believes that the present value of actuarial accrued
liabilities in certain of these multiemployer benefit plans may exceed the value of the assets held in trust to pay
benefits. Currently, the Company is not aware of any significant multiemployer benefits plans for which it is
probable or reasonably possible that the Company will be obligated to make up any shortfall in funds. Moreover, if
the Company were to exit certain markets or otherwise cease making contributions to these funds, the Company
could trigger a withdrawal Hability. Currently, the Company is nol aware of any significant multiemployer benefit
plans for which it is probable or reasonably possible that the Company will withdraw from the plan. Any accrual for
a shortfall or withdrawal liability will be recorded when it is probable thal a liability exists and it can be reasonably
estimated,

Plan Assets

The Company’s investment policies employ an approach whereby a mix of equities, fixed income and alternative
investments are used to maximize the long-term retarn of plan assets for a prudent level of risk, The investment
portfolio primarily contains a diversified blend of equity and fixed income investmenis. Equity investments are
diversified across domestic and non-domestic stocks, as well as growth, value and small to large capitalizations.
Fixed income investments include corporate and government issues, with short-, mid- and long-term maturities, with
a focus on investment grade when purchased and a target duration close to that of the plan liability. Investment and
markel risks are measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through regular investment portfolio reviews, annual
liability measurements and periodic asset/liability studies. The majority of the real estale component of the portfolio
is invested in a diversified portfolio of high-quality, operating properties with cash yields greater than the targeted
appreciation. Investments in other alternative asset classes, including hedge funds and commodities, are made via
mutual funds to diversify the expected investment returns relative to the equity and fixed income investments, As a
result of ouwr diversification strategies, there are no significant concentrations of risk within the portfolio of
investments.

The Company’s actual asset allocations are in line with target allocaiions. The Company rebalances asset aflocations
as appropriate, in order to stay within a range of allocation for each asset category.
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The expected return on plan assels is based on the Company's expectation of the long-term average rate of return of
the capital markets in which the plans invest. The average market returns are adjusted, where appropriate, for active
assel management refurns, The expected return reflects the investment policy target asset mix and considers the
historical returns earned for each asset category.
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The Company’s plan assets at September 30, 2012 and 2011, by asset category, are as follows (in millions):

Fair Value Measarements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as of Markets Inputs Inputs

Asset Category September 30, 2012 {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
L.S. Pension
Cash ¥ 25 % 25 B -
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 781 781 -

Small-Cap 324 324 -

International - Developed 617 617 -
Fixed Income Securities

Government 685 685 -

Corporate/Other 219 219 -
Hedge Funds 94 - 94
Real Estate 240 - 240
Total $ 2985 § 2,651 $ 334
Non-11.S. Pension _ _ _
Cash 5 61 % 61 h -
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 134 134 -

International - Developed 383 383 -

International - Emerging 46 46 -
Fixed Income Securities

Government 334 334 -

Corporate/Other 540 540 -
Commodities 12 12 -
Hedge Fund 56 - 56
Real Estate 91 83 8
Total $ 1,657 % 1,593 5 64
Postretirement
Cash $ 6 $ 6 3 -
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 35 35 -

Small-Cap 1 11 -

International - Developed 25 25 -

International - Emerging 14 14 -
Fixed Income Securities

Government 26 26 -

Corporate/Other 74 74 -
Commodities 20 20 -
Real Estate 12 12 -
Total $ 223 % 223 $ -
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Fair Value Measurements Using:

Significant
Quoted Prices Other Significant
in Active Observable Unobservable
Total as ol Markets Inputs Inputs
September 30,

Asset Category 2011 {Level 1) {Level 2} (Level 3)
U.8. Pension
Cash $ 25 $ 25 by - 3 -
Equity Sccurities

Large-Cap 734 734 -

Small-Cap 230 230 -

International - Developed 429 429 -
Fixed Income Securities

Government 162 162 -

Corporate/Other 494 494 -
Hedge Funds 94 - 94
Real Estate 204 - - 204
Total kS 2,372 $ 2,074 % - 5 298
Non-U.S. Pension
Cash b 57 5 57 $ $ -
Equity Securities

Large-Cap 141 141 -

International - Developed 347 347 -

International - Emerging 47 47 -
Fixed Income Securities

Government 276 276 -

Corporate/Other 499 499 -
Commodities 11 11 -
Real Estate 93 86 7
Total $ 1,471 $ 1,464 5 $ 7
Postretirement
Equity Securities

Large-Cap $ 25 $ 25 5 - $ -

Small-Cap 8 8 - -

International - Developed 19 19 - -

International - Emerging 9 9 - -
Fixed Income Securities

Government 19 19 -

Corporate/Other 53 53 -
Commodities 14 14 -
Real Estate 9 9 -
Total ¥ 156 $ 156 $ 3 -
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Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assels measured at fair value.
Cash: The fair value of cash is valued ai cost.

Equity Securities: The fair value of equily securities is determined by direct or indirect quoted market prices. If
indirect quoted market prices are utilized, the value of assets held in separale accounts is not published, but the
investment managers report daily the underlying holdings. The underlying holdings are direct quoted market prices
on regulated financial exchanges.

Fixed Income Securities: The fair value of fixed income securitics is determined by direct or indirect quoted market
prices. If indirect quoted market prices are utilized, the value of assets held in separate accounts is not published, but
the investment managers report daily the underlying holdings. The underlying holdings are direct quoted market
prices on regulated financial exchanges.

Commodities; The fair value of the commodities is determined by quoted market prices of the underlying heldings
on regulated financial exchanges.

Hedge Funds: The fair value of hedge funds is accounted for by a custodian. The custedian obtains valuatiens from
underlying managers based on market quotes for the most liquid assets and alternative methods for assets that do not
have sufficient frading activity to detive prices. The Company and custodian review the methods used by the
underlying managers to value the assets. The Company believes this is an appropriate methodology to obtain the fair
value of these assets.

Real Estafe: The fair value of Real listate Investment Trusts (REITs) is recorded as Level 1 as these securities are
traded on an open exchange, The fair value measurement of other investments in real estate is deemed Level 3 since
the value of these investments is provided by fund managers. The fund managers value the real estate invesiments
via independent third party appraisals on a periodic basis. Assumptions used to revalue the properties are updated
evety quatter. The Company believes this is an appropriate methodology to obtain the fair value of these assets. For
the component of the real estate portfolio under development, the invesiments are carried at cost until they are
completed and valued by a third party appraiser.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value
or reflective of future fair vatues, Furthermore, while the Company believes its valuation methods are appropriale
and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the
fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
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The following sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of assets measured using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3} (in millions):

Total Hedge Funds Real Estate

U.S. Pension

Asset value as of September 30, 2010 $ 232 % 91 $ 141
Additions net of redemptions 41 - 41
Realized gain 10 - 10
Unrealized gain 15 3 12
Asset value as of September 30, 2011 $ 208 % 94 % 204
Additions net of redemptions 11 - i1
Unrealized gain 25 - 25
Asset value as of September 30, 2012 $ 334§ 94 % 240
Non-1.8. Pension

Asset value as of September 30, 2010 $ 6 3 - $ 6
Unrealized gain 1 - 1
Asset value as of September 30, 2011 5 7 % - $ 7
Additions net of redemptions 48 48 -
Unrealized gain 9 8 1
Asset value as of September 30, 2012 3 64 § 6 % 8
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Funded Status

The table that follows contains the ABO and reconciliations of the changes in the PBO, the changes in plan assets

and the funded status (in millions):

Pension Benefits Postretirement
U.S. Plans Non-11.8. Plang Benefits

September 30, 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Accumulated Benefit Obligation $ 3586 % 2850 % 1904 & L7 % - $ -
Change in Projected Benefit Obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year 2,953 2,717 1,852 1,725 259 256
Service cost 69 66 41 34 5 5
Interest cost 150 145 73 70 13 13
Plan participant contributions - - 6 6 7 6
Acquisitions - - 6 76 - -
Divestitures - - (2) - - -
Actuariat foss 722 177 109 9 7 5
Amendments made during the year - - (6) (32) - -
Benefits paid (158) (150) (74) 67 (31) @n
Estimated subsidy received - - - - 2 1
Curtailment gain - - (%) (30) - -
Settlement - {2) (19) (12) - -
Other - - 41 40 2 -
Currency translation adjustment - - - 33 2 -
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 3736 $ 2953 § 2025 § 1852 § 266 § 259
Change in Plan Asscts

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 2372 8 2471 % 1471 $ 1216 § 156 % -
Actual return on plan assets 504 44 155 29 35 -
Acquisitions - - - 12 - -
Divestitures - - (1) - - -
T'mployer and employee coniributions 267 9 97 271 63 183
Benefits paid (158) (150) (7 67) €1 27
Settlement payments - (2} (19) (12} - -
Other - - 16 1 - -
Currency translation adjustment - - 12 21 - -
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 2985 % 2372 % 1657 § 1471 % 223 % 156
Funded status $ (5§ (81§ (368) § (381} § (43) §  (103)
Amounts recognized in the statement of

financial position consist of:
Prepaid benefil cost $ 33 - 3 61 § 40 3 39 3% 15
Accrued benefit liability (754) (581) (429) (421) (82) (118)

Net amount recognized $ (15D § (581) § (368) § (381 % (43) § (103)
Weighted Average Assumptions (1)
Discount rate (2) 4.15% 5.25% 3.40% 4.00% 4.15% 5.25%
Rate of compensation increase 3.25% 3.30% 2.40% 2.50% NA NA

92




® Plan assets and obligations are determined based on a September 30 measurement date at September 30, 2012
and 2011.

@ The Company considers the expected benefit payments on a plan-by-plan basis when setting assumed discount
rales. As a result, the Company uses different discount rates for each plan depending on the plan jurisdiction, the
demographics of participants and the expected timing of benefit payments. For the U.S. pension and
postretirement plans, the Company uses a discount rate provided by an independent third party calculated based
on an appropriate mix of high quality bonds, For the non-1J.8, pension and postretirement plans, the Company
consistenily uses the relevant country specific benchmark indices for determining the various discount rates,

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income on the consolidated statement of financial position,
exclusive of tax impacts, that have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost at September
30, 2012 are as follows (in millions):

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Bencfits
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (income)
Net transition obligation $ 2 % -
Net prior service credit (16) (26)
Total b (14 $ (26)

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income expected te be recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost over the next fiscal year are shown below (in millions):

Pension Postretirement
Benefits Benefits
Amortization oft
Net transition obligation $ - $ -
Net prior service credit (1) (a7
Total $ (1) $ (17)

93



15,

Net Periodic Benefit Cost

The table that follows contains the componeiits of net periodic benefit cost (in millions):

Pension Benefits Postictirement
U.8. Plang Non-4.,S, Plans Benefits

Year ended September 30 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2016 2012 2011 2010
Components of Net

Periodic Benefit Cost:
Service cost $ 69 % 66 % 67 § 44 % 34 % 38 8 5% 5% 4
Interest cost i50 i45 152 73 70 68 13 13 14
Expected return on plan assets {214} (203) (156) (75) {(715) 63) n - -
Net actuarial (gain) loss 432 336 111 30 43 i34 (15) 5 24
Amortization of

prior service cost (czedit) 1 i 1 (1) 2 - {17 (17) (17)
Curtailment gain - " - (2) (19 (0] - - -
Settlement loss - - - - 4 2 - - -
Net periodic benefit cost $ 438 § 345 & 175 % 66 % 59 % 178 § (25) § 6 $ 25
Expense Assumptions:
Discount rate 5.25% 5.50% 6.25% 4.00% 4.00% 475% 525% 5.50% 6.25%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 8.50% §.50% 5.15% 5.50% 6.00% 6.30% NA NA
Rate of compensation increase 330% 320% 4.20% 245% 3.00% 3.20% NA NA NA

SIGNIFICANT RESTRUCTURING COSTS

To better align its resources with its growth strategies and reduce the cost structure of its global operations to
address the sofiness in certain underlying markets, the Company committed to a significant restructuring plan (2012
Plan) in the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012 and recorded a $297 million restructuring charge, $52 million in
the third quarter and $245 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, The restructuring charge related to cost
reduciion initiatives in the Company’s Automotive Experience, Building Efficiency and Power Solutions businesses
and included workforce reductions and plant closures. The restructuring actions are expected to be substantially
complete by the end of fiscal 2014.

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s 2012 Plan reserve, included within other current
liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position (in millions):

Employee
Severance and
Termination Fixed Asset

Bencfits Hnpairment Other Total
Original reserve $ 237 § 30 % 21 § 297
Utilized - cash (16) - 6) (22)
Utilized - noncash - (3%) {8) {47y
Balance at September 30, 2012 $ 221 % -3 78 228

The 2012 Plan included workforce reductions of approximately 7,500 employees (5,100 for the Automotive
Experience business, 1,700 for the Building Efficiency business and 700 for the Power Solutions business).
Restructuring charges associated with employee severance and termination benefits are paid over the severance
period granted to each employee or on a lump sum basis in accordance with individual severance agreements, As of
September 30, 2012, approximately 800 of the employees have been separated firom the Company pursuant to the
2012 Plan, In addition, the 2012 Plan included nine plant closures (six for Automotive Experience, two for Power
Solutions and one for Building Efficiency). As of September 30, 2012, two of the nine plants have been closed. The
restructuring charge for the impairment of long-lived assets was measured, depending on the asset, either under an
income approach utilizing forecasted discounted cash flows or a market approach utilizing an appraisal to determine
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fair values of the impairment assels. Refer to Note 16, “Impairment of Long-Lived Assets,” of the nates to
consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the impairment of long-lived assets.

Company management closely monitors its overall cost siructure and continually analyzes each of ils businesses for
opportunities to consolidate current operations, improve operating cfficiencies and locate facilities in low cost
countries in close proximity to customers. This ongoing analysis includes a review of its manufacturing, engincering
and purchasing operations, as well as the overall global footprint for all its businesses. Because of the importance of
new vehicle sales by major automotive manufacturers to operations, the Company is affected by the general
business conditions in this industry. Future adverse developments in the automotive industry could impact the
Company’s liquidity position, lead to impairment charges and/or require additional restructuring of its operations.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable. The Company conducts jts long-lived asset impairment
analyses in accordance with ASC 360-10-15, “Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” ASC 360-10-15
requires the Company to group assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilitics and evaluate the asset group against the sum of the
undiscounted future cash flows. If the undiscounted cash flows do not indicate the carrying amount of the asset
group is recoverable, an impairment charge is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
group exceeds its fair value based on discounied cash flow analysis or appraisals.

In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2012, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment
of impairment for certain of its long-lived assets in conjunction with its 2012 restructuring plan. In addition, in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment of impairment
for certain of its long-lived assets due to volume declines in the European automotive markets. As a result, the
Company reviewed the long-lived assets for impairment and recorded a $39 million impairment charge within
restructuring costs on the consolidated statement of income, of which $3 million was recorded in the third quarter
and $36 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, Of the total impairment charge, $14 million related to the Power
Solutions segment, $11 million related to the Automotive Experience Europe segment, $4 million refated to the
Building Efficiency Other segment and $10 million related to corporate assets. Refer to Note 15, “Significant
Restructuring Costs,” of the notes to consolidated financial statements for further information regarding the 2012
Plan. The impairment was measured, depending on the asset, either under an income approach utilizing forecasted
discounted cash flows or a market approach utilizing an appraisal to determine fair values of the impairment assets.
These methods are consistent with the methods the Company employed in prior periods to value other long-lived
assets. The inputs utilized in the analyses are classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy as defined in
ASC 820, “Fair Value Measuremenis and Disclosures.”

In the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an impairment charge relaled to an equity investment,
Refer to Note 10, “Fafr Valie Measurements,” of the noles to consolidated financial statements for additional
information.

At September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company concluded it did not have any other triggering events requiring
assessment of impairment of its long-lived assets. Refer to Note 1, “Sumunary of Significant Accounting Policies,”
of the notes to consolidated financial statements for discussion of the Company’s goodwill impairment testing.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment of
impairment of its long-lived assets due to the planned relocation of a plant in Japan in the Automotive Expetience
Asia segment. As a result, the Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment and recorded an $11 million
impaitment charge within cost of sales in the fourth guarter of fiscal 2010 related to the Automotive Experience
Asia segment, The impairment was measured under a market approach utilizing an appraisal. The inpuis utilized in
the analysis are classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair value hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value
Measuremenis and Disclosures.”

In the third quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company concluded it had a friggering event requiring assessment of
impairment of its long-lived asscts due to the planned relocation of its headquarlers building in Japan in the
Automotive Experience Asia segment. As a result, the Company reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment and
recorded an $11 million impairment charge within selling, gencral and administrative expenses in the third quarter
of fiscal 2010 related to the Automotive Experience Asia segment. The impairment was measured under a market
approach utilizing an appraisal. The inputs utilized in the analysis arc classified as Level 3 inputs within the fair
value hicrarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Valuc Measurements and Disclosures.”
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In the second quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company concluded it had a triggering event requiring assessment of
impairment of its long-lived assets due to planned plant closures for the Automotive Experience North America
segment. These closures are a resull of the Company’s revised restructuring actions to the 2008 restruciuring plan.
As a resulf, the Company reviewed its long-fived assets for impairment and recorded a $19 million impairment
charge in the second quarter of fiscal 2010 related to the Automotive Experience North America segment. This
impairment charge was offset by a decrease in the Company’s restructuring reserve related to the 2008 restructuring
plan due to lower employee severance and termination benefit cash paymenis than previously expecied. The
impairment was measured under an income approach utilizing forecasted discounted cash flows to determine the fair
value of the impaired assets. This method is consistent with the method the Company has employed in prior periods
to value other long-lived assets. The inputs utilized in the discounted cash flow analysis are classified as Level 3
inputs within the fair vafue hierarchy as defined in ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.”

INCOME TAXES

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company changed its accounting policy [or recognizing pension and
postretirement benefit expenses. Certain amounts have been revised to reflect the retrospective application of this
accounting policy change. The $691 million adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of September
30, 2009 was net of a tax benefit of $411 million. Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,”
of the notes to consolidated financial statements for further details surrounding this accounting policy change.

The more significant components of the Company’s incomne tax provision from continuing operations are as foliows
{in mitlions);

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010

Tax expense at federal statutory rate h - 557§ 626 % ' 528
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 20 (10} 28
Foreign income tax expense at different rates and

foreign losses without tax benefits (300) (351} (311)
U.S. tax on foreign income 20) 28 (3)
Reserve and valuation allowance adjustments 13 (30) (138)
Medicare Part D - - 16
U.S. credits and incentives (13) (7} (3)
Other {20 1 10
Provision for income taxes $ 237 % 257 % 127

The effective rate is below the U.S. statutory rate primarily due to continuing global tax planning initiatives and
income in certain non-U.8, jurisdictions with a rate of tax lower than the U.S. statutory tax rate.

Valuation Allowances

The Company reviews the realizability of its deferred tax asset valuation allowances on a quarterly basis, or
whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate that a review is required. In determining the requiremnent for a
valuation allowance, the historical and projected financial results of the legal entity or consolidated group recording
the net deferred tax asset are considered, along with any other positive or negative evidence. Since future financial
results may differ from previous estimates, periodic adjustments to the Company's valuation allowances may be
necessary.

1n fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an overall increase to its valuation allowances of $47 million primarily due to
a discrete period income tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company
performed an analysis related lo the realizability of iis worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, and after
considering tax planning initiatives and other positive and negative evidence, the Company determined that it was
more likely than not that deferred tax assets within Power Solutions in China would not be utilized. Therefore, the
Company recorded a $35 million valuation allowance in the three month period ended September 30, 2012,

In fiscal 2011, the Company recorded a decrease to its valuation allowances primarily due to a $30 million discrete
period income tax adjustment in the fourth quarter. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company performed an
analysis related to the realizability of its worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, and after considering tax
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planning initiatives and other positive and negative evidence, the Company determined that it was more likely than
not that the deferrcd tax assets primarily within Denmark, Italy, Automotive Experience in Korea and Automotive
Experience in the United Kingdom would be utilized. Therefore, the Company released a net $30 million of
valuation allowances in the three month period ended September 30, 2011.

In fiscal 2010, the Company recorded an overall decrease to ifs valuation allowances of $87 million primarily duc to
a $111 million discrete period income tax adjustment. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company performed
an analysis related to the realizability of its worldwide deferred tax assets. As a result, and after considering tax
planning initiatives and other positive and negative evidence, the Company determined that it was more likely than
not that the deferred tax assets primarily within Mexico would be utilized. Therefore, the Company released $39
million of valuation allowances in the three month period ended September 30, 2010. Further, the Company
determined that it was more likely than not that the deferred tax assets would not be utilized in selected entities in
Europe. Therefore, the Company recorded $14 million of valuation atlowances in the three month period ended
September 30, 2010. To the cxtent the Company improves its underlying operating results in these entities, these
valuation allowances, or a pertion thereof, could be reversed in {uture periods.

In the third guarter of fiscal 2010, the Company determined that it was more likely than not that a portion of the
deferred tax assets within the Slovakia automotive entity would be utilized. Therefore, the Company released $13
million of valuation allowances in the three month period ended June 30, 2010,

In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company determined that it was more likely than not that a portion of the
deferred tax assets within the Brazil Automotive Experience cntity would be utilized. Therefore, the Company
released $69 million of valuation allowances. This was comprised of a $93 million decrease in income tax expense
offset by a $24 million reduction in cumulative translation adjustments.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company increased the valuation allowances by $20 million, which was
substantially offset by a decrease in its reserves for uncertain tax positions in a similar amount, These adjustments
were based on a review of tax return filing positions taken in these jurisdictions and the established reserves,

Given the current economic uncertainty, it is reasonably possible that over the next twelve months, valuation
allowances against deferred tax assets in certain jurisdictions may result in a net increase to tax expense of up to
$400 million. :

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions, Judgment is required in
determining its worldwide provision for income taxes and recording the related assets and liabilities. In the ordinary
course of the Company’s business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ullimale tax
determination is unceriain. The Company is regularly under audit by tax authorities.

Al September 30, 2012, the Company had gross tax effected unrecognized tax benefits of $1,465 million of which
$1,274 million, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate. Total net accrued interest at September 30, 2012
was approximately $72 million {net of tax benefit).

Al September 30, 2011, the Company had gross tax effected unrecognized tax benefits of $1,357 million of which
$1,164 million, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate, Total net accrued interest at September 30, 2011
was approximately $77 million {net of tax benefit).

At September 30, 2010, the Company had gross lax cffected unrecognized tax benefits of $1,262 million of which

$1,063 million, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate. Total net accrued interest at September 30, 2010
was approximately $68 million {net of tax benelit}.
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A recongciliation of the beginning and cading amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as Tollows:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010

(in millions)

Beginning balance, Seplember 30 :3 1,357 % 1,262 § 1,049
Additions for tax positions related 10 the current year 143 150 253
Additions for tax positions of prior years 36 20 257
Reductions for tax positions of prior years {58) (62) (158)
Settlements - (5) (109)
Statute closings (13) (8 (30

Ending balance, September 30 3 1,465 $ 1,357 § 1,262

In the U.S., the fiscal years 2007 through 2009 are currently under exam by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and
fiscal years 2004 through 2006 are currently under IRS Appeals. Additionally, the Company is currently under
exam in the following major foreign jurisdictions:

Tax Jurisdiction Tax Years Covered
Brazil 2004 — 2008
Canada 20072010
Czech Republic 2007 — 2009
France 2002 —-2010
Germany 2001 —-2010
Italy 2005 -2009
Mexico 2003 —2004
Poland 2008 —2009
Slovakia 2009 —2010

The Company expects that certain tax examinations, appellate proceedings and/or tax fitigation will conclude within
the next twelve months, the impact of which could be up to a $200 million benefit to tax expense.

As a resuli of cerlain recent events related to prior tax planning initiatives, during the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the
Company reduced the reserve for uncertain tax positions by $22 million, including $13 million of interest and
penalties.

Based on published case law in a foreign jurisdiction and the settlement of a tax audit during the third quarter of
fiscal 2010, the Company released net $38 million of reserves for uncertain tax positions, including interest and
penalties.

As a result of cerfain evenis related to tax planning initiatives during the {irst quarier of fiscal 2010, the Company
increased the reserve for uncertain tax posttions by $31 million, including $26 million of interest and penalties.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company decreased its reserves for uncertain tax positions by $20 million,
which was substantially offset by an increase in its valuation allowances in a similar amount. These adjustments
were based on a review of tax filing positions taken in jurisdictions with valuation allowances as indicated above.

Impacts of Tax Legislation and Change in Statufory Tax Rates

The look-through rule, under subpart F of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, cxpired for the Company on September
30, 2012. The look-through rule had provided an exception to the U.S. taxation of certain income generated by
foreign subsidiaries. It is generally thought that this rule will be extended with the possibility of retroactive
application.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012, tax legislation was adopted in Japan which reduces its statutory
income tax rate by 5%. Also, tax legislation was adopted in various jurisdictions fo limit the annal utilization of tax
losses that ave carried forward, None of these changes had a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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On March 23, 2010, the U.S. President signed into law comprehensive health care reform legislation under the
Patient Protection and Affordablc Care Act (HR3590), Included among the major provisions of the law is a change
in the tax treatment of a portion of Medicare Part D medical payments. The Company recorded a noncash tax charge
of approximately $18 million in the second quarter of fiscal year 2010 to reflect the impact of this change. In the
Tourth quarter of fiscal 2010, the amount decreased by $2 million resulting in an overall impact of $16 million.

Continuing Operations
Components of the provision for income taxes on continuing operations were as follows (in millions):

Year [inded September 30,

2012 2011 2010

Current

Federal $ 118 § 56 % 112

State 12 - : 29

Foreign 313 458 14]

443 514 282

Deferred

Federal 119 G4 55

State 21 9 2

Foreign (346) (342} (212}

(206) {257) {155)

Provision for income taxes : : $ 237 % : 257 % 127 -

Consolidated domestic income from continuing operations before income taxes and noncontrolling interests for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was income of $1,131 million, $1,012 million and $538
million, respectively. Consolidated foreign income fiom continuing operations before income taxes and
noncontrolling interests for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was income of $459 million,
$777 million and $971 milion, respectively.

Income taxes paid for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $496 million, $384 million
and $535 million, respectively.

The Company has not provided additional U.S. income taxes on approximately $6.4 billion of undistribuied
earnings of consolidated foreign subsidiaries included in shareholders® equity attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc.
Such earnings could become taxable upon the sale or liguidation of these foreign subsidiaries or upon dividend
repatriation. The Company’s inlenl is for such earnings to be reinvested by the subsidiaries or o be repatriated only
when it would be lax effective through the utilization of foreign tax credits. It is not practicable to estimate the
amount of unrecognized withholding taxes and deferred tax liability on such earnings. Refer to “Capitalization”
within the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” scction of Item 7 for discussion of domestic and foreign cash
projections.

Deferred taxes were classified in the consolidated stalements of financial position as follows (in millions):

September 30,

2012 2011
Other current assets $ 564 & 558
Other noncurrent assets 1,783 1,855
Other current liabilities (10} 4
Other noncurrent liabilities (93) (56)
Net deferred tax asset $ 2242 § 2,353
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Temporary differences and carryforwards which gave risc to deferred tax assets and liabilities included (in
millions):

September 30,

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses and reserves $ 534 % 793
Employee and retiree benefits 444 390
Net operating loss and other credit carryforwards 2,582 2,314
Research and development 79 103

3,639 3,600
Valuation allowances {766) {719)

2,873 2,881
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 119 130
Intangible assets 349 345
Other ' 163 33

631 528

Net deferred tax asset h 2242 % 2,353

Al September 30, 2012, the Company had available net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $4.1 billion,
of which $1.6 billion will expire at various dates between 2013 and 2031, and the remainder has an indefinite
carryforward period. The Company had available U.S. foreign tax credit carryforwards at September 30, 2012 of
$1.1 billion, which will expire at various dates between 2016 and 2022. The valuation allowance, generally, is for
loss carryforwards for which utilization is uncertain because it is unlikely that the losses will be utilized given the
lack of sustained profitability and/or limited carvyforward periods in certain countries.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

ASC 280, “Segment Reporting,” establishes the standards for reporting information about segments in financial
statements. In applying the criteria set forth in ASC 280, the Company has determined that it has nine reportable
segments for financial reporting purposes. The Company’s nine reportable segments arc presented in the conext of
its three primary businesscs ~ Building Efficiency, Automotive Experience and Power Solutions.

Building Efficiency

Building Efficiency designs, produces, markets and instafls heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) and
control systems that monitor, automate and integrate critical building segment equipment and conditions including
HVAC, fire-safety and security in commercial buildings and in various industrial applications.

+  Norih America Systems designs, produces, markets and installs mechanical equipment that provides heating
and coocling in North American non-residential buildings and industrial applications as well as control
systems that integrate the operation of this equipment with other critical building systems,

e  Norih America Service provides technical services including inspection, scheduled maintenance, repair and
replacement of mechanical and conirol systems in North America, as well as the retrofit and service
components of performance contracts and other solutions.

e Global Workplace Solutions provides on-site staff for complete real estate services, facility operation and
management fo improve the comforl, productivity, energy efficiency and cost effectiveness of building
systems around the globe.

s  Asiaprovides HVAC and refrigeration systems and technical services 1o the Asian marketplacc.
o Other provides HVAC and refrigeration systems and technical services to markets in Europe, the Middle East

and Latin America, Other also designs and produces heating and air conditioning solutions for residential and
light commercial applications and markets products to the replacement and new construction markets.
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Automotive Experience

Automotive Experience designs and manufactures interior systems and products for passenger cars and Hght trucks,
including vans, pick-up trucks and sport utility/crossover vehicles in North America, Europe and Asia. Automotive
Experience systems and products include complete seating systems and components; cockpit systems, including
instrument panels and clusters, information displays and body controllers; overhead systems, including headliners
and electronic convenience features; floor consoles; and door systems.

Power Solutions

Power Solutions services both automotive original equipment manufacturers and the battery aftermarket by
providing advanced battery technology, coupled with systems engineering, marketing and service expertise.

Management evaluates the performance of the segments based primarily on segment income, which represents
income from continuing operations before income taxes and noncontrolling interests excluding net financing
charges, significant restructuring costs and net mark-to-market adjustments on pension and postretirement plans,
General corporate and other overhead expenses are allocated to business segments in determining segment income.
Financial information relating to the Company’s reportable segments is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
Net Sales
Building Efficiency
North America Systems $ 2,389 % 2,343 % 2,142
North America Setvice , 2,145 2,305 2,127
Global Workplace Solutions 4,294 4,153 3,288
Asia 1,987 1,840 1,422
Other 3,900 4,252 3,823
14,715 14,893 12,802
Automotive Experience
North America 8,721 7,431 6,763
Europe 9,973 10,267 8,019
Asia 2,640 2,367 1,826
21,334 20,065 16,610
Power Solutions 5,906 5,875 4,893
Total net sales b 41,955 §$ 40,833 $ 34,305
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Segment Income (ILoss)
Building Efficiency

North America Systems (1)
North America Service (2)
Global Workplace Solutions (3)
Asia (4)

Other (5)

Automotive Experience
North America (6)
Europe (7)

Asia (8)

Power Solutions (9)
Total segment income

Net financing charges

Restructuring costs

Net mark-to-market adjustments on
pension and postrefirement plans

Income before income taxes -

Assets

Building Efficiency
North America Systems
North America Service
Global Workplace Solutions
Asia
Other

Automotive Experience
North America
Burope
Asia

Power Solutions
Unallocated
Total

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010

3 286 % 247 % 206
164 121 117

52 22 40

267 251 180

141 105 136

910 746 679

487 419 380

(52) iis 108

368 245 109

303 780 597

854 821 672

$ 2,567 3 2,347 3§ 1,948
(233) {174 (170)

(297) - -
(447 {384) (269)
$ 1,590 § - 1,789 § - 1,509 -
September 30,
2012 2011 2010

3 1,326 8§ 1,300 § 1,354

1,523 1,581 1,511

1,234 1,228 1,012

1,316 1,247 1,236

3,947 4,115 3,925

9,346 9,471 9,038

4,254 3,863 3,392

6,742 7,348 5,390

1,757 1,587 1,345

12,753 12,798 10,127

7,242 6,638 5478

1,543 769 1,100

$ 30,884 § 29676 § 25,743
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Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
Depreciation/Amortization
Building Efficiency
North America Systems $ 12§ i 3 3
North America Scrvice 25 25 23
Global Workplace Solutions 24 18 16
Asia 19 15 15
Other 66 69 73
146 137 138
Automotive Experience
North America 141 138 147
Europe 284 254 213
Asia 319 27 31
464 419 391
Power Solutions 214 175 162
Total $ 8§24 $ 731 % 691

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
Capital Expenditures
Building Efficiency
North America Systems 5 6 % 6 $ 14
North America Service 25 ' 17 32
Global Workplace Solutions 7 32 17
Asia 38 22 13
Other 103 91 43
179 168 119
Automotive Experience
North America 232 210 123
Burope 463 383 225
Asia 82 45 38
777 638 386
Power Solutions 875 519 272
Total $ 1,831 § 1,325 § 777

(1) Building Efficiency - North America Systems segment income for the year ended September 30, 2012 excludes
$2 million of restructuring costs.

{(2) Building Efficicncy — North America Service segment income for the year ended September 30, 2012 excludes
$6 million of restructuring costs. For the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 North America Service
segment itcome Includes $1 million and $2 million, respectively, of equity income.

(3) Building Efficiency — Global Workplace Solutions segment income for the year ended September 30, 2012
excludes $16 million of restructuring costs.

(4) Building Efficiency — Asia segment income for the year ended Seplember 30, 2012 excludes $I million of
restructuring costs. For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Asia segment income includes $3
mitlion, $3 million and $2 million, respectively, of equity income.

{(5) Building Efficiency — Other segment income for the year ended September 30, 2012 excludes $64 million of
restruciuring costs. For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Other segment income includes
$23 million, $17 million and $2 mitlion, respectively, of equity income.

{6) Automotive Experience — North America segment income for the year ended September 30, 2012 excludes $14
million of restructuring costs, For the years cnded September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, North America segment
income includes $23 million, $20 million and $14 million, respectively, of equity income.
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{(7) Automotive Experience — Europe segment income for the year ended September 30, 2012 excludes $145 million
of restruciuring costs. For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Europe segment income
includes $5 million, $7 million and $7 million, respectively, of equity income.

(8) Automotive Experience — Asia segment income for the year ended September 30, 2012 excludes $2 million of
restructuring costs. For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Asia segment income includes
$185 million, $187 million and $132 million, respectively, of cquity income.

(9) Power Solutions segment income for the year ended September 30, 2012 excludes $37 million of restructuring
costs, For the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Power Solutions segment income includes $100
million, $62 million and $97 million, respectively, of equity income.

The Company has significant sales to the automotive industry. In fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, no customer
exceeded 10% of consolidated net sales.

Geographic Segments
Financial information relating to the Company’s operations by geographic area is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010

Net Sales

United States $ 15484 % 14367 § 12,892
Germany 4,790 4,590 3,542
Mexico 2,189 1.869 1,428
Other European countries _ 10,663 10,212 8,338
Other forcign 8,829 9,795 8,105
Total $ 41,955 § 40,833 § 34,305
Long-Lived Assets (Year-end)

United States $ 2,521 § 2,116 § 1,573
Germany 879 864 388
Mexico 588 540 464
Other Furopean countrics 1,557 1,356 1,071
Other foreign 895 740 600
Total $ 6,440 § 5,616 § 4,096

Net sales attributed to geographic locations are based on the location of the assets producing the sales. Long-lived
assets by geographic location consist of net property, plant and equipment.

Effective October 1, 2013, the Company reorganized its Automotive Expericnee reportable segments to align with
its new management reporting structure and business activities, As a result of this change, Automotive Experience
will be comprised of three new reportable segments for financial reporting purposes: Seating, Electronies and
Interiors. This change will be reflected in the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarier ended
Decentber 31, 2012, with comparable periods revised to conform to the new presentation.

NONCONSOLIDATED PARTIALLY-OWNED AFFILIATES

Investments in the net assets of nonconsolidated partially-owned affiliates arc stated in the “Investments in partialty-
owned affiliales” line in the consolidated statements of financial position as of September 30, 2012 and 2011. Equity
in the net income of nonconsolidated partially-owned affiliates are stated in the “Bquily income” line in the
consolidated statements of income for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The following table prescnts summarized financial data for the Company’s nonconsolidated partialty-owned

affiliates. The amounts included in the table below represent 100% of the resulis of operations of such
nonconsolidated partially-owned affiliates accounted for under the equity method.
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Summarized balance sheet data as of September 30 is as follows (in millions):

2012 2011
Current asseis A 3,339 $ 3,000
Noncurrent assets 1,648 1,120
Total assets 4,987 4,120
Current liabilitics $ 2,501 $ 2,188
Noncurrent liabilities 553 378
Shareholders' equity 1,933 1,554
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 4,987 4,120

Summarized income statement data for the years ended September 30 is as follows {(in millions):

2012 2011 2010
Net sales 3 9,261 k3 8,468 i) 7,378
Gross profit 1,423 1,154 1,086
Net income atéiributable to the entity 664 526 477

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company accrues for potential environmental Habilities in a manner consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States; that is, when it ig probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of
the Hability is reasonably estimable. Reserves for environmental liabilities totaled $25 million and $30 million at
September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company reviews the status of its environmental sifes on a
quarterly basis and adjusts its reserves accordingly. Such potential liabilities accrued by the Company do not take
into consideration possible recoveries of future insurance proceeds. They do, however, take into account the likely
share other parties will bear at remediation siles. Tt is difficult to estimate the Company's ultimate level of liability at
many remediation sites due to the large number of other parties that may be involved, the complexity of determining
the relative liability among those parties, the uncertainty as to the nature and scope of the investigations and
remediation to be conducted, the uncertainty in the application of law and risk assessment, the various choices and
costs associated with diverse technologies that may be used in corrective actions at the sites, and the often quite
lengthy periods over which eventual remediation may occur. Nevertheless, the Company does not currently believe
that any claims, penalties or costs in connection with known environmental matters will have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In addition, the Company has
identified asset retiroment obligations for environmental matters that are expected to be addressed at the retirement,
disposal, removal or abandonment of existing owned facilities, primarily in the Power Solutions business. At
September 30, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded conditional asset retirement obligations of $76 million and
$91 million, respectively.

The Company is involved in a number of product liability and various other casualty lawsuits incident fo the
operation of its businesses. The Company maintains insurance coverages and records cstimated costs for claims and
suits of this nature. Tt is management's opinion that none of these will have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Costs related to such matters were not material to
the periods presented.
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JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II - YALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

{In millions)
Year Ended September 30, 2012 2011 2010
Accounts Receivable - Allowance for Doybtful Accounts
Balance at beginning of period $ 89 3 96 % 89
Provision charged to costs and expenses 47 37 42
Reserve adjustments (15) (23) (24)
Accounts charged off (42) (24} (25}
Acquisition of businesses - 4 4
Currency translation {1} (1) -
Balance at end of period $ 78 3 89 % 96

Delerred Tax Assets - Valuation Allowance

Balance at beginning of period 5 719§ 739§ gle
Allowance established for new operating

and other loss carryforwards 119 95 70
Acquisition of businesses - 18 -
Allowance reversed for loss carryforwards utilized

and other adjustments {(72) (133) (147)
Balance at end of period $ 766§ 719§ 739

ITEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such ferm is
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“the Exchange Act™)) as of the
end of the period covered by this report. Based on such evatuations, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective in recording, processing, summarizing, and reporting, on a timely basis, information
required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act, and that
information is accumulaled and communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chiel
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure,

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Company’s management, with the
participation of the Company’s Chicf Exccutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Tnlernal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this
evalualion, the company’s management has concluded that, as of Scptember 30, 2012, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective,

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness 1o future periods are subject to risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of infernal controls over financial reporting as of September
30, 2012 as slated in its report which is included in Ttem & of this Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference
herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as noted below, there have been no changes in the Company’s internal conlrol over financial reporting
during the quarter ended September 30, 2012, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

The Company is undertaking the implementation of new enterprise resource planning (ERP) systems in certain
businesses, which will occur over a period of several years. As the phased roll-out of the new ERP systems occurs,
the Company may experience changes in its internal control over financial reporting. No significant changes were

made to the Company’s current internal control over {inancial reporting as a result of the implementation of the new
ERP systems during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012,

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None. .

PART 111

The information required by Part I1L, Items 10, 11, 13 and 14, and certain of the information required by Item 12, is
incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders

{fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement), dated and to be filed with the SEC on or about December 10, 2012, as follows:

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Incorporated by reference to the sections entitled “Q: Where can I find Corporate Governance materials for Johnson
Controls?,” “Propesal One: Election of Directors,” “Board Information,” “Audit Committee Report” and “Section
16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of the fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement, Required information on
executive officers of the Company appears at Part I, Ttem 4 of this repoit.

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by refercnce to the sections entitled “Board Information,” “Compensation Committee Report,”
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Director Compensation during Fiscal Year 2012,” “Potential Payments
and Benefits Upon Termination or Change of Control,” “Johnson Controls Share Ownership® and “Shareholder
Information Summary™ of the fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Incorporated by reference to section entitled “Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans”
under “Proposal Four: Approve the Johnson Controls, Inc. 2012 Omnibus Incentive Plan™ and the section entitled
“Johnson Controls Share Ownership” of the fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement,

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Incorporated by reference to sections entitled “Board Information — Board Independence” and “Board Information —
Related Person Transactions” of the fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporaied by reference to the section entitled “Relationship with Independent Auditors” under “Audit Comnittee
Report” of the fiscal 2012 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page in
Forin 10-K
(a) The following documents are filed as parl of this Form 10-K;
{1} Financial Statements
Report of lndependent Registered Public Accounting Firm 52
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended September 30, 2012,
2011 and 2010 54
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position at September 30, 2012 and
2011 55
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30,
2012, 2011 and 2010 56
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity Attributable to Johnson
Controls, Inc. for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 57
Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements 58
(2) Financial Statement Schedule
Tor the vears ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010:
Schedule IT - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 106

(3) Exhibits
Reference is made to the separate exhibit index contained on pages 110 through 113 filed herewith.

All other schedules are omitted becausc they are not applicable, or the required information is shown in the financial
statements or notes thereto,

Financial statements of 50% or less-owned companies have been omitted because the proportionate share of their
profit before income taxes and fotal asseis are less than 20% of the respective consolidated amounts, and
investments in such companies are less than 20% of consolidated total assets.

Other Matters

For the purposes of complying with the amendments to the rules governing Form S-8 under the Securities Act of
1933, the undersigned registrant hereby undertakes as follows, which undertaking shall be incorporated by reference
inlo registrant's Registration Statemenis on Form S-8 Nos. 33-30309, 33-31271, 333-10707, 333-66073, 333-41564,
333-141578,333-117898 and 333-173326.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilitics arising under the Securitics Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant
has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against publc policy as expressed in the
Securities Act of 1933 and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such
labilities (other than the payment by the registrani of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling
person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding} is asserted by such director,
officer or controlling person in conncction with the securities being regisiered, the registrant will, unless in the
opinion of its counsel the matier has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate
jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will
be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC.

By  /s/R.Bruce McDonald
R. Bruce McDonald
Bxecutive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: November 19, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Sceurities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below as of
November 19, 2012, by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated:

/s/ Stephen A. Roell /s/ R, Bruce McBDonald
Stephen A, Roell R, Bruce McDonald
Chairman and Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Brian J. Stief fs/ Dennis W. Archer
Brian J. Stief Dennis W. Archer
Vice President and Corporate Director

Controller (Principal Accounting

Officer) )

/s/ David Abney /s/ Roberi L. Barnett
David Abney Robert L. Barnett
Director Director

[s/ Nalalie A, Black
Natalie A. Black
Director

/s/ Richard Goodman
Richard Goodman
Director

/s/ William H. Lacy
~ William H. Lacy
Director

/s Bugenio Clariond Reyes-Retana

Eugenio Clariond Reyes-Retana

Director
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/s/ Robert A, Cornog
Robert A. Cornog
Director

[s/ Jeffrey A. Joerres
Jeffiey A. Joerres
Director

[sf Mark P. Vergnano
Mark P. Vergnano
Director

Julie L. Bushman
Director
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Restated Articles of Incorporation of Fohnson Controls, Inc., as amended through January 26,
2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Curient Report on Form
8-K filed February 1, 2011) (Commission File No. [-5097).

Johnson Conirols, Inc. By-Laws, as amended and restated through January 26, 2011 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February
1, 2011 )} (Commission File No. 1-5097).

Miscellaneous long-term debt agreements and financing leases with banks and other creditors and
debenture indentures.*

Miscellaneous industrial development bond long-term debt issues and related loan agreements and
leases.*

Letter of agreement dated December 6, 1990 between Johnson Controls, Tnc., LaSalle National
Trust, N.A. and Fidelity Management Trust Company which replaces LaSalle National Trust,
N.A. as Trustee of the Johnson Controls, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust with Fidelity
Management Trust Company as Successor Trustee, effective January 1, 1991 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.F to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30, 1991) (Commission File No. 1-5097).

Indenture for debt securities dated January 17, 2006 between Johnson Conirols, Inc. and US Bank
N.A. as successor trustee to JP Morgan Chase (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson
Controls, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form S-3ASR [Reg. No. 333-130714]).

[RESERVED].

Supplemental Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, between Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls,
Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-5907).

Subordinated Indenture, dated March 16, 2009, between Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.8, Bank
National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Johnson Controls,
Ine.’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-5907).

Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated March 16, 2009, between Johnson Controls, Inc. and U.S.
Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Johnson
Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed March 20, 2009) {Commission File No. 1-
5907).

Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated March 1, 2012, between Johnson Controls, Inc, and U.S.
Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson
Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 1, 2012) (Commission File No. 1-5097),

Officers’ Certificate, dated December 2, 2011, establishing the 2.600% Senior Notes due 2016,
3.750% Senior Notes due 2021 and 5.250% Senior Notes due 2041 ({incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Conirols, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 2, 2011)
(Commission File No. 1-5097).

Form of Corporate Unil {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Comemission File No. 1-5907).

Form of Treasury Unit {incorporaled by reference to Exhibil 4.7 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s
Cutrent Report on Form 8-K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission Iile No. 1-5907).

Form of Subordinated Note {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed March 20, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-5907).
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Johnson Controls, Inc.
Index to Exhibits

Title

Officers’ Certificate, dated March 9, 2010 creating 5.000% Senior Notes due 2020 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March
10, 2010} (Commission File No. 1-5907).

Credit Agreement, dated as of February 17, 2011, among Johnson Controls, Inc. and the financial
inslitutions parties thercto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s
Current Reporl on Form 8-K filed February 18, 2011} (Commission File No. 1-5907).

Officers’ Certificate, dated February 4, 2011, establishing the Floating Rate Notes due 2014,
1.75% Senior Notes due 2014, 4,25% Senior Notes duc 2021 and 5.70% Senior Notes due 2041
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed February 7, 2011).

Johnson Controls, Inc. Common Stock Purchase Plan for Execulives as amended November 17,
2004 and effective December 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.B to Johnson
Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004)
{Commission File No. [-5097).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Certain Directors, as amended and
restated effective November 18, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.C to Johnson
Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2009)
{Commission File No. 1-5097).%*

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Survivor Benefits Plan, as amended and restated effective
September 13, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.D to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2009) (Commission File No, 1-5097).%*

[RESERVED]
[RESERVED].

Form of indemnity agreement effective October 16, 2006, between Johnson Controls, Inc. and
each of the directors and elected officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.L to Johnson
Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2007)
{Commission File No. 1-5097).%*

Johnson Controls, Inc, Director Share Unit Plan, as amended and restated effective September 20,
2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.H to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).%*

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective Janoary 1, 2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended September 30, 2009) (Commission File No, 1-5097).%%

Form of stock option award agreement for Johnson Controls, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as
amended through October 1, 2001, as in use through March 20, 2006 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 15, 2005)
(Commission File No. 1-5097).%*

Johnson Controls, Inc, 2001 Restricted Stock Plan, as amended and restated effective September
20, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.K to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).%*

Form of restricted stock award agreement for Johnson Controls, Inc. 2001 Restricted Steck Plan,
as first amended March 21, 2006 with effectiveness of August 1, 2006, and as currently amended
effective September 20, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.L to Johnson Controls,
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Inc.’s Annual Report on Vorm 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2011) (Commission File
No, 1-5097).*%

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective
March 23, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2010) (Commission File No. 1-
5097) **

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2003 Stock Plan for Outside Directors, as amended September 1, 2009
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.N to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended September 30, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-5097).%%

Johnson Controls, Inc. Annual Incentive Performance Plan, as amended and restated effective
January 1, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current
Report Form 8-K filed February 1, 2011) (Commission File No. 1-5(097).%*

Johnson Conirols, Inc. Retirement Restoration Plan, as amended and restated effective November
17, 2009 (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.P to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annuval Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2009) (Commission File No. 1-3097).%%

Johnson Controls, Inc, Compensation Summary for Non-Employee Direclors as amended and
restated effective January 1, 2012, filed herewith.*#

Form of stock option award agreement for Johnson Controls, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan, as
amended September 16, 2006, as in effect since October 2, 20006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.CC to Fohnson Conirols, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-KK for the year ended
September 30, 2006) (Commission File No. [-5097}).**

Johnson Controls, Inc. Long Term Incentive Performance Plan, as amended and restated effective
January 1, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 1, 2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).%*

Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Plan, amended as of September 20, 2011 {incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.U to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annuval Report on Form 10-K for the year
erded September 30, 2011) (Commission File No. 1-5097).%%

Form of stock option award agreement for Johnson Controls, Inc. 2007 Stock Option Plan
effective September 20, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.V to Johnson Controls,
Inc.’s Annual Report on Form §0-K for the year ended September 30, 2011) (Commission File
No. 1-5097).%*

Supplemental Agreement to the Employment Coniract between the Company and Dr. Beda
Bolzenius dated August 23, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.EE to Johnson
Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Scptember 30, 2008)
(Commission File No. 1-3097).%*

Johnson Controls, Inc. Executive Compensation Incentive Recoupment Policy effective
September 15, 2009, as amended through September 25, 2012, filed herewith. **

Form of employment agreement between Johnson Controls, Inc, and all clected officers and
named executives hired after July 28, 2010, as amended and restated July 28, 2010 (incorporated
by reference to lixhibit 10.Y to Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quatterly period ended June 30, 2010} (Commission File No. 1-5097).*%

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the vears ended September 30, 2012, 2011,
2010, 2009 and 2008, filed herewith.
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Index to Exhibits
Exhibit Title

18 Preferability Letter on Change in Accounting Principle, filed herewith.

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant, filed herewith.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm dated November 19, 2012, filed
herewith.

31.1 Certification by the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, filed herewith.

312 Ceriification by the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, filed herewith.

32 Certification of Periodic Financial Report by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

101 The following materials from Johnson Controls, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

ended September 30, 2012, formaited in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Income,
(iii) the Consolidated Stalements of Cash Flow, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’
Equity Attributable to Johnson Controls, Inc. and (v) Notes to Censolidated Financial Statements,

filed herewith.

# These instruments are not being filed as exhibits herewith because none of the long-term debt instruments
authorizes the issuance of debt in excess of 10% of the total assets of Johnson Controls, Inc. and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. Johnson Controls, Inc. agrees to furnish a copy of each agreement to the Securities and Exchange

Commission upon request.

#* Denotes a management confract or compensatory plan.,
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Fact Sheet - Johnson Controls Johnson %ﬁéﬁ

Updated 29 January 2013

COMPANY DESCRIPTION

OUR VISION

MANAGEMENT

HEADQUARTERS
WESR

FINANCIALS

Controls

Johnson Controls is a global diversified technology and industrial leader serving customers in more than
150 countries, Our 170,000 employess create guality preducts, services and sclutions to optimize energy
and operational efficiencies of buildings; lead-acid automotive batteries and advanced batteries for hybrid
and electric vehicles; and interior systems for automobiies. Gur commitment to sustainability dates back
to our roots in 1885, with the invention of the first electric room thermostat. Through our growth strategies
and by increasing market share we are committed to delivering value to sharehalders and making our
customers successful.

Creating a more comfortable, safe and sustainable world.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer - Stephen A. Roell

Vice Chairman — Alex A. Malinaroli

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer - R. Bruce McDonald
President, Automotive Electronics & Interiors — William C. Jackson
President, Automotive Seating - Beda Bolzenius

President, Building Efficiency - C. David Myers

President, Power Solutions — Brian Kesseler

5757 N. Green Bay Avenue, P.O. Box 59i, Milw'aukee', WI 53201, us

www johnsoncontrols.com

Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
December 31 September 30
{in millions, except per share data) 2012 2011 2012 2011
Net Sales $10,422 $10,4%7 $41,955 $40,833
Net income $354 $424 $1,783 51,692
Diluted Earnings per Share $0.52 $0.62 $2.59 $2.46
*Excludes restructuring and one-time items
2012 sales by business {in millions)
Automotive Experience $21,334
Building Efficiency $14,715
Power Solutions $ 5,906
$41,955

Banking Reference: JPMChase, Credit and Confirmation Group, Fax (817) 345-3794, Tel (817) 399-7201

Visit www.johnsancontrols.com/investors for current reports and filings.



AWARDS & RECOGNITION

BUSINESS UNITS

SUSTAINABILITY

FTSE4Gocd Index Series

Dow Jones Sustainability Worsld Index

Dow Jones Sustainability North America index
S&P 500 Carbon Disclosure Leadership Index
Calvert Social Index

Domini 400 Soctal index

KLD> Dividend Achievers Social Index

KLD Globhal Climate 160 Index

KLD Glohal Sustainabilily Index

KLD Large Cap Social Index

KLD Large-Mid Cap Social Index

KLD Broad Market Social Index

KLD North America Sustainability Index

KLD Catholic Values 400 index

KLD Select Social Index

Maplecroft Climate Innovation Index Benchmark
Maplecroft Climate Innovations Index Leaders
NASDAQ OMX CRD Global Sustainability 50 Index
Bronze Edison Award, Green Award category
Global 100 Most Sustainable Corporations in the World, Corporate Knights

LEADERSHIP

No. 5 on Corporate Responsibility magazine's "100 Best Corporate Citizens” for 2012

One of Ethisphere Institute’s "World’s Most Ethical Companies”

The No. 2 company, “molor vehicle parts” category, Fortune's “World's Most Admired Companies” list
No. 64, Forbes Magazine's World's Most Innovalive Companies

Top Employer, Gorporate Research Foundation (CRF) Institute China

No. 7, G.I. Jobs magazine’s Top 100 Military Friendly Employers

2013 All-America Executive Team and a "Most Honored Company,” Institutional Investor magazine
GM Quality Excellence Awards for five Johnson Controls plants

Automaotive Interiors Expo 2012 Supplier of the Year, Concept Interior of the Year

Bronze Edison Award in Smart Systems, for Panoptix®

Innovation Award for AGM, Temot, Europe

DIVERSITY

2012 Supplier of the Year Award for Supplier Diversity, Chrysler

2012 Corporation of the Year, Michigan Minerity Supplier Develepment Council
2012 Superior Award for Supplier Diversity Initiatives, Toyota

2012 Corporation of the Year, Maryland/DC Minority Supplier Development Councit

Fartune 500 Ranking — 67
Global Fortune 500 Ranking - 251

BUILDING EFFICIENCY

Detivers products, services and solutions that increase energy efficiency and fower operating costs for
rnore than one million customers,

Leading provider of equiprent, controls and services for heating, ventilating, air-conditioning,
refrigeration and security systems for buildings.

Manages 1.8 billion square feet of cotporate real estate for many of the world's largest companies.
Nearly 700 branch offices in more than 150 countries.

Address ~ 507 E. Michigan Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 63202, US

AUTOMOTIVE EXPERIENCE

Global leader in automotive seating, overhead systems, door and instrument panels, and interior
electronics.

Supports all major automakers in the differentiation of their vehicles through our products, technologies
and advanced manufacturing capabilities.

Globat capabilities to supply more than 50 million cars per year.

More than 240 plants worldwide.

Address - 49200 Halyard Brive, Plymouth, Michigan 48170, US

POWER SCLUTIONS

The global leader in lead-acid automotive batteries and advanced batteries for Start-Stop, hybrid and
electric vehicles.

Supplies more than one third of the world’s lead-acid balteries to major automakers and aftermarket
retailers.

Lead acid batteries sold under customer brands as well as our own VARTA®, Hellar®, LTH® and
Optima® brand names.

50 manufacturing, recycling and distribution centers worldwide.

Address - 5757 N. Green Bay Ave., P.0. Box 591, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53201, US



Exhibit C-4 Financial Arrangements

Not applicable. Applicant will not be taking title to electricity.






Exhibit C-5 Forecasted Financial Statements

Not applicable. Applicant will not be taking title to electricity.
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Fitch Affirms Johnson Controls at '"BBB+';
Outlook Revised to Negative

Biancusiies  Press Release: Fitch Rattngs — Fri, Aug 31, 2012 10:13 AM EDT

Fitch Ratings has affirmed the Issuer Default Rating (IDR) and long-term ratings for Johnson
Controls, Inc. (TCI) at ‘BBB+", The Rafing Outlook is revised to Negalive from Stable, A full
rating list fs shown below,

The Negative Rating Outlook reflects increased concernis about JCI's operating performance in
cettaln businesses and the company's finaneial flexibility associated with negative fiee cash flow
(FCF) and higher debt and leverage. In the absence of operating improvements and a reduction in
cash deployment for capital expenditures and working capital, an uncertain global economic
outlook could pressure revenue and marging and delay a meaningful improvement in credit
motrios, At June 30, 2012, debt/EBITDA was 2.3% compared to 1.9x at the end of fiscal 2011

and 1.4x at the end of fiscal 2010

Other rating concerns fnelude low margins in parts of the Automotive Experience (AE) and
Building Efficiency (BE) segments; weak construction matkets in the BE business; difficult
condifions in Burope and slowing growth in emerging regions; and volatile prices for lead and
othet raw materials, In the AE segment, low-margin business on [egacy platforms has pressured
results, and metal operations in the seating business continve to face challenges related to
purchasing and manufacturing processes. The seating issues have not been resolved as quickly as
anticipated, but the acquisitions in 2011 of seating businesses Including C, Rob Hammerstein
Group (Hammerstein) and Keiper/Reearo Automotive (Keiper) should provide additional scale
and expeitise to address them effectively. Tn the Power Solutions (Power) segment, lead-related
costs have been liigh due to low retail demand that veduced supply, but the impact is expected to
be temporary.

These concerns are partly offset by JCT's diverse customer base, substantial scrvice and
aftermarket revenue in the Power and BE segiments, and effective cost management, The
company recoghized a $52 million resiructuring charge in the third quarter of fiscal 2012 and
expects an additional charge in the fourth quarter, Third-quarter restracturing charges were
concenitated in the BE (341 million) and AR ($11 million) segments and primarily involved
adjustments to production levels in tesponse to lower-than-expected dethand.

Concerns about FCF and leverage would be reduced if JCI maintains lower spending levels
expected in the fourth quarter of 2012, effectively addresses operating challenges in cetiain
businesscs, and repays somée debt, Working capital could also begin to improve, subject o the
financial condition of the company's supply chain, particulasly in Earops where suppliers could
potentially experience more stiess related to deelining auto production,

FCF after dividends through the first nine months of fiscal 2012 was negative $1 billion. FCF
could be positive in the fourth quatter as JCI's capital expenditures decline from peak levels and




in the absence of additional pension coptributions for the year, In addition, JCI expects modest
working capital improvements. However, Fitch estimates FCF will be negative for the full year,
Additional cash is being generated by small divestitures,

FCI could improve in 2013 to a modestly positive level of approximately $200 million-$300
million or more as estimated by Fitch, FCF in 2013 will depend on the amount of additional
pension contributions, which Fitch assumes will remain stable, ag well as cash restructuring
costs, improvements in working capital, and lower capital expenditures, Capital expenditures
have been divected toward expansion in emerging markets, new automotive launches, and
additional lead recycling capasity in the Power business, Some of these projects are reaching
completion, and othérs could be reduced due to slower global cconomic growth. Expenditures
for acquisitions and share repurchases have been litited while JCI focuses on internial growth
following approximately $1.2 biflion of acquisitions in 2011, primarily for Hammerstein and
Keiper,

Pension contributions totaled $400 million through the first nirie months of fiscal 2012 and likely
represent JCI's full contributions for the year, The company estimates it$ pénsion plans will be
90% funded at the end of fiscal 2012 as a result of contributions and favorable assets retuins,
despite the negative impact of a lower discount rate, As of Sept. 30, 2011, pension plans were
underfunded by $1.1 billion on a global basis. The majority of global plans have been closed and
frozen, which Hmits future accruals. ICI plans to adopt mark-to-market pension accounting in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2012,

Over the Jong term, Fitch anticipates that JCI's operating performance could Improve as the
company gains traction from ongoing acfions to vertically integrate the Power-apd AE businesses
and as BE's construction markets eventually recover. The corapany is well positioned to benefit
from global growth in its key end markets, including demand related to environinental
sustainability and energy efficiency, The ratings are also supported by the conipahy's leading
matket positions, disciplined cost structure, an expanding presence in emerging regions, a strong
presence on new automotive program lautiches, and significant aftermarket busipess which
provides aftractive margins and mitigates the impact of economic cycles.

At June 30, 2012, ICT's liquidity included $602 million of cash and a committed lotig-teim bank
credit facility of $2.5 billion that matures in 2015, The credit facility is available to back
cormercial paper. JCI also has other smaller credit facillties available. Liquidity was offset by
approximately $925 million of short-term debt and $110 million of current maturities of long-
term debt. Scheduled fong-term debt maturities are spread out, with aninnadl maforities ranging up
to approximately $800 million during the next five yearts,

WHAT COULD TRIGGER A RATING ACTION

Positive: Future developments that niay, individually or collectively, lead to a positive rating
action inclide;

--Lower leverage resulting from debt reduction or stronger earnings;




~Higher margins in the AT segment, particularly Burope, and improvements in the mefal
operations of the sealing business;

~Stronger FCF that could result from 4 reduction in working capital requirements, capital
expenditures and pension contributions;

--Clontrolled discretionary spending for share repurchases and acquisitions,

Negative: Future developments that may, individually or collectively, lead to a negative rating
action include:

--Increasing pricing presswe from customers in the AE business;

--Low FCF resulting from weak sales volumes, poor margin performance or high working capiial
requirements and capital expenditures;

--Large debt-funded acquisitions,

Fifch has affirmed JCI's ratings as follows:
~IDR at BBB+,

--Senior unsecuted credit facilities at BBB+,;
--Senior unsecured long-term debt at 'BBB+,
~~3hort-term IbR at 'F2';

--Commercial paper at 'F2',

York International Cotp.

IDR at 'BBB+:

~-Senior unsecured long-tenn debt at ‘BBB-F.
'The Rating Outlook is now Negative.
Additional information is available at 'www fitchratings.com'. The tssuer did not participate in

the rating piocess other than through the medium of its public disclosure. The ratings above were
ungolicited and have been provided by Fitch as a service {v investors.

Applicable Crlieria and Related Research:

~'Cotporate Rating Methodology', Aug. 8, 2012,
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Raflngs:

Category Moody's Rating
Outlook . Stable
Issuer Rating ’ Baai
Senior Unsecured Baal
Subordinate BaaZ
Gomimercial Paper P2
Johnson Confrols nternational NM

Cullook Stable
Bkd Commerclal Paper -Dom Cuir P-2

Analyst Phona
L Bruce ClarkiNew York City 212.553.4894
Michael J. Mulvaney/New York City 242.553.1818
Keyliidicator

Johnson Controls, Inc[1]

G2002011(L)  930/2010  9i30/2000 930008 9/30/2007
5,69

Profitabifity (EBIT Margin} % 5.9% 2.7% 57% 5.7%
Capital Structure: Net Debt / Net Capitalization 46.3% 36.2% 41.7% A22% 42.6%
Interest Govarage {(EBTfnterest) 6.4 5.7% 1.8x 49x 4.6%
RCF / Net Dabt 27.3% 36.7% 14,2% 26.4% 31.2%
FCF / Dabt -4.1% 150% 24% 12.2% 12.3%
Debt / EBIEDA 2.6% 228 4.2% 2.3x 2.5%

F13 All ratios ave calcutated using Moody's Standard Adjustments.

Nole: For deiinitions of Moody's tnost common taffo terins please see the accompanying Lisers Guide.

Opinioh

Ratirg Drivers

Highly formidable pasllion In autometive Interiors and automotive batterias; Increasingly compotilive postion it commerclal and residentist
HVAC and energy management systems. .

Rroad geographic diversification,

\tilnerabilly to down-cycles in the automotive and the commerclal and tesldential construclion markets.
Willingness ta Incraase leverage in arder te support acqulsition shategy.

Aggressive growth and margin expansion plans.

Healthy llguidity position.

Corporate Profila

JClgenerated $39.18 inrevenues and $2.18 in operaling income: for the last iwelve months (LTM) through June 2011, The cempany holds
feading poshions In ihvee businesses wilh the following revenuefoperating incarsa profite: Autornolive Exparlence (§19.0B/4640M) ~ automofive
interiors for the QM market; Bullding Efficlency ($14.4B/$753M) - designs and kstafis beallng, vengitation, air canditlaning and related building
management systems primanly for comimercial buidings; and, Power Soluions ($6.68/5767)) - automalive batterles for both the otiginal
equipment and aftermarlet seclors.




Ratihg Rationals

JCls Baa1 rating reflects the successful resfructuring the company has implemented in its awlomotive supply operations, and the contiuing
recovery in demand in its building efficiency and avlomotive end markets. The company benefits frem being one of the sfrongest suppliars of
aulomolive Interlors. lls efficient operating struclure, broad geagraphic feolprint, extensive range of OEMcuslomers, and solld financlal positlon
afford it fmportant compelitive atvantages relative lo other intetior suppliers, JCl s also the world's leading producer of lead acid batteries used
in automobiles., JCT's high-margin haflery eperalicns genesate the vast majorily of thels revenues in the aftesmarkel. This provides an important
elament of stability that can help mitigale the eyclicality nherent in the aulomolive and building efficlency businesses.

As aresult of JCi's restrucluring Inliatives and recovering demand, the company's performance is [argely In line with the levels that support
Baat rating. For the EFMthrotigh June 2011 the company's key mekics were: EBIT/interest - 6.4x; refained cash flow/ne! debt - 27.3%; and net
heane « a record $1.58.

An additional factor supporting the raling Is our expectalion that JCIwill malntain sirong Equidity. This liquidily nesilion is supparted by an
undrawn $2.58 credit faclity that malures during February 2015,

Notwithsianding JCI's sirengths, the Baa1 raling reflects a number of ateas of polential risk, These include the ongeing cyclicality of the
automotiva seclor, e modest return measures the company generales, s recently elevated level of leverage, and the potentlal for dabt-
fanced acagiisifions.,

DETAILED RATING CONSIDERATIONS
GOMPETITIVE POSITION iN THREE BUSINESS SEGMENTS

JCthas an exceptionally strang competifive position in s autemotiva intertars and battery husinesses. Inthe automaotive interiors segment, JCI
benafits from a broad global footprint, efficianctes dorived from Its high degree of varfical Integration, the most complete range of Interlor
offexings, and a suparior level of financlsf flexibility refative to the vast majority of automotive parts suppliers, These strengllis/characierlstics are
Increasingly tmpottant fo automotive CEMs in the awarding of contracts to suppliers, and they should support JCis ability to continue gaining
shars, Notwithstanding it's slrong posilion in the autemaotive interior markel, JCI's operaling margins In {his segment are modes! at chly 3.4%.
ThisIs due, in part, fo the waakness in the Eurcpeah atlo induskty, JCl genarates almost hall of Bs aulomative inferiors revenues in Europe
($7.78Y where it had an operating margin of enly 6.5% far the LTé through June 2011,

JC1is the world's largest producer of avtomeiive battertas with a 36% global matket share. Simifar to its sutomotive Intesiors busliness, JCl's
battery buslnass benefits from global presence and sirong operating efficiencles. Impertanily, approximataly 80% of the company's global
battery sales are fo tho aftarmarket, which ls much less vulnerable to cyclicat downturns that the new-vehlicle, original-equiiment markel, JCis
share position In the aftermarket segment is much karger than its share In the OF markel. This solid business position supparts operaling
margns of approximately 15.7%.

JCtls one af the werkd's leading supplier of commerclal and resldential HVAG and envronmental control systems. Neverthelass, the company’a
campeiitive position In lhese markels Is loss formidable than in the auto inlerlors or baltery business, and Il faces greater compelilive
challenges, Kay compeliters include: Honeywell, Slemaens, United Tachnolegies, and Ingersoll Rand, JCI generates refatively modest operating
miargins of about 5,2% in this segment.

BROAD GEOGRAPHIC DVERSIFICATION

[Cl has been highly successfut In broadaning ils gecgraphic diversificaiion through arganic growth and acquisitions. The current distribulon of
ils $39B In revenues Is approwimately: North Ametlca - 36%; Europe - 36%; and rest of world - 50%. The company has siso achisvad a broad
global footpint i each of lts three husiness segments, This diversity helps to mitigate the vulnerability fo eyelieal downlums In any one
geograptic region.

VULNERABILITY TO CYCLICAL DOWNTURNS

JClremains vulnerable to oyclisal downtums - particularly througsh its Automotive Inferiors segment and s new-car batlery sales. Togelher,
lhese businessas account for over $20 bllion in JCI's sales for the LTM through June 201t - more than 50% of lolal sales. This exposure
conlrihuted o JCT's revenues falling from $38B in 2008 lo $288 in 2009, and operaling Inceme declining from $28 fo $0.38 during ths same
period. .

JGlhas made a concerled effart 1o moderate ils vulnerabllity lo cyclcal downturns. Key efforts have included the broadening of its geographic
footpiint i all three segmeants, laying the ground work to axpand Ks share of tha aftermarket baltery businsss, and expanding fts Buliding
Efficlency cparafions, Important benefits of the Bailding Efficiency uglts profila are thak: 1) 74% of the unil’s sales represent sendce and
reatiing revenues, with only 25% tled to haw conatruction; and 2) the unit has a grawing body of producls and services that significanily
improve the energy efficlency of commarcial skuctures,

These efforts tobulld a more slable business platform have besn constructive and will continue. Nevertheless, the potential for eyclical
downtiens will remain one of the risks facing JCI

WILLINGNESS TO INCREASE LEVERAGE TO FUND AGQUISITIONS

‘The acquisition of three sulomotive interiors businesses for $1.28, along wih an Increase in working capilal requiremanis fo stpport growing
revenues, conrtribiied lo an ncrease In JCf's levarage {debHEBITDA) from 2.2x lo 2.6x during the second quartery of 2011, This |s a level thatis
maderately high for the Baa1 rating and [t also reflects the company’s willlngness fo Use debt o fund lis growth sfrategy. This Is a sigaificant
factor due 1o JCI's aggressive growth plans and the role that acqulsitions may play in achieving them.

We belleve that the current Baad long-ferm rating and Prime -2 shor-term ratings are imporlant elements of JOT's financlat sirategy, These
ratings reflect our expactation thal as the company pursies acquisitions it wif aitempt 1o fund them in a manner thal supports the current rating
levet, This wauld bikely anfall 2 balance among several factors, ncluding: the amount of debl rafsed to fund a latsaction, the possible issusnce
of aquity, and the page at which EBITDA might expand as a result of acquisitions or organic growth,




AGGRESSMVE GROWTH AND MARGIN EXPANSION PLANS
JGI has lald out eggressive growlh and margin expansien plans. For the consolidated graup, these plans include:

Organte revenus growth that s Wilce ths pace of growth In undexlying industry growlh. We note that JCI generated only a 2.7% compnind
anntal rato of revenue growih sinse 2006,

Annual eamings growth of 10% - 15%. Actual earrings growth has heen a more madest 8,3% sitice 2008.
Continued margin expanslon. Actuat operating margins increased maodarately from 4.0% in 2006 to 4.8% for the LTMthrough June 2011,

These are aggressive chjeclives, they represent a potentially significant fmprovement refative to JCFs historic performante, and wi notbe
aaslly achleved. Akey confribtilor to achieving the lang-lerm revanue and margin mprovemen objectives will be the company's next-
generation, klgh output AGM batterles used in conventional vehicle applications, |G expecls that the sale of these batteries will begih 1o have an
Tinpact on revenues and easnings during 2013 and heyored.

Importantly, these growth objectives target an area of credit weakness for JOL. The company's margins and relurn measures rematn marginal
fot the Baal rating fevel, For the ETM through June 2011 the EBIT margins was anly 5.6% and E8ITA/avarage assels waa a modest 7.6%.
Thesa low relurn meastires, the campahy’s elavated level of debtiEBIT| DA(2.6%), and the passibllity of further debt-funded acquisitions are
fmportant sk factors. However, given the sirenglfiof JCFs ather credil mesttics (EBIM/nteresy; retained cash flowinat debt; and netincome} and
its highly competilive business positian, these metrics pose no infermediate-term threal to the Baat raling. ‘They do, however, limit up-sida
potential for the rating.

Liquldity

JChhas a sirong flguidity position largely based onfls unutilized $2.58 credit factity that matures during 2013, The company has considerable
head room undar the facilitys key financial covenant which requires JCiie maintain eonsolidated shareholders equity of $3.69; al Juno 2611
i figure, for covenant calculation purposes, wes $10,68. This facllity provides ample caverage for the $657MIn debl coming dus during the
coming twalve months.

At Juna 2011, JC] had a madest eash position of $335M. Free cash generafion durng the coming twelve months will ikely ba strongly positive
tallowing & $340M eash use that resulled during the LTM fhraugh Juna 2011 as a result of a large working capital Insrease.

Rating Outlook

The siable cutlaock reffects Moody's view that af lhe Baa raling level JGIhas sufficient operating and flnancial exibiity to contend with the
oyclicality In lts core markets. Operaling flexiblity Is provided by the Incraasingly farmidable competilive poshions i the attomolive Intefars and
hattery businesses, the broad geographic diversiication of ifs enfire business parifolio, and the lasge service ahd rectiring revenue basa of its
Buiiding Efficiency unil, Flnanclal flexitlity is provided by the campany's large untilized oredit facliy.

What Could Changa the Rating - Up

At Baat JCI has e highest lang-term rating ef any US-based company In Moady's Aulomotive Parls Suppfier peer group. Ovar the long-lerm
there could be some upward movement In JGFs railng if it continues fo successiully implement its sirategic inlllatives, parficulariy the organic
expansion of s building sfficlency and battery oparations, the improvernent in margins, and ths fuhding of s pension plan, Upward raling
movement could also ba possikile If JCt were positioned lo sustain: EBMAlinterast abave 4.5%; debl/EBITDA below 2x; EB[TAmargin of 8%;
and, EBITWavarage asssls over 10.5%.

Yhat Could Change the Rating - Down

The tmost likely seurce of pressure on JCPs raling woukd ba a targe acquisition, Howevel, were the company lo undertake such a transaction,
wa anlicipate [hat it would altempt to fund It in a manner that would preseive the current rating level. Neveriheless, the rating could bs
pressured i its EBTTAMmterest feli o 4xand debEBITDA approached 3x.

Other Cansiderations

Under Moody's Automotive Parts Supplier Methoddlogy, the grid-indioated rating far JCIis BaaZ2, This compares wilh an aclual rating of Baal.
Basad an JCIe sirong competilive poallicns, stccessiul aulomotive restruciuting, margin enhancamant Inflatives, and the canlinuing recovary
in the US aulomotive seclor, JCIs credit metrss should sirengthen considerably Through 2012, and the giid-indicated rallng should improve
accardingly.

Ratliig Fack

Johnean Contrals, Ine.,

Gurrent LTM [3)Mocdy's 12-18 Month Forward View As
Auto Suppller Industry (1112 06/30/2011 of 08/31/2011
Factor 1: Scale, Diversification, Competitive '
Pasitlon (16%0)
a) Scale and Market Position Aoar haa Fan Aaa
b} Competiiive Postiton/Barrlers to Entry Bea Baa Baa Baa
c) Geographic Diversification Aaa Aaa Aaa Boa
) Business Divaraification Raa Haa | Baa Baa
Factor 2: Revenue Growth, Profitability And
Cash Flow {25%)




2} 4-Yoar Revenue Growth B B B B
)} Profitabiflity (EBIT Margin) 5.6% Ba 6-7% Ba
¢) F}bility to generate FCF through the business A A A A
cycle

Factor 3: Financial Polloy And Caplial Structure

(20%)

a) Capifel Struclure: Nat Dabl / Net Capitalizalion 40,3% Ba 25 -32.5% Baa-A,
b} Financlal Policy A A A A
Factar 4; Coverage and Levarage {39%)

a} Inferest Coverage (EBIT / Interest) 6.4x A 6.5-7.5x Aha
bh) RCF / Nat Debl 27.3% Baa AG-55% A-da
) FCF / Debt 4.1% Caa 15-20% BaaA
tl} Debl / EBITDA 2.6¢ Baa 1.5-2¢ Aha
Rating:

) Indicated Raling from Grid Baa? A3
b} Actual Raling Assigned Baa1 Baati

[1] Allralios are calculated using Moody's Standard Adjustments, [2] Based on finanoial data as of 6£30/2011(L); Source: Moody's Financlal
Metrics [3] This represents Moody's forward view; not the view of he Issuer; and unless nated In the text, dees nol Incorporate significant
acquisitions and divestilures
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Suramary:

Johnson Controls Inc.

Rationale

The ratings on Milwaukee, Wis.-based Johnson Controls Inc. (JCI) reflect its "satisfactory” business risk and
“intermediate” financial risk, in Standard & Poor's Ratings Services' view, The company's emphasis on revenue
growth-- and its inability to fully internally fund such growth--has led to a pattern of creeping deterioration of eredit

metrics.

JCI's improving performance since the economic turnaround has stopped. Net income for 2012 declined to $1.2
billion, from $1.4 biliion in 2011. In the most recent quarter {which ended Dec. 31, 2012), EBIT fell to $480 million
from $572 mitlion the year before. A $104 million decline in EBIT from the seating business, which reflected the
problematic Ruropean auto sector, explains the weskening corporate profits. The outlocks are negative for the
European econornies and for the Furopesn volume auto segment, in patticular. However, we do nat expect JCFs -
financial performance to fall off sharply. Profitability should get a boost, or at least greater stability, from some
successfid JCI product Jaunches, as well as various restructuring initiatives. On the other hand, we also beliave that
industry dynamics in each of JCI's businesses will prevent JCI from meaningfully raising its basic profitability. In
addition, the level of technical risk is rising in each of the business segments, especially batteries.

JCFs emphasis on growth—from organic growth, new business contracts, and acquisitions--poses a challenge to
maintaining credit metrics commensurate with the rating, given the debt financing of ever-larger working capital
needs, capital expenditures, and acquisitions. JCI's abifity to balance growth objectives and its financial risk profile will
be the key determinant in our credit assessment for the next couple of years. Over the past few years, conventional
debt has more than doubled {i.e,, even before considering the $1.2 billion pension liability and other analytical
adjustments).

Liquidity

The short-term rating is 'A-2'. We view JCI's Hquidity as “adequate" under our eriteria, meaning that we expect sources
of liquidity to exceed uses by more than 1.2x. JCI generates approximately $3 billion of EBITDA annually and has
about §3 biltion of bank facility availability, It holds no excess cash. Cash at quarter-ends is typically a mere three (o six

days' sales.

Projecting JCI's cash needs is more difficult. JCI capital expenditures for 2012 increased more than $500 miilion, to
more than $1.8 billion, Baw, in the latest quarter, capital spending was down by neazly one-third, to $371 million, and
the company's acquisitions have tailed off dramatically (acquisition spending excoeded $1.2 billion in 2011),

The company has very manageable debt maturities. It bolstered liquidity last year by funding out $1 billion of
short-term obligations. We believe material share repurchases are unlikely in the near term, although we expect the
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Summary: Johnson Contyols Inc.

company to ralge its cash dividend to shareholders as its earnings expand.

JCI has stated that it Is in compliance with all covenants in its credit agreements and indentures, and that none of its
debt agreements contain rating triggers, Its only significant financial covenant relates to maintaining minimum net

worth of at least $3.5 billion--against which the company has adequate cushion,

Qutlook

The rating ontlook on JC1 is stable, reflecting our assumptions that although JCI's financial performance may weaken
this year, it should benefit over the next few years from gencrak economic pickup and revenue expansion from both
existing and toubeuacquire& businesses. This performance, combined with the company's commitment o a moderate
financial policy, shonld allow JCI to limit the ereeping deterioration of its eredit metrics, Management has stated that it
is committed to improving working capital furns and reversing the trend of increasing leverage, We ate skeptical that
there will be a meaningful improvement--but we assine that ratios will remain within the typical ranges for our
"intermediate® financial risk assessment, We believe that management has the wherewithal to do so~-whether by

selling assets or equity--if it is serious about meintaining the current ratings.

We could raise our corporate credit rating one notch if funds from operations {FFO) to total debt approached 60% and
debt to tatal capital felf to 25% or less--consistent with a minimal financial risk profile, But this is unlikely in the
absence of & fundarmental change to JCI's business profile and related profitability—or to management's

growth-oriented strategy.

We anticipate continued high levels of investment in working capital, capiial spending, and acyuisitions, As we ate
skeptical that JCI will decrease its debt or dramatically improve its financial metrics in the next couple of years, JCI
will have less of a cushion in its vating against a scenario where key economies weaker, severely affecting corporate
performance, We could consider a downarade if JCI's credit measures deteriorate further, .e., if FFO to debt fell to less
than 30% or debt to EBITDA rose to more than 3x on a custained basis—-whether because of JCU's failure to manage
working capital or weaker-than-expected auta volumes,
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Exhibit €-8 Bankruptcy Information

Not applicable. Applicant has neither fited a voluntary bankruptcy petition nor been the subject

of an involuntary bankruptcy filing.







Exhibit C-9 Merger Information

Johnson Controls Completes Acquisition of EnergyConnect

- Johnson Controls now a leader in demand response business

- Adds to Johnson Controls porifolio of building energy management solutions

Johnson @Eg

Controls

MILWAUKEE, July 5, 2011 /PRNewswire/ - Johnson Cantrals (NYSE: JCY), a global leader in delivering solutions that increase energy
efficiency in buildings, has completed the previously announced acquisition of EvergyConnect Group, Inc, a leading provider of smart grid
demand response services and {echnologies. The acquisition was compteted on July, 1, 2011.

The acguisition enables Johnson Controls to help building owners and operators manage how much energy their buildings consumo and
when the energy is consumed — a critical feature of connecting smart buildings to the smart grid.

"One af our strategies at Johnson Conteols Building Efficiency is to play a significant role in the growing market for demand response
services by enabiing smart buildings to interface seamlessly into the grid,” said Dave Myers , vice president of Johnson Confrols and
president of the company's Building Efficiency business. "With the acquisition of EnergyConnect, Johnson Controls now combines the power
of building automstion systems with an intuitive technology piétform that provides our customers the ability to take action to capiure demand
response oppartunities. This creates a new level of building intelligence.”

Demand response refers to changes in electricity usage for buildings based on capacily, price or reliability signals from the electric grid.
EnergyConnect's demand response technology and service platform provides energy managers and facility operators real-time energy
infarmation and access to ensrgy markets, enabling them to manage their energy usage. EnergyConnect's GridGonnect technology platform
provides a scalable, cost-effective, clean technolegy to enhance the grid's efficiency and reliabitity.

"Johnson Gontrols recognized the benefits of EnergyConnect's leadership in demand response technology.” said Kevin R. Evans former
president and Chief Executive Officer of EnergyConnect. "We have experienced oulstanding growth and customer adoption since the launch
of our award-winning GridConnect platform last year. Through the Johnson Controls acquisition, we are now positioned to extend this reach
to a significantly larger customer base and accelerate the transformation of energy use in response to market prices while enhancing grid
reliability.”

Fvans will continue to lead the EnergyCennect team as vice president and general manager for Demand Respense Services for Johnson
Controls Buillding Efficiency.

The EnergyConnect acquisition enhances Johnson Controls' Building Efficiency business as a demand response leader in the large
commercial, industeial and institutional markets. Jehnson Controls helps its customers reduce energy and operational costs by providing
buiiding managament solufions, The additional products and services from EnergyConnect broaden Johnson Coentrols' portfolio of energy
solutions offerings.

About Johnson Controls
Johnson Conliols is a global diversified technology and industrial leader serving customers in more than 150 countries. Our 142,000
employees create quality products, services and solutfons lo optimize energy and operational efficiencies of buildings; lead-acid automotive
batteries and advanced batteries for hybrid and electric vehicles; and interior systems for automobifes. Our commitment to sustainability
dates back to our roots in 1885, with the invention of the first electric room thermostat. Through our growth strategies and by increasing
market share we are committed to delivering value to shareholders and making our customers successful. In 2011, Corporate Responsibility
Magazine recognized Johnsen Cenlrols as the #1 company irt its annual "100 Best Corporate Citizens" list. For additional information, please

visit hilp/fanaw johnsencontrols.com,



SOURCE Johnson Controls
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